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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This is the 14" regular Report to the Ramsey County District Court and the Minnesota State Legislature
from ClearWay Minnesota®™. We are a statewide nonprofit organization working to reduce tobacco’s
harm in Minnesota. Since 1998, we have helped reduce smoking in Minnesota from 22 percent to 16
percent, provided more than 100,000 Minnesotans with cessation help through QUITPLAN® Services,
advanced policies known to reduce tobacco’s harm, broken ground in research, formed partnerships
within diverse communities to reduce tobacco’s burden and created many innovative programs.

ClearWay Minnesota was founded as a private nonprofit corporation in accordance with the Court’s
Consent Judgment of May 8, 1998, in State by Humphrey, et al. v. Philip Morris, Incorporated, et al.,
Ramsey County District Court File No. C 1-94-8565 (August 1994). We are an independent nonprofit
organization with a limited lifetime of 25 years. Our mission is to enhance life in Minnesota by reducing
tobacco use and exposure to secondhand smoke through research, action and collaboration.

ClearWay Minnesota operates under the supervision of the Ramsey County District Court and we are
required to report on our activities to the Court and the Minnesota Legislature on an annual basis. The
information in this Report covers Fiscal Year 2014 (July 1, 2013 — June 30, 2014). Through the end of this
Fiscal Year, nearly $78.2 million has funded cessation, research, policy, community development and
outreach projects throughout the state.

Fiscal Year 2014 Initiatives and Developments

Organization

ClearWay Minnesota Board activities during Fiscal Year 2014 included creating a new Strategic Plan for
the 2015-2017 strategic planning cycle, undertaking initiatives related to Board development and
education, refining our Conflict of Interest Policy, hosting a panel discussion on the 15" anniversary of
the Minnesota tobacco settlement and other activities.

Program grants and contracts

Cessation

ClearWay Minnesota continued providing comprehensive tobacco cessation services to adult
Minnesotans through QUITPLAN Services, our effective, science-based programs that have given
Minnesota tobacco users free tools to quit since 2001. In Fiscal Year 2014, ClearWay Minnesota
implemented a redesign of QUITPLAN Services to reduce barriers, offer choices and use a wider range of
technologies to help tobacco users quit. Additionally, ClearWay Minnesota dedicated resources toward
a series of policy efforts to help ensure that 100 percent of Minnesota smokers will have access to
comprehensive tobacco dependence treatment by 2023, and participated in activities with partners to
advance both cessation services and policies.

Research

ClearWay Minnesota funds and conducts research that can translate into interventions leading to
reduced tobacco use and secondhand smoke exposure in Minnesota. We awarded $1,466,641 in grant
funding for six research projects during Fiscal Year 2014. Topics to be explored include issues concerning
menthol cigarettes and secondhand smoke exposure. This year also saw data collection for the
Minnesota Adult Tobacco Survey (MATS) and dissemination of findings from several ClearWay
Minnesota-funded or -conducted research projects.



Policy

During Fiscal Year 2014, ClearWay Minnesota continued to lead a coalition focused on advancing
policies that reduce tobacco’s harm in Minnesota. We helped pass a law that prohibits smoking in foster
homes and vehicles when a foster child is present, and helped pass legislation restricting e-cigarette sale
and use in a number of ways. ClearWay Minnesota also funded local efforts to organize public support
around tobacco control policies and other tobacco-related issues.

Community development

During Fiscal Year 2014, ClearWay Minnesota continued engaging members of Minnesota’s diverse
communities in tobacco control efforts and working to reduce the harm that commercial tobacco causes
them. (Commercial tobacco refers to manufactured products such as cigarettes, not to the sacred and
traditional use of tobacco by American Indians and other groups.) We supported Minnesota’s American
Indian advocates in their work to advance smoke-free policies on tribal lands, built advocacy and
leadership skills for effective tobacco control among members of diverse populations, supported policy
efforts that reduce tobacco’s harm among these groups and conducted other activities.

Communications and outreach

Advertising

In Fiscal Year 2014, our advertising efforts supported the launch of the reimagined QUITPLAN Services.
Our media work also continued to raise awareness of tobacco’s dangers to change social norms around
tobacco use in Minnesota, and helped build support for public policy initiatives to reduce tobacco’s
harm.

Community outreach
In addition to paid advertising, ClearWay Minnesota used earned and social media to reach key
stakeholders and help build support for public policy initiatives that reduce tobacco’s harm.

Conferences and events

ClearWay Minnesota staff, grantees and Board Members participated in various conferences and
symposia, keeping abreast of new research and advancing the field of tobacco control by sharing
findings from Minnesota with other public health experts.



I. INTRODUCTION

This is the 14" regular Report to the Ramsey County District Court and the Minnesota State Legislature
from ClearWay Minnesota®™. We are a statewide nonprofit organization working to reduce tobacco’s
harm in Minnesota. Since 1998, we have been a state leader in media, research and smoking cessation.
Working with partners, we have helped reduce smoking in Minnesota from 22.1 percent in 1999 to 16.1
percent in 2010 (the most recent year for which data are available). We have provided more than
100,000 Minnesotans with quit-smoking services through QUITPLAN® Services, advanced health policies
including the Freedom to Breathe Act and tobacco price increases, broken ground in research, formed
partnerships within diverse communities to reduce tobacco’s burden and created many innovative
programs.

ClearWay Minnesota was created as a private nonprofit corporation in accordance with the Court’s
Consent Judgment of May 8, 1998, in State by Humphrey, et al. v. Philip Morris, Incorporated, et al.,
Ramsey County District Court File No. C 1-94-8565 (August 1994). We are an independent nonprofit
organization with a limited lifetime of 25 years. Our mission is to enhance life in Minnesota by reducing
tobacco use and exposure to secondhand smoke through research, action and collaboration.

ClearWay Minnesota operates under the supervision of the Ramsey County District Court and we are
required to report on our activities to the Court and the Minnesota Legislature on an annual basis. This
Report consists of this introduction, three sections explaining our operations and activities for Fiscal
Year 2014 and a conclusion. Additional materials are found in the accompanying appendices.

This information in this Report covers Fiscal Year 2014 (July 1, 2013 — June 30, 2014). Through the end of
this Fiscal Year, nearly $78.2 million has funded cessation, research, policy, community development
and outreach projects throughout the state.

In addition to Court oversight, we conduct thorough evaluations of our own work. Evaluation findings
measure programs’ impact, help to improve them and inform strategic planning. Since 2001, we have
spent more than $6.4 million for services to support a rigorous evaluation agenda. (The U.S. Centers for
Disease Control and Prevention [CDC] identifies evaluation as an essential component of a
comprehensive tobacco control program.) Findings from recent evaluations are included throughout this
report to give a picture of our overall impact.

ClearWay Minnesota was established with a directive not to duplicate the services of other Minnesota
tobacco control organizations, and for this reason we do not conduct youth-specific initiatives. However,
many ClearWay Minnesota programs, including policy initiatives and media campaigns, have a proven
impact on youth, and we do support additional public funding of efforts to reduce tobacco use among
this population.

Documents referred to in this Report but not included in the appendices are available from our office.
Members of the ClearWay Minnesota Board of Directors and staff are available to provide further
information to the Court or Legislature. Please contact staff at 952-767-1400 or info@clearwaymn.org
for additional information.




Il. ORGANIZATION
A. GOVERNANCE

ClearWay Minnesota has a 19-member Board of Directors, composed of 11 at-large members and eight
appointees. The Board seeks out at-large Board candidates and recommends their approval, ensuring
diverse professional expertise in the organization’s governing body. The Board also strives to recruit
members who broadly represent all Minnesotans, including those from diverse ethnic and cultural
backgrounds and from both urban and rural regions.

The ClearWay Minnesota Board has five standing committees:

The Executive/Governance Committee;

The Audit/Finance Committee;

The Nominating and Board Development Committee;

The Program Grants and Program Contracts Committee; and
e The Strategic Development and Planning Committee.

Each of the standing committees of the Board has a Board-adopted charter that sets forth its duties and
authority. The Board may also convene working groups as needed.

The Investment Advisory Committee serves as an advisory committee to the Audit/Finance Committee.
While the Investment Advisory Committee is not a standing committee of the Board, the Board
determined that it should also have a charter. (See ClearWay Minnesota®" Board and Committee
Charters, Appendix A.)

Fiscal Year 2014 Board Initiatives
During Fiscal Year 2014 the Board of Directors provided oversight and guidance for the organization’s
activities, and undertook a number of actions, including:

Strategic planning developments

The Board of Directors and one of its standing committees, the Strategic Development and Planning
Committee, are responsible for guiding the strategic direction of the organization. ClearWay
Minnesota’s work is directed by our Legacy Statement and Legacy Goals, which set specific targets we
hope to achieve by the end of our lifespan in 2023:

Legacy Statement
By 2023, ClearWay Minnesota’s work will have changed Minnesota in ways that have a lasting,
tangible impact on the lives and health of its people.

We will have reduced tobacco-related harms, improved health and created a tobacco-free future
for Minnesotans.

We will have created capacity and infrastructure for ongoing, sustainable tobacco control work.
We will have changed the overall environment in Minnesota so that tobacco use is less
acceptable than it was before our work began.



Legacy Goals
e The prevalence of smoking among adult Minnesotans will have declined to less than 9
percent by 2023.
e less than 5 percent of nonsmoking adult Minnesotans will be exposed to secondhand
smoke in any location by 2023.
e One hundred percent of Minnesota smokers will have access to comprehensive tobacco
dependence treatment by 2023.

The Legacy Statement and Goals were created in 2009 as part of the 2023 Framework, a long-term
strategic planning tool. (See ClearWay Minnesota®' 2023 Framework Executive Summary, Appendix B.)

Progress toward our Legacy Goals is driven by three-year Strategic Plans, which are developed by the
Strategic Development and Planning Committee and approved by the full Board. Our Strategic Plans
represent ClearWay Minnesota’s best judgment about appropriate priorities for reducing the harms of
tobacco over a specific period. They provide programmatic direction to staff, and are the basis for
annual budgeting.

Transition Legacy

Goals

2012-2014 2015-2017 2018-2020 2021-2023

Long-term strategic planning model showing three-year planning cycles

2012-2014 Strategic Plan
The three-year Strategic Plan that came to its conclusion this year was implemented on July 1, 2011.
That Plan focused on:

Supporting policies that reduce tobacco’s harm;

Reducing tobacco-related disparities in diverse communities;
Applying research to reduce tobacco use in Minnesota;
Ensuring that quitting help exists for all Minnesotans; and
Planning future work.

(See ClearWay Minnesota Strategic Plan for 2012-2014, Appendix C.)

2015-2017 Strategic Plan

In Fiscal Year 2013, the Strategic Development and Planning Committee began the process of creating a
Strategic Plan for the 2015-2017 strategic planning cycle. During Fiscal Year 2014, the Strategic Plan for
2015-2017 was drafted, based on concepts explored by Board and staff through a facilitated process.
Board and staff finalized the new Strategic Plan at a retreat in October. The Board did a first reading at
their meeting in November of 2013, and passage of the 2015-2017 Strategic Plan by the full Board took
place in January of 2014.



*" CARRYING OUR o
» MISSION FORWARD

This Strategic Plan is flexible, and allows Board and staff to react nimbly and
appropriately to new opportunities or challenges. Work toward these Strategies
and Goals will aim for long-term impacts with major implications for reducing
tobacco’s harm in Minnesota.

POLIEY: QUITTING:
Support policies that reduce tobacco use Support Minnesotans in quitting tobacco use.

and exposure to secondhand smoke. Goal 1:  Work to make addressing tobacco use

Goal 1:  Advance policies that reduce access to standard practice in health care.
tobacco products, especially for youth. Goal 2: Increase use of cessation services, including

&
Goal 2: Advance policies that protect people from QUITBEANS Setvices:
secondhand smoke. Goal 3: Increase quit attempts among populations
Goal 3: Advance commercial tobacco-free policies ith the highestratescfitgbpeco e
on tribal lands.

Goal 4: Advance policies to increase access
to comprehensive tobacco dependence
treatment.

Our strategic
priorities .~2 goals for the
next three years

ENVIRONMENT: PLANNING:

Create an environment that supports a Plan for ClearWay Minnesota's limited life.
tobacco-free future for Minnesotans. Goal 1:  Advance programs that reduce tobacco-related
Goal :  Influence public attitudes and behaviors to pealihfisparttes ancinerease healh eduity around
make tobacco use less acceptable among all .
Minnesotans. Goal 2: Build capacity for tobacco control leadership in

Goal 2: Create an environment that provides more priority populations.

opportunity, support and motivation for Goal 3: Develop and sustain partnerships to support
people to quit tobacco use. innovations that reduce tobacco’s harm.
Goal 3: Foster the and ion Goal 4: Increase public and private resources dedicated to
of innovative ideas that advance progress reducing tobacco's harm in Minnesota.
toward ClearWay Minnesota’s Legacy Goals.
ol 9acy Goal 5: Facilitate planning the future of tobacco control

efforts in Minnesota with strategic partners.

The 2015-2017 Strategic Plan
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The new Strategic Plan identifies four strategic priorities for the next three years:

e Supporting policies that reduce tobacco use and exposure to secondhand smoke;
e Supporting Minnesotans in quitting tobacco use;

e Creating an environment that supports a tobacco-free future for Minnesotans; and
e Planning for ClearWay Minnesota’s limited life.

This Strategic Plan took effect on July 1, 2014.

Evaluation

ClearWay Minnesota measures the progress made toward reaching our Legacy Goals. (See above.) The
next formal Legacy Evaluation will be conducted once relevant data are available from the 2014
Minnesota Adult Tobacco Survey (MATS). These data are expected late in 2014. In the meantime, we
continue to use other data sources to inform our organization’s overall direction and strategic planning.

Legacy evaluation data reported previously and other information was used to inform the development
of the 2015-2017 Strategic Plan. Board and staff were given written and verbal presentations on
progress made toward our Legacy Goals to date, on tobacco control measures conducted in Minnesota
over time and on changing demographic profiles of tobacco users.

Board development

Nominating and Board Development Committee

The Nominating and Board Development Committee recommends at-large nominees to the ClearWay
Minnesota Board of Directors, discusses possible nominees for appointed vacancies, recommends Board
officers and oversees ongoing development of Board Members.

In Fiscal Year 2013 the Board conducted an evaluation survey to highlight areas for future focus. As a
result of the survey, a Board Development Plan was adopted that includes several new initiatives,
including peer orientation, one-year follow-up interviews, a new officer transition timeline, conference
attendance guidelines and exit interviews.

In Fiscal Year 2014, the Board implemented this plan by orientating new Board Members to the Board
Development Plan and by defining Board values. The Board engaged a consultant to facilitate a process
to define these core values, articulate their meaning and create agreement for engagement and
implementation. (See Board Values, Appendix D.)

Board education

Strategic Development and Planning Committee

The Strategic Development and Planning Committee of the Board developed a series of educational
presentations for the Board related to strategic planning issues. Information from these presentations
provides important context about tobacco control and the work of ClearWay Minnesota, and helps the
Board make important decisions about our strategic direction.



Board education topics for Fiscal Year 2014 were:

e The Tobacco Industry (Association for Nonsmokers — Minnesota and Campaign for Tobacco-Free
Kids staff);

e Populations With High Smoking Rates and Tobacco-Related Health Disparities Among
Minnesota’s American Indian Communities (ClearWay Minnesota staff and Dr. Jean Forster of
the University of Minnesota);

e (ClearWay Minnesota’s Tribal Tobacco Education and Policy Projects (ClearWay Minnesota and
Scott Consulting staff);

e (ClearWay Minnesota Research Dissemination Highlights (ClearWay Minnesota staff);

e The History of E-Cigarette Development (ClearWay Minnesota staff and Dr. Anne Joseph of the
University of Minnesota); and

e The Framework Convention for Tobacco Control (Doug Blanke of the Public Health Law Center at
the William Mitchell College of Law and the Tobacco Control Legal Consortium).

Conflict of Interest Policy

ClearWay Minnesota’s Conflict of Interest Policy outlines the organization’s process for disclosing,
documenting and addressing conflicts of interest and the appearance of such conflicts. Annually, all
Board Members and staff are asked to review ClearWay Minnesota’s list of grantees and vendors and to
complete certification of compliance forms documenting that they did not have actual conflicts of
interest with any grantee or vendor.

In Fiscal Year 2014, ClearWay Minnesota refined the conflict of interest screening process to identify
potential conflicts involving applicants that have not had a grants or contracts with ClearWay Minnesota
during the past year. This process identifies potential conflicts early in the application process in order to
implement mitigation strategies that may be necessary during the application review process.

ClearWay Minnesota also established a screening process for Board candidates. The purpose of having a
conflict of interest screening process for Board candidates is to help identify actual or potential conflicts
of interest early in the nomination process. This will help to confirm the candidate’s eligibility and to
recommend mitigation strategies that may be necessary if applicants or their family members have
affiliations with ClearWay Minnesota vendors, grantees or contractors and are selected for Board
service. (See ClearWay Minnesota™ Conflict of Interest Policy Adopted September 19, 2012, Appendix E.)

Public policy

ClearWay Minnesota engaged in a number of public policy initiatives, authorized by the Board, during
Fiscal Year 2014. These initiatives are detailed in Program Grants and Contracts — Policy, pp. 34-40.
ClearWay Minnesota’s lobbyist of record for Fiscal Year 2014 was Lockridge Grindal Nauen P.L.L.P.

The Board also adopted public policy statements outlining the organization’s positions on critical
tobacco control issues and reasons for supporting those positions. (See ClearWay Minnesota® Policy
Statements, Appendix F.)



CEO compensation
Pursuant to the Court’s Order of June 13, 2005, ClearWay Minnesota discloses the Chief Executive
Officer’s annual salary in this Report.

The CEQ’s annual performance and salary review is conducted by the full Board of Directors, which
thoroughly evaluates that officer’s execution of the duties described in the CEO position description. A
salary merit increase, if any, is determined as a component of the CEQ’s performance, and is linked to
the CEO salary range and merit increase percentage, established by the Board the preceding January.

Pursuant to their annual review of the CEQO’s performance, the Executive/Governance Committee, in its
role to oversee the organization’s human resources policies, recommended a salary increase totaling 3.5
percent. This increase, effective November 1, 2013, was approved by the Board on September 18, 2013.
In a separate process, the Board annually reviews salary ranges for all ClearWay Minnesota staff, based
upon a biannual compensation study conducted by an outside consultant, and supplemented in off
years by an applicable salary survey. This past year, Keystone Compensation Group LLC was selected to
conduct a competitive market analysis of compensation and benefits for ClearWay Minnesota. The
primary objective of the study was to provide the Board with sound competitive market analysis to
ensure that ClearWay Minnesota staff members are paid reasonably, based on the labor market.

At the Executive/Governance Committee Meeting on December 18, 2013, Keystone presented the
results of its salary review. The Executive/Governance Committee approved Keystone’s
recommendation that all salary ranges be revised and realigned consistent with their market analysis. As
a result, the salary range for the CEO was set at $128,000-$192,000 ($160,000 midpoint), effective
January 1, 2014. In addition, Keystone recommended a budget pool of 3.0 percent, plus 0.5 percent for
merit, for Fiscal Year 2014. These recommendations were subsequently approved by the Board in
January of 2014. (These amounts will be taken into consideration during the next CEO annual review in
the fall of 2014.)

As a result of the CEO annual review in the fall of 2013 and the Keystone compensation review approved
in January of 2014, as of June 30, 2014, the CEQO’s annual salary was set at $160,750 with the salary
range at $128,000-5192,000.

Fifteenth anniversary panel discussion

2013 marked the 15" anniversary of ClearWay Minnesota’s founding. The anniversary was
commemorated at a meeting of the Board of Directors in November with a presentation and panel
discussion that featured speakers who were directly involved with the Minnesota tobacco trial in the
1990s and with the creation of ClearWay Minnesota as an independent nonprofit organization working
to reduce tobacco’s harm.

The speakers included:

e Hubert H. “Skip” Humphrey lll, who as Minnesota Attorney General joined with Blue Cross and
Blue Shield of Minnesota to sue the tobacco companies in the 1990s;

o Mike Ciresi and Roberta Walburn, the attorneys who represented the state;

e The Honorable Kenneth Fitzpatrick, the judge who oversaw the trial; and

e Dr. Richard Hurt, the founder of Mayo Clinic’s Nicotine Dependence Center, who served as first
witness for the state during the trial and later became ClearWay Minnesota’s first Board Chair.
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o 3 % £
Left to right: Roberta Walburn, Mike Ciresi, Judge Kenneth Fitzpatrick,
Dr. Richard Hurt and former Attorney General Skip Humphrey

Other activities
In addition, the Board also undertook the following initiatives in Fiscal Year 2014:

o Reviewed and updated the Interim Chief Executive Officer (CEO) Succession Plan;

e Approved the selection of J. Patrick Plunkett of Larkin Hoffman as ClearWay Minnesota’s new
Governance Counsel;

e Approved revisions to the Board Charter;

e Approved revisions to the Executive/Governance Committee Charter;

e Approved revisions to the Audit/Finance Committee Charter; and

e Approved revisions to the Strategic Development and Planning Committee Charter.

Fiscal Year 2014 Board Roster

Board Members filling the 11 at-large positions at various times during Fiscal Year 2014 were:

e Ellen Denzen, researcher with the National Marrow Donor Program (New Hope);

o Kelly Drummer, President and CEO of the Tiwahe Foundation (Minneapolis);

e Vernae Hasbargen, former Executive Director of the Minnesota Rural Education Association
and former Vice Chair of the Minnesota Council of Nonprofits (Breckenridge) (term expired
September 28, 2013);
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e David Jones, former Chief Financial Officer and Chief Operating Officer of Allina Health and
Interim Chief Executive Officer of Hennepin County Medical Center (Arden Hills);

e Larry Kryzaniak, Chief Financial Officer for Hennepin County Medical Center (New Hope)
(resigned November 5, 2013);

o Russel Kuzel, Chief Medical Officer and a Senior Vice President at UCare (Minneapolis);

e Pamela Lux, Director of Human Resources Communications at Travelers Insurance and former
Vice President of Marketing and Communications at Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Minnesota
(Shoreview);

e Vivian Jenkins Nelsen, cofounder, president and CEO of the INTER-RACE Institute, a diversity
think-tank at Augsburg College (Minneapolis);

e Howard Orenstein, Senior Assistant Hennepin County Attorney and former partner at Robins,
Kaplan, Miller & Cerisi (St. Paul);

e Jenny Peterson, Executive Director at Generations Health Care Initiatives (Duluth);

e Joy Rikala, independent consultant, former Minnesota Bureau of Criminal Apprehension special
agent and former police chief for the City of Minnetonka and the University of Minnesota Police
Department (Plymouth);

e Lyn Stepaniak, Director of Cardiac Rhythm Disease Management for Medtronic (Minneapolis);
and

e Joel A. Swanson I, President at Risdall Public Relations (Mounds View).

Appointed Board Members serve at the pleasure of the appointing authorities within term limitations.
The appointing authorities, each of whom appoints two members, are the Governor, the Speaker of the
House, the Senate Majority Leader and the Attorney General. The eight appointed Board Members
ensure continuing public input and oversight.

Governor Mark Dayton appointed:

¢ Jim Rhodes, Endowments and Pension Director for the Minneapolis Portfolio Management
Group, LLC, and a former State Representative (St. Louis Park).

e Thomas Weaver, CEO of Achieve Services, Inc., and former Chief Operating Officer of the
Metropolitan Council (Anoka).

(Note: Both Rep. Rhodes and Mr. Weaver were first appointed to the Board by Governor Tim Pawlenty
and were subsequently reappointed by Governor Dayton.)

Former Speaker of the House Paul Thissen appointed:

e Teresa Matsui Sanders, President and CEO of InnWorks (Shoreview) (resigned on December 31,
2014).

Former Speaker of the House Kurt Zellers appointed:

e Bob Boerschel, eFinancial Senior Counsel at Wells Fargo (Lakeville).
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Senate Majority Leader Tom Bakk appointed:

e Galen Vetter, former executive at Rust Consulting/Kinsella Media, Franklin Templeton
Investments and McGladrey (Minneapolis, Lake City).

Former Senate Majority Leader Lawrence J. Pogemiller appointed:

e Daniel Johnson, nonprofit consultant, former executive at the National Multiple Sclerosis
Society and past president of the United Health Foundation and the Blue Cross and Blue Shield
of Minnesota Foundation (West St. Paul).

Attorney General Lori Swanson appointed:

e James Deal, Board Director for QBE/NAU Country Insurance Company and owner of PSD
Holding, L.L.C. (Anoka) (term expired September 28, 2013); and

e Brian Short, Chief Executive Officer of Leamington Co. and former U.S. Magistrate Judge
(Minneapolis); and

e Steven McWhirter, Executive Vice President of Dougherty & Company LLC (Maple Plain).

ClearWay Minnesota Board Officers in Fiscal Year 2014 were:

e Thomas Weaver, Chair (September 29, 2013 — present)

e Vernae Hasbargen, Chair (September 29, 2011 — September 28, 2013 )
e Joel Swanson, Vice Chair (September 29, 2013 — September 28, 2014)
e Jim Rhodes, Vice Chair (March 20, 2013 — September 28, 2013)

e Bob Boerschel, Treasurer (September 29, 2013 — present)

e James Deal, Treasurer (September 29, 2011 — September 28, 2013)

o Daniel Johnson, Secretary (September 29, 2013 — September 28, 2014)
e Joy Rikala, Secretary (September 29, 2012 — September 28, 2013)

A full roster of Board Officers for Fiscal Year 2015 will be reported in next year’s Report to the Court.
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B. STAFF

ClearWay Minnesota’s staff is made up of individuals with expertise in public health, tobacco cessation,
research, community development, finance, investments, marketing and communications, public affairs
and nonprofit administration. (See ClearWay Minnesota®™ Organization Chart Fiscal Year 2014,
Appendix G.) For Fiscal Year 2014, the Management Team of the organization consisted of:

e Chief Executive Officer David J. Willoughby, M.A_;

e Vice President Andrea Mowery;

Vice President Barbara Schillo, Ph.D;

Chief Financial Officer Paul Orman;

Director of Research Programs Raymond Boyle, Ph.D.;

Director of Marketing and Communications Marietta Dreher;

e Director of Cessation Programs Paula Keller, M.P.H.;

e Director of Community Development Jaime Martinez, M.Ed.; and
e Director of Public Affairs Molly Moilanen, M.P.P.

(See ClearWay Minnesota™ Management Team Biosketches, Appendix H.)
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C. FINANCES

ClearWay Minnesota strives to be a good steward of the settlement funds with which the organization
was created, and many practices are in place to ensure appropriate financial management and
maximum cost-effectiveness of programs and operations. Annual budgets are developed based on
three-year Strategic Plans. (See Governance — Fiscal Year 2014 Board Initiatives — Strategic Planning
Developments — 2012-2014 Strategic Plan, p. 5.)

Audits

For Fiscal Year 2014, Olsen Thielen & Co., Ltd., was retained for an eighth year by the Audit/Finance
Committee as independent auditor. At its meeting on June 24, 2014, the Committee reviewed and
approved the audit plan presented by the auditors. After completion, the audits for the years ended
June 30, 2014 and 2013, were presented to the Audit/Finance Committee by representatives of Olsen
Thielen, in August of 2014. (The audits were presented to and accepted by the Board of Directors on
September 17, 2014.)

As in every previous year, the audits found that in all material respects, ClearWay Minnesota’s financial
statements fairly present the organization’s financial position and changes in net assets and cash flows.
These statements were also determined to conform with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. (See Financial Statements, June 30, 2014 and 2013, together with Independent
Auditors’ Report to the Board of Directors and the Audit Finance Committee, August 28, 2014, Appendix

1)

Consistent with practices instituted in recent years, the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial
Officer certified the accuracy of the audited financial statements. Although not required by any
regulation or law, this financial certification was adopted as a good governance and accountability
practice. (See Audited Financial Statement Certification, Appendix J.)

Total operating expenses for Fiscal Year 2014 were $16,958,807, and are summarized in the following
table:

Table 1
Expenses for Fiscal Year 2014

12 months ended June 30, 2014
Cessation $12,321,138 72.6%
Research and other tobacco
control purposes $3,436,667 20.3%
General and administrative $1,201,002 7 1%
L
TOTA $16,958,807
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Required Filings

As a nonprofit organization, ClearWay Minnesota is required to file IRS Form 990 annually. We also post
our Form 990 and attachments on our website at www.clearwaymn.org. In addition, as a Minnesota
nonprofit corporation, ClearWay Minnesota is required to file a Charitable Organization Annual Report
with the Office of the Attorney General. (See IRS Forms 990 and 990T June 30, 2014, Appendix K, and
Charitable Organization Annual Report June 30, 2014, Appendix L.)

Investments

ClearWay Minnesota has adopted the general investment guidelines of the Minnesota State Board of
Investment (Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 11A, Section 24). In addition, our Bylaws prohibit investing
directly in securities issued by firms that generate revenues from tobacco products.

Consistent with prior years, ClearWay Minnesota’s investment objective is to grow capital prudently
over the organization’s lifetime, which ends in 2023.

Investment strategy and refinement
At June 30,2014 ClearWay Minnesota continued to structure our investments by using three separate
pools of investment funds:

e The Money Market Pool, which covers spending in the short term (up to six months), is invested
in securities designed to have low risk;

e The Near-Term Pool, which covers spending for two years, has a somewhat greater investment
risk than the Money Market Pool in order to achieve a better return; and

e The Long-Term Pool, which has greater risk than either of the above two pools, seeks capital
appreciation to support future spending needs through a broadly diversified portfolio of
investments.

At least annually, ClearWay Minnesota reviews (and refines, if deemed necessary) our investment
strategy in light of three major investment constraints: limited life, prohibition on investing directly in
tobacco-related companies, and significant liquidity needs (especially as we approach the end of our 25-
year lifespan). This past Fiscal Year, the Near-Term Pool was adjusted by commencing liquidation of the
investment in Common Sense Investment Fund and adding the PIMCO Short-Term Fund (both to be
completed in January of 2014). In the Long-Term Pool, the Cornerstone Capital (formerly Madison
Square) investment is in the process of liquidation (completed in July of 2014) and the Smith small cap
fund was liquidated. These were replaced in July of 2013 — due to performance issues and personnel
changes (Madison Square), and to keep expenses low in light of decreasing investment balances — by an
iShares Russell 3000 Index ETF investment. In addition, changes are being made to the fixed income
portfolio to lower overall duration in anticipation of rising interest rates. At year-end, a total of 19
distinct investment vehicles were used across the three investment pools, as detailed in Table 2 (see
Ongoing Investment Oversight and Performance Evaluation, below).

Ongoing investment oversight and performance evaluation

ClearWay Minnesota’s Audit/Finance Committee uses an Investment Advisory Committee (IAC) to give
advice on matters relating to the investment portfolio. The IAC meets quarterly to review the
investment mix, fund performance and investment policies. The IAC also evaluates investments
recommended by ClearWay Minnesota’s investment consultant (currently Ellwood Associates).
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The IAC’s advice is offered to the Audit/Finance Committee to help guide that committee’s decision-
making. This advice includes recommending and monitoring the investment custodian, investment
consultant and investment managers. As of June 30, 2014, the IAC comprises external investment
experts and one Board Member. The Board Member serves as Committee Chair.

In 2014, the external Committee Members included:

e Lois Buermann, Retirement Services Specialist Principal, Minnesota State Retirement System;
e Kim Faust, Vice President and Treasurer, Fairview Health Services; and
e LeaAnn Stagg, Chief Operating Officer, Minnesota State Board of Investment.

As in prior years, the investment consultant provided a performance report to the Investment Advisory
Committee and ClearWay Minnesota staff each quarter. The consultant also performs regular qualitative
analysis of each investment manager’s organization, philosophy, account and personnel growth, and
employee turnover. In addition to other detailed information, the quarterly written reports cover:

e Total time-weighted returns over various periods;

e Comparisons of returns to appropriate benchmark indices; and

e An analysis, by investment manager, of performance (relative to their benchmarks and any
issues or concerns that may have arisen) that makes applicable recommendations.

Portfolios are checked for compliance with the objectives, targets and policy guidelines specified in
ClearWay Minnesota’s Statement of Investment Objectives and Policies.

ClearWay Minnesota ended the year with the following 19 investment vehicles (sorted by pool):
Table 2

Investment Manager by Pool
June 30, 2014

POOL TYPE MANAGER

Money market Institutional money market Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.
ICS (FDIC insured product) Venture Bank

Near-term Low-duration bonds J.P. Morgan
Alternative fund of funds Common Sense Investment Fund
U.S. Treasuries Internally managed bond ladder
Fixed income PIMCO Short -Term Fund

Long-term Large-cap U.S. equities iShares Russell 3000 ETF
Non-U.S. equities Dodge & Cox Funds
Non-U.S. equities iShares ACWX ETF
Fixed income PIMCO Total Return Fund llI
Fixed income PIMCO Low Duration Fund llI
Fixed income Templeton Global Bond Fund
Private equity fund of funds Coller Capital
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Private equity fund of funds Weathergage Capital L.L.C.

Private equity fund of funds Mesirow Financial
Alternative fund of funds The Blackstone Group
Alternative fund of funds Coast Asset Management
Alternative fund of funds GAM USA, Inc.

Summary of investment performance

Returns on ClearWay Minnesota’s investment components are measured against their respective return
objectives over a full market cycle. Market cycles may differ markedly in length, and there is no
standardized measure for a market cycle’s term. For ClearWay Minnesota’s purposes, a full market cycle
includes both a down leg and an up leg, in either order. The up or down portions will each be of at least
two consecutive quarters in length. Therefore, a full market cycle may be as short as one year, although
most market cycles are expected to last from three to five years. Return shortfalls are permitted over
portions of the market cycle, provided that ClearWay Minnesota’s return objectives are met over the full
market cycle.

For the 12-month period ended June 30, 2014, ClearWay Minnesota’s investments gained 10.0 percent,
compared with the benchmark gain of 7.9 percent. For the three-, five- and 10-year periods, ClearWay
Minnesota had annualized market gains of 5.3 percent (5.3 percent benchmark), 8.1 percent (7.2
percent benchmark) and 5.6 percent (5.7 percent benchmark), respectively. From inception, ClearWay
Minnesota investments have returned 4.1 percent annualized, compared to the benchmark return of 4.7
percent. This overall underperformance of 0.6 percent is primarily due to lower returns versus the
corresponding benchmark from domestic equity, short duration bonds and alternative managers,
including a young but starting to mature private equity portfolio. The underperformance in those areas
has been partially offset by superior performance versus the corresponding benchmark in international
equities, commodities and fixed income.
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lll. PROGRAM GRANTS AND CONTRACTS
A. CESSATION

Since inception through June 30, 2014, ClearWay Minnesota has funded $49.4 million in cessation
program grants and contracts; of that, $28.9 million funded individual cessation programs directly.
ClearWay Minnesota’s cessation work focuses on both cessation services and cessation policy.

Currently, all Minnesotans have access to cessation services either through their health insurance or
through ClearWay Minnesota. Because our limited lifetime will end in 2023, we are working to ensure
that comprehensive cessation services remain available in the future. To facilitate this, ClearWay
Minnesota also supports cessation policy and systems change work among partners and systems that
could provide such services. (See Organization — Governance — Fiscal Year 2014 Board Initiatives —
Strategic Planning Developments, pp. 4-7.) By supporting both direct service delivery and cessation
policy initiatives, we strive to ensure that all Minnesota smokers, regardless of insurance status, will
have access to treatments to help them quit.

Cessation Services Contracts

QUITPLAN® Services
ClearWay Minnesota’s cessation services are referred to as
QUITPLAN Services. QUITPLAN Services are effective, science-
based programs that have given Minnesota tobacco users free
- tools to quit since 2001. To date, the program has helped
Q more than 100,000 Minnesotans in their efforts to quit

Q U l T P L A N tobacco use.

In Fiscal Year 2014, ClearWay Minnesota implemented a
redesign of QUITPLAN Services to better serve Minnesota
tobacco users. Our service offerings at the beginning of the
Fiscal Year were the QUITPLAN Helpline and quitplan.com.
The QUITPLAN Helpline provided telephone counseling and,
as appropriate, nicotine replacement therapy to Minnesotans
who were uninsured or underinsured (i.e., Minnesotans who had no insurance coverage for telephone
counseling and/or nicotine replacement therapy). quitplan.com was a standalone online cessation
program available to all Minnesotans. While the redesign work was underway, both services continued
to be offered in order to help tobacco users successfully quit. National Jewish Health provided
QUITPLAN Helpline services and Alere Wellbeing offered the stand-alone online cessation program.

As reported in the 2013 Report to the Court, ClearWay Minnesota staff had planned the redesign of
QUITPLAN Services beginning in 2012. After staff released a Request for Proposals (RFP) and conducted
a thorough review, the Board of Directors approved a new QUITPLAN Services vendor, Alere Wellbeing,
in July 2013 to develop an expanded array of tobacco cessation services as well as infrastructure
(personnel and technology) to support this expansion. The redesigned service offerings are based on
scientific evidence and emerging best practices, on cessation services offered by other tobacco control
programs and on tobacco users’ needs. The redesigned services reduce barriers, offer choices and use a
wider range of technologies, which will help ClearWay Minnesota reach more tobacco users and
increase quit attempts.
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Beginning March 3, 2014, ClearWay Minnesota began offering the redesigned suite of QUITPLAN
Services (all available in English and Spanish unless noted):

e The QUITPLAN Helpline (telephone counseling by trained coaches) with integrated text and
email support and nicotine replacement therapy (if appropriate) for uninsured and
underinsured Minnesotans;

e Nicotine replacement therapy (NRT) starter kits (two weeks’ worth of NRT) for all Minnesota
tobacco users;

e Text-messaging support program for all Minnesota tobacco users (English only);

e Email support program for all Minnesota tobacco users; and

e A printed Quit Guide (self-help workbook) for all Minnesota tobacco users.

HOME THINKING ABOUT QUITTING HOW TO QUIT ‘

Jo)

QUITPLAN" SERVICES

Quit your own way

QUITPLAN® Services offers a wide array of tools to help you quit your own way, because everyone is different.
Choose the individual services that work best for you, or sign up for the QUITPLAN Helpline for the complete

program.
. . @ 2 . ® .
Individual QUITPLAN® Services QUITPLAN® Helpline
@ Tips, games and reminders @ 3 Zenges
texted right to your phone Two weeks of free of patches, /f . = N\
gum or lozenges to get you 4 b}
started
A complete program. You will receiv
. . one-on-one p c sions
¥ i o - with train acco counsel nd free
s of emails full of tips A resourceful guide to help you patc um or lozenges, plus
and encouragement quit

additional integrated tools to help you

Uit

=

The QUITPLAN® Services website helps tobacco users select options to help them quit

Other improvements made to QUITPLAN Services were:

e Aredesigned website, www.quitplan.com, providing free information, tools and resources to all
visitors;
e Both online and telephone registration for all QUITPLAN Services; and

e Online social support (cessation advice) for all Minnesota tobacco users using the QUITPLAN
Services Facebook page.
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QUITPLAN
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Timeline About Photos Ask Janice More ~

JANICE QUIT

Now she can help you.

How do you help motivate tobacco users to quit?

| invite participants to share how smoking gets in the way of important things in
their life. It is helpful to keep a list of the positive outcomes of quitting (rather than
focusing only on the negative effects of smoking).

What tip or trick seems to be most helpful in becoming tobacco free?
Finding new, healthy ways of managing stress or other emotions.

Minnesota tobacco users can connect with counselors
and fellow quitters at the QUITPLAN® Services Facebook page

As part of the redesign of QUITPLAN Services, the stand-alone online cessation program called
quitplan.com was ended. This program was offered from July 1, 2003, to March 2, 2014. This program
provided free, immediate help to all Minnesotans who wished to quit using tobacco products, and
support to those who had already quit. This program was successful in serving many Minnesotans, and
evaluation data demonstrated that the program was clinically and cost-effective. However, evaluation
data also demonstrated declining enrollments and use of this service over time. Based on these data and
information from the planning process that informed development of the new suite of QUITPLAN
Services, this service was ended. Similar information and resources to those previously provided through
this program are now available in other forms through the redesigned www.quitplan.com website.
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QUITPLANP® Services offerings

A core principle behind the redesign of QUITPLAN Services is to encourage all tobacco users to think
about quitting and to try to quit. In order to drive down prevalence, we need to target tobacco users at
all stages of readiness to quit and to make resources and services available to them regardless of
readiness. Recognizing that tobacco dependence is a chronic, relapsing condition and that it takes most
tobacco users multiple attempts to quit successfully, tobacco users are encouraged to return to
QUITPLAN Services and enroll in additional services if they need further support in quitting or would like
to try again to quit. Tobacco users can choose to enroll either in the QUITPLAN Helpline or in one or
more of the Individual QUITPLAN Services (NRT starter kit, text messaging, email support and/or printed
quit guide).

The following is a brief summary of each QUITPLAN Service.

QUITPLAN® Helpline

ClearWay Minnesota partners with Minnesota’s major health plans to avoid duplication of telephone
counseling services offered by health plans to their members. If individuals with insurance call the
QUITPLAN Helpline, they are transferred to the relevant health plan telephone cessation service.

The QUITPLAN Helpline serves uninsured tobacco users and those whose health insurance does not
offer telephone counseling and/or nicotine replacement therapy (NRT). The QUITPLAN Helpline program
provides a series of telephone counseling sessions individualized to each tobacco user’s unique needs,
as well as printed materials, email and text-message support for those who are interested. NRT, in the
form of patches, gum or lozenges, is provided to adult callers who:

e Do not have insurance coverage for telephone counseling and/or NRT;

e Are 18 years of age or older;

e Enroll in the multi-call counseling program; and

e Do not have any medical reasons not to use NRT (such as being pregnant).

Counseling is provided in-language for English and Spanish and through an interpreter in more than 170
additional languages.

Nicotine replacement therapy (NRT) starter kit

Tobacco users can sign up for two weeks of free nicotine patches, gum or lozenges through QUITPLAN
Services. The purpose of the starter kit is to foster more quit attempts among the entire population of
tobacco users in Minnesota. In order to drive down prevalence, we need to engage a broad array of
tobacco users — from those who are ambivalent about quitting to those who are definitely ready to quit
— and encourage all of them to try. This medication also helps provide relief from withdrawal symptoms
and cravings as tobacco users try to quit. All tobacco users who sign up for a starter kit receive a follow-
up telephone call from QUITPLAN Services. The purpose of this call is to ensure that participants
received their medications, to answer any questions, to inform participants that other QUITPLAN
Services are available to them if they would like additional aid, and to help them enroll in additional
services if they wish to do so.
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Text messaging

Text2Quit™ is an evidence-based series of tailored text messages sent out before and after a tobacco
user’s quit date to help prepare them for quitting and prevent relapse after they have quit. The text
message library has more than 300 messages, which include tips, reminders, information about
medications, games and other tools to support tobacco users.

Email support program

The email support program is designed to guide tobacco users through the quitting process. The email
program includes 13 separate emails over 24 days, with daily emails for the first week of an individual’s
quit. The email program includes tips for successful quitting, and advice on overcoming urges, how to
encourage friends and family to provide support, managing stressful situations, and the benefits of
being quit.

Quit guide

The quit guide provides information and worksheets to guide tobacco users through the quitting
process. The quit guide is mailed to tobacco users; it is also available for download at no charge on
www.quitplan.com.

You can quit smoking.
We'll teach you how.

Quit Guide QUITPLAN

The Quit Guide provides helpful information to tobacco users

22



Media campaign

QUITPLAN Services is promoted with a large-scale mass-media campaign, incorporating television and
various other types of advertising. A new series of ads was produced to complement the redesigned
services and reflect our caring, compassionate approach to delivering QUITPLAN Services. (See
Communications and Outreach — Advertising — QUITPLAN® Services Campaign, pp. 54-56.)

New QUITPLANZ® Services ads show compassion
for tobacco users who struggle to quit

Tobacco users served

ClearWay Minnesota tracks both numbers of people who visit our website and contact us by phone, as
well as the numbers of enrollments in QUITPLAN Services. In Fiscal Year 2014, 12,535 people called
QUITPLAN Services and 124,280 people visited the quitplan.com website.

In Fiscal Year 2014, 9,547 tobacco users enrolled in QUITPLAN Services.

e 2,753 tobacco users enrolled in the QUITPLAN Helpline’s multi-call counseling program
o 2,239 tobacco users received NRT patches, lozenges or gum as part of their Helpline
enrollment
e 1,486 tobacco users enrolled in quitplan.com
e 5,308 tobacco users enrolled in one or more of the Individual QUITPLAN Services (NRT starter
kit, text messaging, email and/or quit guide)
o 5,028 tobacco users received a NRT starter kit
o 3,159 tobacco users received a quit guide
o 1,964 tobacco users signed up for email messages
o 1,717 tobacco users signed up for text messages

The initial response to our redesigned suite of services and new advertising campaign has been very

positive. In four months’ time (March 3, 2014 - June 30, 2014), more tobacco users were served than in
all of Fiscal Year 2013.
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Evaluation of QUITPLAN® Services

ClearWay Minnesota uses evaluation data and other scientific evidence to guide our decision-making
about service offerings. We recognize that services will need to be enhanced or modified to meet
changing patterns of demand, to expand the reach of services and to incorporate new evidence-based
practices as they emerge. We also recognize that programs that are less effective or cost-effective will
need to be modified or transitioned.

ClearWay Minnesota uses external evaluation firm Professional Data Analysts, Inc. (PDA), to evaluate
QUITPLAN Services. Findings are used to help our vendors in improving their programs.

During Fiscal Year 2014, ClearWay Minnesota and PDA developed an extensive evaluation plan for the
new suite of QUITPLAN Services. The evaluation plan includes reviewing data for completeness and
quality, reviewing recorded calls to assess the interactions between participants and vendor staff, and
interviewing participants to understand their experience and satisfaction with QUITPLAN Services.

Findings from initial programmatic data review

PDA reviewed March 2014 data from Alere Wellbeing to assess whether data were complete and of
good quality, and to describe characteristics of those who enrolled in services in the first month of
services. The review of initial programmatic data showed that about 60 percent of participants enrolled
online. Individual QUITPLAN Services were more popular than the Helpline, with 84 percent of
participants choosing to enroll in one or more of the new Individual QUITPLAN Services offered.
Compared to those enrolling in Individual QUITPLAN Services, people choosing the Helpline were more
likely to be older, African American and/or smokers of cigarettes only (as opposed to those who used
other or multiple forms of tobacco). Overall, data were found to be of good quality; any clarification
guestions were raised to Alere Wellbeing by staff and answered.

Findings from the registration call review

PDA reviewed 10 recorded registration phone calls with program participants to assess the interactions
between callers and vendor staff. The calls occurred from March 24-31, 2014. The review of recorded
registration phone calls found that almost all of the intake specialists did an excellent job making an
effort to connect with callers in a non-judgmental and encouraging way to support them in their efforts
to quit. Despite the newness of the program, we found that the service selection process went smoothly
for several of the calls reviewed for this study. In a small number of calls, however, the program
selection process took more time than expected. Feedback from the registration call review was shared
with Alere Wellbeing and was used by Alere staff to further improve the registration process.

QUITPLAN® Services interview study results

In May and June of 2014, PDA conducted an interview study designed to monitor the implementation
and quality of ClearWay Minnesota’s newly launched suite of QUITPLAN Services and to assess
participant satisfaction with the services. A total of 47 interviews were conducted with QUITPLAN
Services participants who enrolled in services between April 14 and April 30, 2014.

Overall findings from the interview study were positive, with 42 of the 47 interviewees reporting being
satisfied with their experience with QUITPLAN Services. Many participants stated that they were highly
satisfied with the program. Almost all participants stated they would refer the program to another
tobacco user, and many already had referred people. Although participants reported occasional issues
with QUITPLAN Services, few found the issues to be problematic enough to be dissatisfied with the
program.
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The following are some examples of positive feedback obtained from participants:

o “It’s amazing. When | decided to quit, | thought ‘Who will care?’ It was so awesome to know that
someone did care and was working to help me.”

e “Normally you don’t get free help from anyone. It costs a lot to visit a doctor and get a
prescription, even though it is less expensive than continuing to smoke. But I’'ve worked all my
life and paid my taxes, and sometimes you just need a little help. I’'m impressed with the help |
got from QUITPLAN Services.”

e “I’'m not computer-smart, but it was easy to use, even for a 75-year-old guy.”

e “QUITPLAN Services is not condescending. They’ll support you, not criticize you, even if you go
back to smoking.”

e “So often websites don’t follow through with what they say they’ll do, but QUITPLAN does.”

The study found that most participants were aware of the different services available to them and had
made a conscious decision to select services that met their support needs and lifestyles. Few QUITPLAN
Services enrollees reported encountering barriers to receiving the services they were interested in using.
Almost all participants, regardless of whether they registered via the web or by phone, reported that the
registration process was easy and quick. Problems with signing up for services were few and isolated.

In sum, the interviews provide early evidence that new QUITPLAN Services are meeting the needs of a
variety of tobacco users, with many participants finding great value in one component or the other.
With only a few of the interviewees reporting problems, it appears that the quality of the programs is
high. Offering a choice of programs appears to be meeting the needs of Minnesota tobacco users, who
have varying preferences for how to be engaged in cessation support.

We did not conduct a cessation outcome evaluation during Fiscal Year 2014. Our practice is to conduct
such evaluations when there are vendor changes or substantial programmatic changes. The type of
outcome evaluation that is standard for quitlines occurs seven months after a participant enrolls in the
service. Since the redesigned set of QUITPLAN Services launched in March 2014, not enough time had
elapsed to conduct this type of outcome evaluation. This evaluation will be conducted in Fiscal Year
2015. Additional evaluation findings, including results from our outcome evaluation, will be shared in
future Reports to the Court.

Cessation Policy

The Cessation Department has been dedicating resources toward a series of policy efforts to help
ClearWay Minnesota achieve our third Legacy Goal (that 100 percent of Minnesota smokers will have
access to comprehensive tobacco dependence treatment by 2023) (see Organization — Governance —
Fiscal Year 2014 Board Initiatives — Strategic Planning Developments, pp. 4-7).

Three areas serve as the foundation for our cessation policy work. These areas are:
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Benefit design

The goal of this area is to ensure that all health insurance products include comprehensive
tobacco cessation benefits (barrier-free coverage for all forms of counseling and for FDA-
approved medications). In Fiscal Year 2014, work in this area began with assessing the current
environment of coverage for cessation services in public and private health insurance products.

Based on findings from this assessment, staff began initial conversations with state agencies and
other decision makers on ways to strengthen tobacco cessation insurance benefits. We engaged
in health care reform activities at the state level as they related to new and modified health
insurance requirements, including educational efforts around requirements related to tobacco
dependence treatment. Staff also continued planning efforts for future work in this area.

Quality measurement

In order to enhance routine delivery of best-practice tobacco dependence treatment within
health care systems, this area of work aims to strengthen tobacco-related quality measures used
in health care. Activities in Fiscal Year 2014 included a continued environmental scan of existing
tobacco use and treatment quality measures used in health care, relationship-building meetings
with key stakeholders from the quality measurement community and dissemination of last
year’s analysis of tobacco use data as part of other quality measures by the nonprofit
organization Minnesota Community Measurement (http://mncm.org/tobacco-spotlight/).

Staff also began exploring opportunities to strengthen data collection related to social
determinants of health (e.g. race, ethnicity, language, etc.) to help interpret health care quality
measures. Because tobacco use is not distributed evenly across the entire population, collecting
additional data and integrating it with quality measures related to tobacco has the potential to
assist health systems in better understanding where gaps in tobacco treatment delivery exist
and to identify strategies to help close those gaps. This approach will help lead to more
consistent delivery of best practice tobacco dependence treatment to all patients.

System integration

The goal of this area is two-fold: to ensure that tobacco dependence treatment is integrated
into routine health care, and to foster integration of protocols to address tobacco into
Minnesota’s public programs that serve populations with high smoking rates (e.g., Head Start,
Women, Infants and Children [WIC], etc.).

Health system integration

In Fiscal Year 2014, ClearWay Minnesota released a Request for Proposals titled Health Systems
Change for Treating Tobacco Dependence. By normalizing the treatment of tobacco dependence
within health care, we anticipate that not only will patients’ health be improved, health care
systems will also have the potential to realize cost savings.

Three grants were awarded, totaling $561,004, to advance health systems changes to ensure
that addressing tobacco use is fully integrated into the health care experience for patients.
These two-year grants were awarded to Hennepin Health Foundation, CentraCare Health
Foundation and Mille Lacs Band of Ojibwe.
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Hennepin Health Foundation aims to create standardized processes for identifying tobacco
users, assessing willingness to quit and referring individuals to cessation services that will be
implemented throughout Hennepin County Medical Center. CentraCare Health Foundation aims
to integrate tobacco dependence treatment into their continuum of care models, to conduct
proactive outreach to tobacco users through their Total Cost of Care center and to improve
identification, outreach and resources for tobacco-dependent patients. Mille Lacs Band of
Ojibwe seeks to expand their Electronic Health Record (EHR) and implement quality
measurement and improvement processes to support best practices and care coordination for
patients using commercial tobacco.

Continued support of health systems change is a priority for ClearWay Minnesota. We
conducted an environmental scan to assess changes in the environment over the past year to
guide our future work. We also continue to build relationships to inform future work and
funding opportunities in this area.

Systems change in public programs

This year ClearWay Minnesota deepened its systems change work with state agencies and with
programs that serve low-socioeconomic-status (SES) Minnesotans. The goal of this work is for
public programs to integrate addressing tobacco use into service delivery. Programs worked
with include Head Start, Women Infants and Children (WIC) and Minneapolis public housing
(through work with the city Health Department), as all housing will go smoke-free over a five-
year period. Key activities include developing QUITPLAN Services promotional materials for
public housing units printed in English and Somali, and a flyer for pregnant women that lists
benefits of quitting printed in Spanish and English; conducting trainings for Head Start staff for
programs to begin addressing tobacco systematically; communications to WIC staff regarding
the tobacco tax increase and QUITPLAN Services materials; and trainings for partners on
QUITPLAN Services. ClearWay Minnesota has seen many positive outcomes from this work,
including development of strong relationships with these partners, approval by the Minnesota
Head Start Association Board for Head Start programs to partner with ClearWay Minnesota to
begin addressing tobacco statewide, increased knowledge of QUITPLAN Services within
programs, increased reach to Minnesotans who smoke at higher rates (particularly those of low
SES) and distribution of more than 17,000 QUITPLAN Services brochures and other promotional
pieces to these agencies and organizations as a direct result of this work.

ClearWay Minnesota will continue to build capacity within public programs. These efforts will be
guided by opportunities that continue to emerge from the strategic partnerships that have been
developed. In addition, we are working to identify potential funding opportunities to connect
low-SES smokers to cessation services, including QUITPLAN Services. In Fiscal Year 2014, we
began conducting an environmental scan to shape future funding in this area.

Halleland Habicht Consulting, L.L.C., has been assisting ClearWay Minnesota in our cessation policy
work, and they continued to provide assistance during Fiscal Year 2014. In May of 2014, the Board
approved a subsequent contract with Halleland Habicht to continue assisting us through Fiscal Year
2015.
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Cessation policy evaluation

In Fiscal Year 2014, ClearWay Minnesota staff and external evaluator Professional Data Analysts (PDA)
finalized an evaluation framework for our cessation policy work. This framework is used by staff and by
PDA to define and prioritize efforts to assess our cessation policy endeavors.

This framework was then used to develop a process to annually evaluate progress towards achievement
of ClearWay Minnesota’s third Legacy Goal. In Fiscal Year 2014, a Baseline Report was drafted to
document the state of the environment for cessation policy in Minnesota. We anticipate that each year
following, PDA will prepare a report that builds off this baseline to allow us to describe progress made as
well as changes in the environment that impact this work.

Also in Fiscal Year 2014, ClearWay Minnesota used the health systems change evaluation findings
discussed in last year’s Report to the Court for planning additional work in this area (see System
Integration, above). ClearWay Minnesota worked with PDA to create a process evaluation plan for our
new health systems change grants to allow us to understand how this work progresses, identify lessons
learned for other Minnesota health systems and others who may wish to undertake similar work, and to
learn whether the progress made during the grant period is sustained after funding has ended.

Other Initiatives

State and national partnerships

ClearWay Minnesota has been instrumental in forging relationships and partnerships to advance both
cessation services and policies. Such partnerships help improve these services and policies for
Minnesotans, facilitate coordination and avoid duplication of efforts. In the future, we expect this work
to expand in order to achieve our Legacy Goal of ensuring that all Minnesota smokers have access to
comprehensive tobacco dependence treatment by 2023. (See Organization — Governance — Fiscal Year
2014 Board Initiatives — Strategic Planning Developments, pp. 4-7.) Key partnerships include:

e (Call it Quits Collaborative: The Call it Quits Collaborative is a partnership that includes the major
health insurers in Minnesota (Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Minnesota, HealthPartners, Medica,
PreferredOne, and UCare) and ClearWay Minnesota. A primary goal of the collaborative is to
allow health care providers to have better access to the tobacco quitline services operated by
each organization. As a result of the collaborative’s work, health care providers can use a single
form and fax number to refer patients who use tobacco to quitline support. Quitline services
and cessation benefits offered by the insurers have also been strengthened.

e Minnesota Department of Health: The Minnesota Department of Health and ClearWay
Minnesota collaborate on many activities, including cessation-focused work. In Fiscal Year 2013,
ClearWay Minnesota partnered with the Minnesota Department of Health on a grant proposal
funded by the U.S. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC). The purpose of the
proposal was to provide resources to states for quitline services, media and systems change. The
proposal was funded and work began in February 2013. Resources from this grant are primarily
being used to help support the systems change in public programs work described under
Cessation Policy — System Integration, above. ClearWay Minnesota partnered with the Health
Department on a second proposal to CDC in Fiscal Year 2014; if awarded, these funds will
support a new outreach initiative targeting Medicaid enrollees. Additionally, as a part of our
benefit design work (see Benefit Design, above), staff have worked with the Department to
facilitate implementation of the Affordable Care Act’s changes to tobacco cessation coverage.
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Minnesota Department of Human Services: ClearWay Minnesota is currently working with the
Minnesota Department of Human Services to identify ways to help address tobacco use among
Minnesota Medical Assistance and MinnesotaCare enrollees.

Minnesota Department of Commerce: As a part of our benefit design work (see Benefit Design,
above), staff members have worked with the Minnesota Department of Commerce to facilitate
implementation of the Affordable Care Act’s changes to tobacco cessation coverage.

North American Quitline Consortium: The North American Quitline Consortium (NAQC) is a
consortium of quitlines across North America that shares information and best practices.
ClearWay Minnesota is an active member of NAQC and has shared information about QUITPLAN
Services with Consortium members on an ongoing basis. The Consortium also serves as a
repository of knowledge and best practices, allowing ClearWay Minnesota to continue to learn
and improve services.

Minnesota Head Start Association: The Minnesota Head Start Association (MHSA) provides a
unified voice for Head Start programs to speak about and act on issues affecting low-income
children and families and works to improve Head Start programs and policies. In July of 2014,
the MHSA board approved a partnership with ClearWay Minnesota to begin addressing tobacco
with Head Start parents on a regular and systematic basis. Our work with the MHSA and Head
Start programs has been part of our Systems Change in Public Programs work (see above).
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B. RESEARCH

One of ClearWay Minnesota’s main goals is to fund research that can be translated into effective
interventions leading to reduced tobacco use and secondhand smoke exposure in Minnesota. ClearWay
Minnesota encourages research that addresses tobacco reduction in communities most affected by
tobacco use and most targeted by tobacco industry marketing.

Since inception through June 30, 2014, ClearWay Minnesota has funded $28 million in research program
grants and contracts (plus an additional $6.4 million for evaluation projects).

Research Grants

ClearWay Minnesota awarded $1,466,641 in grant funding for six research projects during Fiscal Year
2014. Two research grants were awarded to continue a line of research initiated in Fiscal Year 2013 on
the impact of menthol cigarettes. Menthol cigarettes increase smoking initiation among youth, make it
harder for smokers to quit and are disproportionately marketed to African Americans and other priority
populations. Research on this topic will inform ClearWay Minnesota and our partners about how to help
menthol smokers quit and will contribute to federal regulatory efforts. These grants were awarded to:

e The University of Minnesota, for a project titled “Efficacy of Electronic Cigarette Alone and in
Combination with Nicotine Patch Among African American Menthol Smokers.” This three-year
project, not to exceed $499,998, will examine the use of electronic cigarettes to help menthol
smokers quit.

e The University of Minnesota, for a project titled “Effect of Banning Menthol Flavored Cigarettes
on Smoking Cessation.” This three-year project, not to exceed $492,158, will examine smokers’
behavior in response to a simulated ban on menthol cigarettes.

= 2: B i RO
SURGEON GENERAL'S WARNING: Smoking ERE
By Pregnant Women May Result in Fetal ¢
Injury. Premature Birth, And Low Birth Weight. O} 4

Menthol cigarettes are disproportionately marketed to African Americans and other priority populations
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Four research grants were also awarded as a follow-up to formative research conducted in Fiscal Year
2013 that furthered our understanding of secondhand smoke exposure. These new grants seek to
reduce exposure to secondhand smoke and disparities in this exposure across defined populations and
locations in Minnesota. The grants were awarded to:

o The Center for Energy and Environment, for a project titled “Research to Measure Secondhand
Smoke in Vehicles.” This 19-month research project, not to exceed $100,000, will measure
secondhand smoke components in vehicles under various conditions.

e The Public Health Law Center, for a project titled “Adult Foster Care: Smoke-Free Challenges and
Opportunities.” This 17-month research project, not to exceed $125,000, will explore policy
options for providing smoke-free environments in foster care settings for mentally or physically
impaired adults.

e The University of Minnesota, for a project titled, “Impact of Smoke-Free Policy Implementation
in Public Housing Buildings.” This 15-month project, not to exceed $124,616 will examine how
the introduction of a smoke-free policy in subsidized housing affects residents’ attitudes,
behaviors and exposures.

e The University of Minnesota, for a project titled “Concurrent Childhood Screening for Lead and
Tobacco Smoke Exposure at Well-Child Visits.” This two-year research project, not to exceed
$124,869, will explore new methods for promoting smoking cessation among parents and
protecting children from secondhand smoke exposure.

In addition, a pilot grant, not to exceed $25,000, was awarded to the University of Minnesota Program
in Health Disparities Research to fund a project titled “Shisha Smoking Among East Africans in the Twin

Cities: Addressing an Emerging Health Crisis.”

Research Contracts

Minnesota Adult Tobacco Survey: Westat

The Minnesota Adult Tobacco Survey (MATS) is a statewide telephone-based survey of adult
Minnesotans. The survey asks a representative sample of Minnesotans about smoking and quitting
behaviors, secondhand smoke exposure, and attitudes and beliefs about tobacco control measures. This
is the most comprehensive tobacco control surveillance project in Minnesota, and ClearWay Minnesota
uses data from the project in program planning as well as evaluation efforts, including our Legacy
Evaluation. (See Organization — Governance — Fiscal Year 2014 Board Initiatives — Strategic Planning
Developments — Evaluation, p. 7.)

MATS is conducted every three to four years. Prior rounds of MATS were conducted in 1999, 2003, 2007
and 2010. During Fiscal Year 2014, planning and data collection for the fifth round of MATS was
conducted with our partners at the Minnesota Department of Health and our survey vendor, Westat. In
addition to the standard methods used in prior MATS surveys, the 2014 MATS has been designed to
examine differences across eight regions of the state. Data analysis, report writing and dissemination of
MATS 2014 findings will be conducted in Fiscal Year 2015, with the public release scheduled for early in
calendar year 2015.
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Technical Assistance: University of Wisconsin

The University of Wisconsin Center for Tobacco Research and Intervention (UW-CTRI) provides technical
assistance to ClearWay Minnesota’s Research Department and its grantees. Technical assistance is
provided to research grantees in the form of reverse site visits intended to discuss progress on current
research projects funded by ClearWay Minnesota and offer feedback on study implementation,
manuscript review and critique, ad hoc assistance in preparing for conferences or other dissemination
efforts, research design improvement, and other support as needed. The UW-CTRI technical assistance
provides ClearWay Minnesota staff with review of manuscripts, collaboration opportunities,
dissemination of ClearWay Minnesota information via tobacco control community listservs and
reference librarian services for research articles as needed. UW-CTRI also holds weekly seminars in
which ClearWay Minnesota staff may participate. These seminars are typically on tobacco control and
other relevant health topics. In Fiscal Year 2014, UW-CTRI also provided professional consultation on a
number of special projects, including an assessment of the tobacco retail environment following a
tobacco tax increase and a scan of targeted approaches to reach populations living in poverty and those
with a mental illness and/or other substance-use disorders.

Dissemination of Research Findings

ClearWay Minnesota places a high priority on the translation and dissemination of ClearWay Minnesota-
funded research and programs. ClearWay Minnesota staff members actively disseminate results of
research and evaluation findings. Dissemination of this sort has helped to establish ClearWay Minnesota
as a leader in tobacco control, and our specific research findings have advanced knowledge, practices
and policies that reduce tobacco’s harm.

During Fiscal Year 2014 ClearWay Minnesota, in partnership with other Minnesota tobacco control
researchers, participated in numerous national, state and local conference presentations and published
in several peer-reviewed publications. Specifically, ClearWay Minnesota staff published several peer-
reviewed scientific papers:

e Senior Research Program Manager Joanne D’Silva and Vice President Dr. Barbara Schillo co-
authored “Evaluation of Use of Stage of Tobacco Epidemic to Predict Post-Immigration Smoking
Behaviors,” published in Nicotine and Tobacco Research.

e Director of Research Dr. Raymond Boyle and Senior Research Program Manager Ann St. Claire
co-authored “The Land of 10,000 Tobacco Products: How Minnesota Led the Way in Regulating
Tobacco Products,” published in the American Journal of Public Health.

e Ms. D’Silva co-authored “The Wiidookowishin Program: Results from a Qualitative Process
Evaluation of a Culturally Tailored Commercial Tobacco Cessation Program,” published in
American Indian and Alaska Native Mental Health Research.

e Dr. Boyle co-authored “Minnesota Smokers’ Perceived Helpfulness of 2009 Federal Tobacco Tax
Increase in Assisting Smoking Cessation: A Prospective Cohort Study,” published in BMC Public
Health.

In addition, Dr. Boyle and Ms. D’Silva facilitated two symposia at the 19" annual meeting of the Society
for Research on Nicotine and Tobacco. The first focused on the impact of a tobacco price increase on
tobacco marketing, consumer purchasing behavior and cessation. The second symposium addressed the
emerging science on menthol cigarettes and implications for treatment and policy. Both symposia
included five Minnesota-based researchers as well as nationally known tobacco control experts who
served as discussants.

32



Grantee dissemination

The dissemination of findings from ClearWay Minnesota grant-funded research projects has been critical
in advancing the science of tobacco control in Minnesota. We encourage grantees to take advantage of
opportunities to publicize and share research results, and we provide them with dissemination awards
for activities that make knowledge, tools and other products resulting from ClearWay Minnesota-funded
research widely available.

During the 2014 Fiscal Year, highlights of grantee dissemination included the following projects:

o Mike Freiberg of the Public Health Law Center was a plenary speaker at the Seventh National
Smokeless and Spit Tobacco Summit in August of 2013. He presented as part of a panel
discussion entitled “Regulating Smokeless Tobacco: Current Regulations, Policy Options, and
Practical Experience.” Mr. Freiberg’s research is applied research and he has reached a large
variety of audiences with his dissemination work (e.g., in a journal supplement and at several
conferences). Additionally, Mr. Freiberg has provided comments on local and federal regulations
for electronic cigarettes, hookahs and water pipes, snus and little cigars. He presented this
research at the Society for Research in Nicotine and Tobacco (SRNT) national conference in
February of 2014.

e Kerry Cork of the Public Health Law Center presented work on advancing regulations for
menthol cigarettes in Minnesota at the Promising Practices to Promote Tobacco-Free Active
Living and Healthy Eating in Low Socioeconomic Status Communities conference in April of 2014.

e Kris Rhodes of the American Indian Cancer Foundation presented on her research on American
Indian Systems for Tobacco Addiction Treatment at the Mayo Clinic Spirit of Eagles national
Conference in October of 2013, and at the National Indian Health Boards Annual Tribal Public
Health Summit in April of 2014.

e Kola Okuyemi of the University of Minnesota presented his research on cessation preferences of
menthol smokers at the SRNT national conference in February of 2014.

e Michael Kotlyar of the University of Minnesota presented his research on smoker response to
the banning of menthol cigarettes at the SRNT national conference in February of 2014.
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C. POLICY

Research shows that public policies that reduce secondhand smoke exposure and make tobacco
products less accessible work with quit-smoking services to reduce tobacco’s harm to the public.

In compliance with the Court Order of February 25, 2003, approving ClearWay Minnesota’s New
Comprehensive Plans for Governance and Individual Smoking Cessation Activities, ClearWay Minnesota
spends at least as much on individual cessation as on environmental approach programs. As long as
parity between individual cessation and environmental programs is maintained, the Court permits the
ClearWay Minnesota Board of Directors to approve work supporting the creation, implementation and
defense of public policies to reduce tobacco’s harm. From inception, ClearWay Minnesota has awarded
$38.7 million to programs supporting individual-level cessation and $19.7 million to environmentally
based programs. In addition, $9.4 million has been spent on surveillance/assessment programs, $9.5
million on capacity-building programs and $855,000 on other programs.

Statewide Policy Work

Legislative developments

Defending the 2013 tobacco tax Increase

During the 2014 Legislative Session, ClearWay

Minnesota and Blue Cross and Blue Shield of

Minnesota led Raise it for Health, a coalition of fOl’ hea|th
more than 30 organizations including the American Reduce Tobacco’s Harm in Minnesota
Cancer Society-Cancer Action Network, the

American Heart Association, the American Lung

Association, the Minnesota Medical Association and Mayo Clinic.

The coalition came together around the goal of increasing and maintaining high tobacco prices — one of
the most effective ways to help current tobacco users quit and to prevent youth from starting.

In 2013, the coalition successfully lobbied for passage of a significant tobacco tax increase. In 2014, the
coalition focused on keeping the price of tobacco high and opposing any efforts to roll back or weaken
the tax increase. Fortunately, no significant attempts to roll back the legislation occurred, and legislators
were further educated about the importance of keeping our state’s tobacco prices high.

Smoke-free foster care
ClearWay Minnesota’s main legislative priority in 2014 was supporting the passage of smoke-free foster
care legislation to ensure that all children in foster homes have safe and healthy living environments.

There is no safe level of secondhand smoke,
especially for children. Secondhand smoke is a
known cause of Sudden Infant Death Syndrome
(SIDS), respiratory infections, asthma attacks and
ear infections. Children exposed to secondhand
smoke inhale the same cancer-causing substances
as smokers, and are particularly vulnerable
because their bodies are still developing.
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ClearWay Minnesota partnered with several organizations, including the American Lung Association, the
Association for Nonsmokers — Minnesota and the American Cancer Society-Cancer Action Network, to
support statewide smoke-free foster care legislation during the 2014 Session. Ultimately, the coalition
was successful and helped pass a law that prohibits smoking in foster homes and vehicles when a foster
child is present. This will help to ensure the children in foster care are not exposed to dangerous
secondhand smoke that could make them sick or exacerbate existing health problems.

The new law was noteworthy in that it prohibits smoking
outdoors in close proximity to foster children. Medical studies
have shown that tobacco smoke exposes users and bystanders to
serious health risks, including in close-quarter outdoor areas.

WE SUPPORT

KE-FREE
M STER CARE

The smoke-free foster care bill will protect our state’s most
vulnerable children from secondhand smoke. The majority of
children who live in foster homes in the United States have at
least one chronic medical condition, and ensuring healthy,
smoke-free environments for them will help them to thrive.

Common-sense restrictions for e-cigarettes
ClearWay Minnesota also led the Freedom to
Breathe Coalition this year. This group focused
on common-sense restrictions for e-cigarettes,
a tobacco product that has dramatically risen
in popularity over the last few years.

E-cigarettes are devices containing nicotine

and other chemicals that produce a vapor that is inhaled. Studies show that e-cigarette vapor contains
nicotine, heavy metals and other toxic compounds. Also concerning is that e-cigarettes are sold in kid-
friendly flavors like blueberry waffle, gummy bear, cotton candy and many others, and that the use of e-
cigarettes among middle- and high-school students increased significantly between 2011 and 2012.

The Freedom to Breathe Coalition successfully helped pass legislation that will ban the use of e-
cigarettes in government-owned or -licensed buildings, including:

e Hospitals, health care clinics and doctor’s offices;

e Most government-owned buildings (including correctional facilities);

e Any facility owned by the University of Minnesota or Minnesota State Colleges and Universities
(including dorm rooms); and

e Licensed daycare facilities, including home daycares during hours of operation.

Additionally, the following provisions were put in place:

e E-cigarettes can no longer be sold from kiosks;

e E-cigarette liquids must be sold in child-resistant packaging to prevent poisonings;

e Just like tobacco retailers, e-cigarette retailers must obtain a local license;

e All e-cigarettes will have to be sold from behind the counter or in locked cases in stores;
e The penalties for selling any type of e-cigarettes to minors were reinforced.
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Since this statewide legislation passed, many cities, counties and businesses have established further
limits for where e-cigarettes can be used. ClearWay Minnesota will continue to support local efforts to
protect Minnesotans from these products until more is known about them.

Day at the Capitol

On April 8, 2014, ClearWay Minnesota hosted a Day at the Capitol for our local policy grantees and their
networks as well as for members of the Leadership and Advocacy Institute to Advance Minnesota’s
Parity for Priority Populations (LAAMPP) and our statewide partners. The purpose of this event was to
provide a training and educational opportunity for participants and to show the grassroots momentum
around our legislative agenda.

The event involved nearly 200 participants from around the state, many of whom were youth. Through
our materials, youth t-shirts, buttons and poster boards for targeted elected officials, we had a unified
message and visible presence at the Capitol.

Health advocates from around the state visited the State Capitol in April

Rep. Laurie Halverson, who authored the e-cigarette legislation, and Rep. Tina Liebling, who authored
the smoke-free foster care legislation, spoke at our opening session.

Rep. Laurie Halverson (I.) and Rep. Tina Liebling, authors of tobacco control bills during the 2014 Legislative Session

Advocates collectively met with over 65 legislative offices that day, educating their lawmakers about
tobacco’s harm and asking them to support our three initiatives:

o Defending the significant tobacco tax increase that passed in 2013;
e Smoke-free foster care legislation; and
e Creating common-sense restrictions for e-cigarettes.

Day at the Capitol contributed to the success we had with our legislative agenda this year.
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Day at the Capitol gave Minnesotans from around the state the chance to discuss tobacco issues with lawmakers

ClearWay Minnesota also used this event to leverage earned media. Participants wrote letters to the
editor while at the Capitol, and several of those letters were published. After the event, ClearWay
Minnesota sent out 37 tailored press releases (featuring 64 legislators) to local papers and saw a steady
stream of them published in the weeks following the event.

Red Wing residents talk HERALD

Letter to the Editor smOkmg at the caplt°| s v

Dear Editor: unregulated, they could contai
Our names are Kristen and  other toxic substances, and wi

Melanic Eggler and Aurora Might not even know.
Cagnizi, and we are from Rep- Savick was also suppor
Hayficld. We got a chance this ive of the proposed legislatiof

o . to make foster homes smoke]
week to go to the Capitol in i .

3 ee. She is a foster parent. an
St. Pau! 1o talk to legislators worrics that cigarette usc i
about smoke-free foster care.  gon of kids is dangerou
e-cigareties, and advocate for  pecause of secondhand smoky
some reasonable restrictions  and could make smoking loo
on c-cigarettes. normal.
We met with Sen. Dan Sparks  Thank you. Reps. Sparks an
and Rep. Shannon Savick  Stavick, for your support (o
because we believe that there  common sense regulations o
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(See also Communications and Outreach — Community Outreach — Media Analysis, p. 59.)
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Public Affairs Contracts

In Fiscal Year 2014, ClearWay Minnesota had a lobbying contract with Lockridge Grindal Nauen P.L.L.P, a
public affairs contract with Himle Rapp & Co. and a media tracking and analysis contract with Cision
(formerly Vocus). All of the contracts were renewed by the Board for Fiscal Year 2014.

Local Community Grants and Contracts

ClearWay Minnesota funds local efforts to organize public support around tobacco control policies and
related issues. This year, seven grantees completed their first year of funding under Request for
Proposals (RFP) PA-2012-01:

e The Greater Mankato and
Northeast chapters of the
American Lung Association in
Minnesota

e The Association for
Nonsmokers — Minnesota

e (CentraCare Health Foundation
(organizing the Crave the
Change initiative)

e Clay-Wilkin Community Health
Board (organizing PartnerSHIP
4 Health)

e Goodhue County (organizing

American Lung
Association - Northeast

. PartnerSHIP 4 Health
.

Associafion for Non
Smokers - Minnesota

The Four Comners

the 4 Corners Partnership) Partnorship

e Southwest Health and Human e _ j | [t T
Services (organizing the i
Southwest Community Health T
Improvement Program) o

Policy deliverables included: = —— p MOWER rxumoﬂg,@]

e Establishing, expanding and
mobilizing local coalitions of grassroots advocates through community outreach and organizing;
e Educating the public about tobacco cessation, QUITPLAN Services, and public policy and
research aligned with ClearWay Minnesota’s 2012-2014 Strategic Plan; and
e Supporting statewide initiatives to protect people from secondhand smoke.

In addition, the grantees selected optional policy advocacy deliverables to pursue, including:

e Increasing the availability of smoke-free multi-unit housing;

Establishing tobacco-free college campuses;

Passing smoke-free polices in foster homes and daycares;

Updating and strengthening local tobacco ordinances;

Creating tobacco-free grounds policies at workplaces and healthcare facilities; and
e Addressing tobacco advertising and promotions in retail environments.
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During Fiscal Year 2014, local policy grantees helped advance policies that reduce tobacco’s harm at
both the state and local level.

Pat McKone of the American Lung Association in Minnesota (r.), pictured with bill author Sen. Kathy Sheran,
shows state lawmakers an e-cigarette during a committee hearing

Local grassroots accomplishments

Restricting e-cigarettes at the local level

ClearWay Minnesota funded some of the first communities to create
restrictions for e-cigarettes. Duluth, Beltrami County, Bemidji, Ely and
Hermantown all created policies to include e-cigarettes in their
indoor air laws this past year. Additional communities took action on
e-cigarettes by including them in their definition of tobacco products
and banning the sampling of e-cigarettes in stores. These first local
policies showed that there was interest all around Minnesota for
restricting these new products and set the stage for our statewide
work during the 2014 Session.

Smoke-free foster care

Also this year, Ramsey County passed a policy making all of their foster homes smoke-free. Ramsey
County was the ninth community in Minnesota to pass such as policy, and this local work contributed to
our statewide success in passing a smoke-free foster care bill. Our local policy grantee, the Association
for Nonsmokers — Minnesota, worked in collaboration with LAAMPP fellows representing African and
African American populations in Minnesota to pass the policy. Both groups had excellent feedback about
the process of partnering and their ultimate policy victory.

39



Coalition members worked to pass a smoke-free foster care policy in Ramsey County

“Little cigars”

Finally, the Association for Nonsmokers — Minnesota -
worked very closely with the city of Brooklyn Center
as they moved to update their local tobacco
ordinance. The policy raised the minimum price for a
single individually wrapped, flavored “little cigar” to
$2.10. Previously, some of these products had 12 News: complete newscast Friday May 2, 2014
retailed for as little as 89 cents each. Raising the price
will make them less appealing and accessible to
young people. The ordinance also requires that e-
cigarettes be subject to requirements for other
tobacco products, such as being kept behind the
counter and subject to local compliance checks.

@rdlnonce
» S
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At the beginning of each year of funding, grantees $2.1 0 or more
are required to submit objectives and to track and

report progress toward achieving targets on a
quarterly basis. Our staff reviews and approves all objectives and prowdes tracking and feedback in
response to the quarterly reports.

Evaluation of local policy grants

Additionally, each quarter grantees are required to submit reports on their progress toward measurable
outcomes in the areas of public education, coalition building and policy advocacy. In Fiscal Year 2014,
the local policy grantees accomplished the following:

e Published 302 pieces of earned media;

e Placed 24 pieces of paid media;

e Made 121 public presentations about tobacco’s harm, QUITPLAN Services and tobacco policies;
e Participated in 107 community events;

e Conducted 421 activities that reached out to elected officials; and

e Passed 57 local policies that reduce exposure to secondhand smoke and decrease tobacco use.

We will continue to track the progress and local policy grantees and report their outcomes annually.
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D. COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

During Fiscal Year 2014, ClearWay Minnesota continued engaging members of Minnesota’s diverse
communities in tobacco control efforts and working to reduce the harm that commercial tobacco causes
them. (Commercial tobacco refers to manufactured products such as cigarettes, not to the sacred and
traditional use of tobacco by American Indians and other groups.)

ClearWay Minnesota identifies as “priority populations” groups of people who:

e Have higher prevalence of tobacco use;

e Are disproportionately impacted by tobacco’s harm;

e Are less likely to use tobacco cessation services; and/or
e Are targeted by the tobacco industry.

These populations include American Indians; Africans and African Americans; Chicanos/Latinos; Asians,
Asian Americans and Pacific Islanders; Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender and Queer (LGBTQ)
communities; and other populations.

ClearWay Minnesota supports community development through:

e Grants and planning grants;

e Contracts;

e Technical assistance, and educational and innovative training opportunities to develop capacity
in priority populations; and

e Support for community activities.

Community Development Grants

Tribal Tobacco Education and Policy initiative (TTEP)

The impact of commercial tobacco use in American Indian Nations in Minnesota represents a real public
health crisis. Fifty-nine percent of American Indians in Minnesota report being current smokers
(compared to 16 percent of all Minnesota adults). In Minnesota, five of the six leading causes of death
among American Indians are related to commercial tobacco use: cancer, coronary heart disease,
diabetes, stroke and lower respiratory disease.

ClearWay Minnesota supports Minnesota’s American Indian advocates in their work to advance smoke-
free policies on tribal lands. In 2008, we initiated a Tribal Tobacco Education and Policy (TTEP) Request
for Proposals (RFP) to develop a reservation initiative promoting American Indian health and advancing
smoke-free tribal government policies on tribal lands in Minnesota by:

e Restoring traditional and sacred tobacco use;

e Addressing and reducing tobacco industry marketing and influence;

e Creating formal and informal smoke-free policies and system changes; and
e Creating businesses and casinos that are smoke-free.
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In Fiscal Year 2014, ClearWay Minnesota continued the TTEP initiative with five funded grants to Bois
Forte Band of Chippewa, Leech Lake Band of Ojibwe, Mille Lacs Band of Ojibwe, Upper Sioux Community
and the White Earth Band of Ojibwe.

Each of the reservations developed strategies based on ClearWay Minnesota guidelines and the
readiness of their unique environments, with the overall goal of preparing their communities to advance
smoke-free tribal policies. Core elements across all grants included:

Staff capacity, community support and resources for ongoing sustained efforts.
Restore traditional/sacred tobacco traditions.

Address and reduce tobacco industry marketing and influence.

Create formal and informal smoke-free policies and system changes.
Businesses and casinos in tribal communities are smoke-free.

Notable activities and outcomes for each grantee for the past year included:

Bois Forte Band of Chippewa

Created and provided clear signage for commercial tobacco-free outdoor powwows;

Passed a policy to prohibit smoking in all Bois Forte Band tribally owned and leased vehicles; and
Continued to educate all Bois Forte communities on commercial tobacco, traditional tobacco
and secondhand smoke.

Bois Forte community education event

Leech Lake Band of Ojibwe

Held a smoke-free outdoor powwow;

Continued to engage seven local American Indian councils to participate in Leech Lake’s Tobacco
Coalition as members of a tobacco advisory committee consisting of key stakeholders (including
elders, spiritual leaders and other tribal members); and

Engaged spiritual gathering places for leaders and elders to educate on traditional tobacco ways
and to promote commercial tobacco-free environments.
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Non-smokers and proud supporters of the
Smoke Free Pow-Wow Day.
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Leech Lake Tribal Leadership supporting Smoke-free Powwow Day

Mille Lacs Band of Ojibwe

Created a smoke-free Wewinabi (cultural immersion school) campus;

Continued to hold a smoke-free State of the Band address and “tiny tots” powwow;
Conducted dialogues for traditional tobacco stories to be shared with the community; and
Continued to partner with a traditional healer/leader to help provide tobacco education to all
three districts and urban communities.

THIS'IS A
SMOKE FREE
ZONE WITHIN

20 FEET

FROM ENTRANCE

WEWINABI
SMOKE-FREE
CAMPUS

KEEP TOBACCO SACRED PROTECT QUR
CHILOREN FROM SECOND HAND SNOKE

KEEP TOBACCO SACRED EXPOSURE. MIIGWECH

Commercial tobacco-free signage from Mille Lacs

Upper Sioux Community

Held a community-wide event that educated on leadership and traditional tobacco teachings;
Continued to educate on their informal e-cigarette policy;

Posted signage for their 27-foot smoke-free buffer zones and other smoke-free areas;
Educated on the difference between commercial tobacco abuse and traditional tobacco
medicines; and

Continued collaboration with Minnesota Department of Health-funded tribal programs to
educate the community on commercial tobacco issues and to promote QUITPLAN Services.
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E-CIGARETTES MAKE IT EASIER
FOR KIDS AND FIRST-TIMERS TO
TRY SMOKING.

~E-cigarettes come in many flavors.
The flavors may make them easier
to try.

~Some of the flavors-such as grape, o
strawberry, and fruit punch-look like ~ RemenwV*
they are made to attract kids!

~The sweet flavors still have nicotine.

And once a person gets hooked on REMEMBER YOUR
the nicotine in an e-cigarette,
they v;:\gy try comri;rgZIelobacco Pow ER !
and other products.
To keep
the people
around you
safe
from second and
third hand
smoke

It is never too late to quit
smoking commercial tobacco!

TOBACCO \\'z‘(m’!_ ‘(i\flutl.’,‘

20-564-6341

TRADITIONAL 320-564-6319

Upper Sioux Community e-cigarette informational brochures

White Earth Nation

Created and passed a smoke-free park policy at Mahnomen,;

Presented indoor air quality information to their casino and leadership on the dangers of
commercial tobacco use;

Held a smoke-free outdoor powwow;

Educated on the harms of commercial tobacco abuse and traditional tobacco medicines; and
Continued collaboration with Minnesota Department of Health-funded tribal programs to
educate the community on commercial tobacco issues and to promote QUITPLAN Services.
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Evaluation of the Tribal Tobacco Education and Policy initiative (TTEP)

Scott Consulting has evaluated the Tribal Tobacco Education and Policy (TTEP) initiative since 2009. The
ongoing evaluation informs both TTEP grantees and ClearWay Minnesota on the initiative’s progress. An
annual evaluation report will be presented to the Board in March of 2015. Data from this report will be
shared in next year’s Report to the Court.

Partnerships

Many components help make the TTEP initiative successful. Evaluation supports and demonstrates the
overall project strengths and challenges. (See Evaluation of the Tribal Tobacco Education and Policy
initiative [TTEP], above.) Training, technical assistance and mentorship build skills for our coordinators to
accomplish their overarching policy goals. The Tribal Tobacco Use Prevalence (TTUP) studies provide
data for our grantees to expand their knowledge and inform their work. Our partnerships with Native
Americans in Philanthropy (NAP), the National Native Network (NNN) and the American Indian Cancer
Foundation continue to build a successful statewide and national initiative to advance commercial
tobacco-free policies on tribal lands. We also are working with NAP to discuss collaborations that could
occur so that other organizations continue to improve health equity around commercial tobacco use in
Indian Country once ClearWay Minnesota’s funding is gone.

Partnerships

National Native
Network

(CDC Funded)

*Training & TA
inabili Minnesota
*Sustainability
(Dialogue with Depar;:;tehnt of
Shakopee)
Blue Cross Blue
Shield
*TTEP Evaluation *Mentorship
*Other Partners
Native
Americans in

*Tribal Tobacco $
Use Prevalence Philanthropy
American Indian

Cancer

Foundation
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Leech Lake Tribal College commercial tobacco-free policy

In Fiscal Year 2014 ClearWay Minnesota funded a grant to Leech Lake Tribal
College (LLTC), located on the Leech Lake Band of Ojibwe Nation. The goal of
this project is for LLTC to create and implement a commercial tobacco-free
campus policy by the start of fall term in 2014. The project will educate
students, staff and community members about traditional uses of tobacco and
the harmful health effects of commercial tobacco, and will promote quitting
with a contest.

Evaluation of Leech Lake Tribal College commercial tobacco-free policy

Since the LLTC commercial tobacco-free policy project is a unique effort in Minnesota, ClearWay
Minnesota engaged an evaluator to document progress on the project. Only one other American Indian
college and one technical college have adopted commercial tobacco-free policies for their campuses.
This evaluation is being supported in collaboration with Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Minnesota and the
American Indian College Fund, and results from this project will be disseminated to other tribal colleges
in Minnesota and the nation. The evaluation report will be available in spring of 2015.

Keep Tobacco Sacred campaign

ClearWay Minnesota supports ongoing education around commercial tobacco control initiatives in
Minnesota’s Indian Country. We worked with tribal grantees, stakeholders and partners to initiate a
culturally tailored campaign to serve as an educational tool for American Indian communities and
partners on the differences between traditional tobacco and commercial tobacco use. In 2013, we
developed a calendar to educate on this topic. All funded tribal grantees received calendars with their
specific tribal logo, and all sponsors and partners who contributed to this project received calendars as
well. Grantees were delighted to receive the calendars, which told their stories of traditional tobacco.
The calendar was distributed in their communities as part of an overall effort to promote health in a
traditional storytelling way.
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TRADITIONAL TOBACCO CALENDAR

2014

Keep Tobacco Sacred: Traditional Tobacco Calendar

Additionally, we have been working with tribal communities to create an advertising campaign on the
same theme for American Indian communities. With community and tribal input and in collaboration
with ClearWay Minnesota’s Communications Department we developed the message “Value our
Tradition: Keep Tobacco Sacred” — a concept that would resonate with Indian Country and serve as an
educational tool for the broader public. (See Communications and Outreach — Advertising — American
Indian Campaign, pp. 56-57.)
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Keep Tobacco Sacred billboard near the Bois Forte reservation

Dialogues with Indian gaming

American Indian Nations are sovereign, and so Minnesota’s smoke-free law does not apply to
reservation workplaces, including their popular casinos. To advance smoke-free tribal policies, it is
important to engage and educate the National Indian Gaming Association, the Minnesota Indian Gaming
Association and Reservation Economic Summits regarding secondhand smoke and its harms.

In Fiscal Year 2014 we continued to support the American Indian Cancer Foundation to lead dialogues
with the Indian gaming industry and businesses in Indian Country in Minnesota and the nation. Indian
gaming and tribal decision-makers have been provided with inaccurate information by the commercial
tobacco industry to deter them from making positive changes. It is important to develop trusted
relationships with gaming personnel to show how they can be part of the solution.

This past year, the American Indian Cancer Foundation:

e Continued developing relationships and held conversations with the National Indian Gaming
Association, the Minnesota Gaming Association and Reservation Economic Summits regarding
secondhand smoke to advance smoke-free policies on tribal lands, especially casinos; and

e Continued one-on-one conversations with key tribal leaders on this issue and suggested a
comprehensive approach to commercial tobacco control that includes smoke-free casinos.

Community Development Contracts

Tribal technical assistance, training and mentorship

In Fiscal Year 2014, ClearWay Minnesota’s Community Development Department continued to provide
technical assistance, training and mentorship to Minnesota’s American Indian communities supporting
efforts to advance smoke-free policies on tribal lands. ClearWay Minnesota also continued our
partnership with the Minnesota Department of Health’s Office of Tobacco Prevention and Control, the
Statewide Health Improvement Program (SHIP) and Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Minnesota, all of
which have mutual goals promoting health in Indian Country. These partners have shared the cost of
trainings as appropriate.

47



Our contractors for training and mentorship are Wellstone Native American Leadership Program and
Mahnokini & Associates. These two contractors are uniquely qualified for this work. This year, Lori New
Breast of Mahnokini & Associates provided training to Tribal Tobacco Education and Policy grantees on
how to engage communities and develop leadership to advance smoke-free policies. The Wellstone
Native American Leadership Program complemented this effort with several training activities.

Leadership and Advocacy Institute to Advance Minnesota’s Parity for Priority Populations (LAAMPP)

Since 2005, the cornerstone of our work with diverse communities in Minnesota has been the
Leadership and Advocacy Institute to Advance Parity for Minnesota’s Priority Populations (LAAMPP).
LAAMPP builds advocacy and leadership skills for effective tobacco control among members of
Minnesota’s African and African American; American Indian; Asian, Asian American and Pacific Islander;
Chicano/Latino; and Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual,
Transgender and Queer (LGBTQ) populations.

LAAMPP Fellows initiate tobacco control
interventions and share knowledge with their
communities. These Fellows have established
tobacco control policies in their communities
and joined statewide policy efforts such as
those to raise the price of tobacco and ensure
smoke-free foster care in Minnesota.

Asian Pacific Partners for Empowerment,
Advocacy and Leadership (APPEAL) is the
contractor for the Leadership Institute,
facilitating and organizing all trainings. APPEAL
was selected through a competitive process in
2005, and was re-awarded the contract
through a competitive process in 2011.

In Fiscal Year 2014, the third LAAMPP Institute
completed its trainings, which included:

o Webinar: Mapping Places, Mapping Faces: Using Community Maps to Connect People
(November 2013)

e Webinar: Maximizing Your Capital and Social Networks (January 2014)

e LAAMPP lll Capstone (March 2014) — 24 Fellows graduated from the LAAMPP Il Institute

At the final Capstone, Fellows invited tobacco control funders to hear stories about engaging with
communities and recommendations for working with priority populations. Recommendations including
funding future priority population initiatives, increasing priority population representation among
funding organization staff, integrating priority populations into strategic planning and sustaining
approaches that serve these communities.

48



Fellows shared the following statements at the Capstone event:

“LAAMPP allowed me to build bridges, expand networks and create personal friendships.”
- Lina Houston (LGBTQ priority population)

“LAAMPP has opened opportunities to enrich my life with leadership skills and professional
networks to continue this work and inspire others.”
-Tina Murphy (Asian, Asian American and Pacific Islander priority population)

“LAAMPP has given me the confidence to talk to decision makers.”
-Perla Montoya (Chicano/Latino priority population)

“LAAMPP gives me motivation when my energy for tobacco control is gone.”
-Dominick Knutson (American Indian priority population)

“LAAMPP has opened the door for me to meet new friends and interact with other cross-
cultural community groups.”
-Margaret Coleman (African/African American priority population)

LAAMPP projects
LAAMPP Fellows are provided $45,000 per community to develop time-limited tobacco control projects,
reviewed by other Fellows and approved by ClearWay Minnesota. LAAMPP Il projects included:

e An African and African American community proposal to collaborate with the Ramsey Tobacco
Coalition and pass a smoke-free foster care policy in Ramsey County. The Fellows also assisted
with the state smoke-free foster care initiative that was successfully passed in 2014. (See Policy
— Statewide Policy Work — Legislative Developments — Smoke-Free Foster Care, pp. 34-35.)

e An American Indian community project to create a report that documents how the commercial
tobacco industry targets American Indian communities with their deadly products. This report
will be used to educate community and leaders in efforts to reduce commercial tobacco use and
advance smoke-free policies in Indian Country.

e An Asian, Asian American and Pacific Islander community project that created a smoke-free
grounds policy for the Hmongtown Marketplace in St. Paul. Extensive outreach and education
with businesses built support for this policy.

e A Chicano/Latino community project in collaboration with Communidades Latinas Unidas En
Servicio (CLUES) and the Association for Nonsmokers — Minnesota (ANSR-MN). LAAMPP Fellows
raised awareness of the harms of commercial tobacco and secondhand smoke, and worked to
pass tobacco-free policies in Chicano/Latino communities. In the metro area, the project
resulted in two apartment complexes going smoke-free, and in Mankato and Willmar two
churches made their parking lots and grounds smoke-free.

e A Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender and Queer (LGBTQ) community project that focused
efforts and interventions in Duluth-area LGBTQ communities to implement smoke-free policies.
The Fellows were successful in implementing three smoke-free policies, including Duluth-
Superior Pride, the Clayton Jackson McGhie Memorial and Community Action Duluth. In
addition, this project developed cultural competency materials regarding LGBTQ inclusion in the
greater tobacco control movement. The LGBTQ Fellows put together a resource packet to
include in the next LAAMPP cohort resource binder about LGBTQ identities and how to
respectfully include them in multicultural spaces.
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Evaluation of LAAMPP

The LAAMPP Institute is an innovative program and the first of its kind to address diverse tobacco
control issues for priority populations through culturally tailored training, capacity building, leadership
development and technical assistance.

Evaluation of LAAMPP is comprehensive, and seeks to look beyond individual impact, to fully explore
what happens to social relationships/networks as a result of LAAMPP participation and to document
change at the systems and community level resulting from LAAMPP Fellows’ actions.

The evaluation of LAAMPP Ill will address the following research questions:

e |sthere anincrease in Fellows’ motivation and confidence to develop skills and see themselves
as leaders in creating community change?

e  What social relationships and networks are developed within the Institute, communities and
cross-culturally?

e What changes happen at the systems and community level as a result of actions taken by the
Fellows?

The evaluation component of LAAMPP began with the Core Leadership Summit on September 28, 2012.
During Fiscal Year 2014, the evaluator interviewed Fellows and staff and observed LAAMPP Institute
trainings and related activities to collect data for the evaluation. The evaluation will be completed in
September 2014.

Findings from the evaluation will be shared with stakeholders and disseminated broadly through peer-
reviewed publications. The evaluation will also contribute to building the evidence base for effective
strategies to develop leadership among priority population communities. Finally, the evaluation will be
used to interest other funders in supporting the LAAMPP project. A summary of findings will be included
in the 2015 Report to the Court.

Post-program survey report — LAAMPP ||

The second LAAMPP Institute was held from 2009 — 2011. As part of our ongoing effort to contribute to
the evidence base of effective strategies to develop leadership among priority population communities,
we conduct follow-up surveys with each cohort of LAAMPP Institutes for three years. This past year we
conducted our second survey with LAAMPP |l Fellows to determine their ongoing progress in tobacco
control and leadership development.

The second follow-up survey that was made available to all 29 Fellows who had completed the program.
Twenty-one of 29 Fellows completed surveys, for a 72 percent response rate.

In this survey, 20 of 21 Fellows (95 percent) reported applying knowledge and skills acquired through
the Leadership Institute some two years after conclusion of the formal trainings. Further, more than two
thirds of the Fellows reported applying knowledge and/or skills from all five core competencies. The
surveys show that LAAMPP |l Fellows continue to use the skills that they learned in the Institute and that
at least half of the Fellows remain involved in tobacco control activities two years after completing the
Institute. ClearWay Minnesota plans to use the results from the follow-up survey, in conjunction with
other evaluation efforts, to contribute to promising and/or best practices in building priority population
leaders for tobacco control. A copy of the survey is attached as Appendix M.
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LAAMPP Il Fellows

-

Policy Champion Jack Ayim (r.), with Rep. Peggy Scott

In 2013, we engaged the Headwaters Foundation for Justice to recruit LAAMPP alumni representing
Minnesota’s diverse communities and engage them with mainstream tobacco control efforts related to
e-cigarette and smoke-free foster care state legislation. (See Policy — Statewide Policy Work — Legislative
Developments — Smoke-Free Foster Care and Common-Sense Restrictions for E-Cigarettes, pp. 34-36.)
LAAMPP Policy Champion roles in this effort were:

e Conducting outreach and education in their communities;

e Participating in the Minnesota Health Equity and ClearWay Minnesota Days at the Capitol;

e Participating in the Raise it for Health Coalition;

e Advocating and lobbying policymakers; and

e Presenting at the Power in Unity Conference — Innovation to Equity: Eliminating Tobacco
Disparities in Minnesota Conference.
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The Policy Champions were excellent spokespersons, active in doing outreach in their communities,
testifying at the Legislature and communicating with elected officials to convince them to support the
tobacco control legislation. In the end, statewide legislation on e-cigarettes and smoke-free foster care
was passed.

Conferences

NOVEMBER 21-22, 2013
www.powerinunitymn.org
Power in Unity

On November 21-22, 2013 the Innovation to Equitv
third Power in Unity Conference
— Innovation to Equity:
Eliminating Tobacco Disparities in Minnesota Conference — was held in Bloomington. The conference
highlighted critical tobacco control issues in Minnesota’s priority populations and set the tone for a
powerful priority population movement towards parity and equity in commercial tobacco control in
Minnesota. This conference brought together national, state and local advocates and allies that will help
create a vision and movement within priority populations to address the harm that commercial tobacco
causes their people.

Eliminating Tobacco Disparities in Minnesota

Promising Practices

In April, ClearWay Minnesota and LAAMPP
Policy Champions participated with the third
annual national conference, Promising Practices
to Promote Tobacco-Free Active Living and
Healthy Eating in Low Socioeconomic Status
Communities, in the Washington, D.C., area.
ClearWay Minnesota was a sponsor of this
national conference, which welcomed
participants from all over the world.

PROMISING | Tobacco-Free Active Living
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The conference addressed three goals:

1. To share emerging/promising systems-change strategies and practices to improve the health
outcomes of low-socioeconomic-status communities;

2. To build the leadership capacity of attendees in reducing commercial tobacco use, increasing
healthy eating, and encouraging active living in low-socioeconomic populations through policy
and programmatic initiatives; and

3. To facilitate cross-pollination of lessons learned and recommendations between the fields of
tobacco and obesity prevention.

ClearWay Minnesota and LAAMPP personnel gave three presentations at this conference:
e Promoting Policy Change to Address Tobacco Disparities in Minnesota Tribal Nations, Sheryl
Scott (Scott Consulting Partners), CoCo Villaluz (ClearWay Minnesota). This panel discussion

examined ClearWay Minnesota’s work to advance commercial tobacco-control policies in Indian
Country.
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o Reducing Tobacco-Related Disparities Among Low-Socioeconomic American Indian
Communities, Linda Bosma (Bosma Consulting, LLC), Joanne D'Silva (ClearWay Minnesota). The
panel discussion highlighted ClearWay Minnesota’s efforts to engage American Indian

communities in cessation efforts.

e  WITH Not For: Community-Led Policy Change, Jaime Martinez (ClearWay Minnesota); David
Nicholson (Headwaters Foundation for Justice); and Joo Hee Pomplun, Ani Koch and Dr.
Jonathon Rose (LAAMPP Fellows). This workshop discussed reducing tobacco-related health
disparities in low-socioeconomic populations by ensuring that community-based approaches
and community-led voices are included in health improvement efforts.

Healthy Native Communities: The Role of Tribes and Funders

As part of ClearWay Minnesota’s
commitment to build
sustainability for our work in
Indian country we have
partnered with Native Americans
in Philanthropy (NAP) to hold a
series of dialogues with funding
partners and tribal leadership.
OnJune 17, 2014, NAP and
ClearWay Minnesota invited
American Indian leaders and the
philanthropic community for a
conversation on roles in
supporting healthy American
Indian communities in
Minnesota. The meeting was

held at the Mille Lacs nation and was attended by over 40 participants including funders, American

Indian leaders and tribal colleges.
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IV. COMMUNICATIONS AND OUTREACH

Communications and outreach activities help ClearWay Minnesota to promote QUITPLAN Services, to
motivate Minnesotans to attempt to quit using tobacco and to educate the public about the dangers of
tobacco use and secondhand smoke. Within a social marketing framework that combines traditional
marketing with the leading practices of the public health field, ClearWay Minnesota develops campaigns
after extensive research and planning, using guidelines from the U.S. Centers for Disease Control and
Prevention (CDC) and learning from the experiences of national and state partners.

In addition to our advertising activities — such as paid advertising on television, Internet and radio, and in
print media and out-of-home venues (bus sides and billboards) — we also conduct outreach to raise
awareness of our efforts with Minnesota community leaders and the general public. Our media work is
developed with input from current and former tobacco users and from community members, using
findings from surveys, focus groups and research studies. Our communications work also includes
customized outreach to diverse communities.

A. ADVERTISING

Through our work with Minneapolis advertising firm Clarity Coverdale Fury, ClearWay Minnesota
employs mass-media strategies to educate the public about the harms of tobacco. In Fiscal Year 2014,
our advertising efforts supported the launch of the reimagined QUITPLAN Services. Our media work also
continued to raise awareness of tobacco’s dangers to change social norms around tobacco use in
Minnesota, and to help build support for public policy initiatives that reduce tobacco’s harm.

QUITPLAN® Services Campaign

The QUITPLAN® Services advertising campaign builds knowledge of the best ways to quit smoking and
increases awareness, positive understanding and knowledge about QUITPLAN Services.

In March of 2014, ClearWay Minnesota launched a new suite of QUITPLAN Services, the free quitting
program available to all Minnesotans. The reimagined QUITPLAN Services retain the most popular
elements of the program to date, and add a number of new options to help Minnesota tobacco users
successfully quit. (See Program Grants and Contracts — Cessation — Cessation Services Contracts —
QUITPLAN® Services, pp. 18-20.)

The relaunch was accompanied by a new advertising campaign highlighting the new services and
promising “No Judgments. Just Help.” Created by Clarity Coverdale Fury, the campaign reflects the
program’s aim to provide tobacco users with a hopeful, nonjudgmental approach to quitting with few
barriers. Television ads used stop-motion animation to present a compassionate view of smokers
struggling to quit. The campaign also used online banner ads, bus interiors, restroom posters, transit
stop advertising and light rail train wraps. QUITPLAN Services advertises in both English-language and
Spanish-language media.
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| WE'RE JUST HERE TO HELP.

Newireestools to quit smoking your own way. <.

judgments. Just'help. ,

New QUITPLANZ® Services ads promised tobacco users “No judgments. Just help.”

Before the relaunch, another QUITPLAN Services ad was seen to significantly increase calls to the
program in the wake of a statewide tobacco tax increase. Originally created in Australia, the graphic ad
showed how smoking creates fat and cholesterol build-up in the arteries. The QUITPLAN Helpline saw a
370 percent increase in calls during the weeks the ad was running.

The graphic “Artery” ad helped increase QUITPLAN® Helpine volumes by 370 percent

ClearWay Minnesota strategically sponsors programming that Minnesota smokers are most likely to see
or hear. In Fiscal Year 2014, the QUITPLAN® Services media campaign — consisting of TV, radio, out-of-
home and digital ads — reached 99 percent of Minnesota adults an average of 65 times throughout the
year. Ads are targeted at populations known to have high tobacco prevalence rates, including low socio-
economic communities, priority populations and communities of color.
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QUITPLANP® Services at the Minnesota State Fair

ClearWay Minnesota also continued our established presence for QUITPLAN Services at the Minnesota
State Fair. The QUITPLAN Services booth featured giveaways, a prize wheel, lung-function testing for
smokers, message boards for quitters and information on QUITPLAN Services. ClearWay Minnesota also
promoted QUITPLAN Services from the Fair on the Spanish-language television network Univision.
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Former smokers at the QUITPLAN® Services State Fair booth

American Indian campaign: Keep Tobacco Sacred

This year, ClearWay Minnesota launched a billboard campaign to reach American Indian audiences in
Minnesota. Traditionally, American Indians view tobacco as a sacred medicine, bestowed by the Creator
and central to tribal culture. But for generations, the commercial tobacco industry has corrupted Native
tobacco practices and marketed directly to American Indians. Today the smoking rate among American
Indians in Minnesota is enormously high: 59 percent compared to 16 percent in the general population.
Smoking-related diseases are the top killers in their communities, with cancer and heart disease at
epidemic levels. (See Program Grants and Contracts — Community Development — Community
Development Grants — Tribal Tobacco Education and Policy Initiative (TTEP), pp. 41-47.)

Working with American Indian grantees funded by the Minnesota Department of Health, ClearWay
Minnesota created a new advertising campaign to remind Native audiences that there is a difference
between sacred tobacco practices and commercial tobacco use like cigarette smoking. The ads, which
promote the free QUITPLAN Services program, are designed to respect American Indian traditions while
educating about the harms of smoking.
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Value Our Tradition ads reinforced traditional teachings against commercial tobacco abuse

Still a Problem campaign

In the fall of 2013, ClearWay Minnesota began airing “Baby
Seat,” an ad using compelling imagery of a child being exposed
to secondhand smoke in a car. Originally created by the lowa
Department of Public Health, the ad effectively continued the
themes of our Still a Problem campaign, which aims to make
Minnesotans aware of the ongoing problem of tobacco use in
our state. Another ad, “Home Sick,” also suggested the impact
secondhand smoke exposure has on children. In addition,
ClearWay Minnesota continued airing “Grave Digger,” an ad
focused on the death toll from tobacco use in Minnesota, and
“Roller Coaster,” which highlights the tobacco industry’s role in
attracting and addicting youth. The Still a Problem media
campaign reached 99 percent of Minnesota adults an average of 40 times during Fiscal Year 2014.

Publication on advertising effectiveness

An article coauthored by ClearWay Minnesota Vice Presidents Andrea Mowery and Dr. Barbara Schillo
and by former ClearWay Minnesota staff member Dr. Jeong Kyu Lee was published in Social Marketing
Quarterly in July of 2013. The article was titled “Effectiveness of Statewide Advertising Campaigns in
Promoting the QUITPLAN Services Brand.”
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Evaluation

ClearWay Minnesota rigorously evaluates our communications efforts to measure progress and identify
areas for improvement. All contractors are evaluated against the following criteria:

e Return on investment: Meets marketing goals, and helps to advance ClearWay Minnesota’s
mission and vision, strives to exceed expectations, tenaciously stewards our budget, negotiates
value-added or pro-bono placements and leverages communication efforts.

e Timeliness: Meets or beats deadlines.

Counsel: Anticipates needs, demonstrates problem-solving ability and provides counsel.

Staff: Assigns appropriate staff and is professional when representing ClearWay Minnesota.

Organizational skills: Uses our time efficiently and communicates clearly.

Creativity: Consistently demonstrates outstanding creativity in work product.

e Goals: Meets or exceeds process goals.

e Budget: Completes duties as outlined in the contract within the specified budget.

ClearWay Minnesota considers these criteria when renewing contracts or initiating new projects, and
strives to provide the greatest return on investment to Minnesotans. Pro-bono and value-added media
are required as a part of the advertising media buy. In Fiscal Year 2014, ClearWay Minnesota received
$572,159 in bonus advertising due to negotiating efforts of advertising vendor Clarity Coverdale Fury.

Evaluation of media campaign

In Fiscal Year 2014, ClearWay Minnesota completed a four-wave media evaluation using an online
survey panel of Minnesota tobacco users and non-users. The evaluation measured ad awareness and
effectiveness for the Still a Problem campaign and for cessation ads promoting QUITPLAN Services.

Overall, ClearWay Minnesota ads were found to have medium to high ad awareness and scored at or
above average for ad effectiveness. Over the evaluation, we saw positive changes in social norms
around tobacco issues, such as awareness that smokers who get help have more success quitting.

Awareness of the Still a Problem campaign was associated with agreement with these statements:

e Many Minnesota teens who begin smoking will face a lifetime of tobacco addiction;
e All Minnesotans bear the costs of tobacco use; and
e Too many Minnesota youth use tobacco.

The evaluation also found evidence of awareness and favorability toward the QUITPLAN Services brand.
At the final wave, 70 percent of viewers said they were aware of QUITPLAN Services, almost a third said
they viewed QUITPLAN Services “very favorably” and approximately half associated QUITPLAN Services
with attributes such as “accessible,” “respectful,” “personalized,” “compassionate” and
“straightforward.”

The findings from this evaluation are consistent with prior evaluations demonstrating high awareness of
our ads, strong associations with shaping public attitudes and increases in brand awareness. There is
also a strong correlation with volumes reported by our QUITPLAN Services cessation programs. (See
Program Grants and Contracts — Cessation — Cessation Services Contracts — Tobacco Users Served, p. 23.)
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B. COMMUNITY OUTREACH

Community outreach is an important way for ClearWay Minnesota to ensure that Minnesotans are
aware of our activities, including QUITPLAN Services, programmatic work and educational campaigns. In
addition to paid advertising, we reach Minnesotans through traditional media, as well as through online
social media including Twitter and Facebook. Regular contact with Minnesota individuals and
communities is important so that we can develop the most effective programs possible and remain
accountable to the public.

Media Analysis

ClearWay Minnesota uses earned and social media to reach key stakeholders and to increase public
support for our campaigns and brands. Tracking and analyzing coverage is a measurable way to illustrate
its value and contributions toward ClearWay Minnesota’s goals. Staff and vendors use this information
to evaluate methods, process and vendor contributions, and adjust processes to help ClearWay
Minnesota achieve the best possible outcomes.

ClearWay Minnesota’s earned and social media efforts in Fiscal Year 2014 reinforced the integrity of our
brands and campaigns, and our reputation to key audiences. The tone of stories that mentioned our
brands and campaigns were more positive this year than last year.

The most prominently covered stories for the year included:

e Efforts to pass e-cigarette restrictions at the state and local level;

e Tobacco cessation-related coverage, including the implementation of a new tobacco tax and the
relaunch of QUITPLAN Services;

e The 50" anniversary of the first U.S. Surgeon General’s Report on smoking; and

e The University of Minnesota going tobacco-free on its Twin Cities campuses.

ClearWay Minnesota’s social media strategy proved effective in reaching key audiences and increasing
engagement without losing many followers this year. Paid Facebook advertising successfully boosted
reach and brought users to the QUITPLAN Services page. Using the ClearWay Minnesota Twitter handle
helped us to communicate with supporters and opponents of our public policy goals and with the
general public.
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C. CONFERENCES AND EVENTS

Over the course of Fiscal Year 2014, ClearWay Minnesota staff, grantees and Board Members
participated in various conferences and symposia. These events allow the organization to remain
abreast of the latest and best available tobacco research and trends, and to share local and state
findings and experiences with other public health experts.

Conferences and other events attended include:

National Summit on Smokeless and Spit Tobacco (August)

National Conference on Health Communication, Marketing and Media (August)

Hot Topics in Business Law (September)

Preserving Privilege: Educating Management and Employees on Attorney/Client and Work
Product Protection (Practical Law) (September)

Master Settlement Agreement Conference (October)

Many Faces of Community Health (October)

Mayo Clinic Spirit of Eagles National Conference (October)

American Public Health Association Annual Meeting (November)

American Cancer Society Cancer Action Network National Meeting (November)

Power in Unity: Innovation to Equity — Eliminating Tobacco Disparities in Minnesota (November)
Minnesota refugee listening session on addressing tobacco-related health disparities
(November)

University of St. Thomas Executive Conference on the Future of Health Care (November)
National Alliance on Mental Iliness (NAMI) Minnesota conference (November)
Minnesota Council on Foundations: Pause! Shift! Engage! (November)

BoardSource Leadership Forum (November)

Society for Research on Nicotine and Tobacco Use (SRNT) Annual Meeting (February)
Academy Health’s National Health Policy Conference (February)

Society for Research on Nicotine and Tobacco Intercultural Cancer Conference (March)
2014 Nonprofit Law Conference (March)

National Indian Health Board Annual Tribal Public Health Summit (March-April)

Mayo Nicotine Dependence Conference (April)

Promising Practices: Promoting Tobacco-Free Active Living and Healthy Eating in Low-
Socioeconomic-Status Communities (April)

National Conference on Tobacco and Behavioral Health (May)

U.S. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) Office of Smoking and Health meeting
(June)

Minnesota E-Health Summit (June)

Asian Smokers Quitline meeting (June)

Tobacco-Free Indiana Conference (June)

Minnesota Council of Nonprofits Nonprofit Leadership Conference (June)
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V. CONCLUSION

In 1964, U.S. Surgeon General Dr. Luther Terry released the first-ever Surgeon General’s Report on
smoking and health. That report helped launch five decades of progress in the fight against tobacco, as
doctors, scientists, policymakers and concerned citizens developed ways to help smokers quit, to
prevent young people from becoming addicted to tobacco and to counter the influence of the tobacco
industry. This year saw the 50th anniversary of that report. Since its publication, the national smoking
rate has fallen from 42 to 19 percent, and it’s estimated that 8 million American lives have been saved
by public health initiatives to reduce tobacco’s harm over those five decades.

2013 was also a landmark year for ClearWay Minnesota, as we celebrated our 15th anniversary as an
organization working to improve health for all Minnesotans by reducing tobacco use and secondhand
smoke exposure. Our initiatives are among the most diverse of any tobacco control organization in the
country. We are recognized as a leader in areas of individual cessation, public policy, research, systems
change, community development, media and more. And our work has helped to push the smoking rate
in Minnesota below the national average.

The fight to end tobacco use in Minnesota and across the country is far from over. The tobacco industry
is continually reimagining itself in reaction to increased public awareness of tobacco’s dangers, and to
public health efforts to reduce its influence. Inventive marketing and whole new strains of products are
being used to introduce tobacco to customers who can’t remember a time when people could smoke in
restaurants.

ClearWay Minnesota is rising to these challenges with innovative ideas and partnerships. This report has
shown some of our best work from the past year, and our ongoing strategic planning efforts will
continue to shape our work to achieve both short-term and long-term goals.

We are proud of the work we have done to help realize the Surgeon General’s vision in Minnesota, and
we continue to look for new opportunities to make even more progress in the future.
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ClearWay Minnesota®

Charter of the Board of Directors
Board Approved January 15, 2014

Introduction

This charter is intended as a tool to assist directors in understanding the role of the ClearWay
Minnesota Board of Directors in ensuring the organization fulfills its purpose. The scope of the
charter derives from the organization’s Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws, and the body of
law governing such issues. It is not an attempt to limit, enlarge or change the responsibilities of
the directors as determined by such Articles, Bylaws, and body of law.

Purpose of the Organization

ClearWay Minnesota was created as a private nonprofit corporation with a limited lifetime of 25
years. The organization’s mission is to enhance life in Minnesota by reducing tobacco use and
exposure to secondhand smoke through research, action and collaboration. ClearWay Minnesota
helps Minnesotans quit smoking and tobacco use, and funds tobacco-related research and other
initiatives that raise awareness of tobacco’s dangers and make Minnesota a healthier place.

The Role of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors is responsible for governance of the organization and the conduct of its
business. In discharging its responsibilities, the Board shall principally:

e Ensure that policies, and procedures are in place and being implemented to assure the
integrity of the organization and that policies are in place to comply with applicable laws
and regulations, and ClearWay Minnesota’s governing documents and policies.

e Oversee policies and procedures that assure the development and enhancement of the
organization’s culture as shaped by its vision, mission, values and standards of conduct.

e Ensure that policies and procedures are in place and being implemented to assure that an
effective Board of Directors is in place possessing appropriate skills to fulfill its
responsibilities through director selection, Board governance, and Board evaluation.

e Hire, advise and counsel, encourage, evaluate, compensate, and if necessary, replace the
Chief Executive Officer.

e Establish a succession plan for Board leadership and the CEO, and oversee the CEO’s
establishment of a succession plan for key senior management positions.

e Set the long term strategic direction of the organization by establishing or reviewing and
approving the organization’s mission, vision, and values.

e Annually review and approve (if necessary) the strategic plan and approve the Annual
Operating Plan and budget. Ensure that each has objectives and a means of measurement.



e Oversee and approve ClearWay Minnesota’s financial and other reporting obligations
with particular attention to its annual report to the Ramsey County District Court and the
Minnesota Legislature.

e Oversee ClearWay Minnesota’s management and utilization of its human and financial
resources to ensure a responsible and effective organization.

e Promote regular education of the Board and management respecting (1) tobacco control
policies, practices, strategies and research, locally, nationally and internationally, and (2)
sound governance practices and policies.

The Board of Directors may, by resolution, delegate certain of its responsibilities to Committees
of the Board or to the organization’s CEO who remain accountable and subject to the direction
and control of the Board.

e Through the committees listed below and other committees which the Board may
establish from time to time, the Board provides oversight regarding certain activities and
responsibilities of the organization. The committees operate under Board approved
charters. The current standing committees of the Board are:

Executive/Governance

Audit/Finance

Nominating and Board Development
Strategic Development and Planning
Program Grants and Program Contracts

O O O O O

e The Board works with management to set the organization’s direction while delegating
responsibilities for implementation to management.

o The Board engages with management to develop and then approve the strategic
plan of the organization.

o Management develops operational work plans and annual operating budgets for
review, approval, and monitoring by the Board.

o While the Board is ultimately responsible for review, approval and monitoring of
the plans, management is ultimately responsible for execution and
implementation.

o The Board is responsible for evaluating the effectiveness of the Board, the CEO,
and the organization.

The Board’s Standards of Conduct

The Board is expected to carry out its responsibilities consistent with applicable laws, the
organization’s governing documents, mission, policies, and the culture it has established for the
organization. In discharging its responsibilities:



Board members must observe their duties of care, loyalty, and good faith, placing the
interests of the organization ahead of their own or their constituents, and act consistent
with the central purpose and governing documents and policies of the organization.

Board members must model the values of the organization including commitment to:
excellence; knowledge based innovation; integrity, honesty and accountability; and a safe
and respectful working environment.

Board members hold each other accountable to: (1.) remain focused on the strategic
direction and plans of the organization; (2.) use a decision making process that relies on
adequate preparation, full participation, thorough discussion, clarity, consensus, and
closure; (3) fully engage, and help focus the discussions; and (4) regularly evaluate Board
and Director performance, formally and informally providing positive and constructive
feedback.



ClearWay Minnesota®

Charter of the Executive/Governance Committee
Board Approved May 15, 2013

Purpose:

The Executive/Governance Committee provides general oversight of the administration of the
organization. The Committee shall have the authority to act on behalf of the ClearWay
Minnesota Board of Directors regarding matters that require immediate attention or action
between regularly scheduled Board Meetings with ratification by the Board at the next Board
meeting. The Committee shall provide a forum for Directors to address all issues of corporate
governance and human resource-related policy items. The Committee shall meet at the call of the
Chair.

Committee Structure:

The members of the Committee will include the Board’s officers and the chairs of the standing
committees, which shall not constitute a majority of the Board. The Chair of the Board will chair
the Executive/Governance Committee.

Authority:

The principal elements of the Charter of the Executive/Governance Committee shall be:

Executive duties:

1. Provide advice and counsel to the Chief Executive Officer. (This duty is shared with all
other Board Members.)

2. Facilitate an annual review of the Chief Executive Officer on behalf of the Board and
report to the Board the results of the review, including a recommended compensation
package, for action by the Board. The review process shall be conducted in a closed
session of the Board, in accordance with the Minnesota Open Meeting Law.

3. Recommend to the Board the selection and replacement, if necessary, of the CEO.
Provide for the development of a succession plan for the CEO and the key employees of
the corporation.

4. Review changes to human resource-related policy items such as the Personnel Handbook
and give input as necessary. Review and recommend major changes (as determined by
the CEO) to employee benefit plans and make recommendations to the Board for final
approval.

5. Approve biennially the compensation study contractor. The Board Chair shall appoint a
member of the Committee to serve as a liaison for the study. Review and recommend
changes to executive compensation, salary ranges and budgeted merit increase and make
recommendations to the Board for final approval.



6.

Review Policy Statements annually as a first read prior to Board approval. Policy
Statements guide the Board and staff decision making and help to set priorities.

Governance duties:

1.

10.

Assure that policies and procedures are in place and being implemented to ensure that the
Board, and its individual members, operate with the highest ethical standards and
integrity, including duties of care and loyalty. Act on issues of conflict of interest that
come before the Board as set forth in ClearWay Minnesota’s Conflict of Interest Policy.

Approve standing committee assignments, including committee chair assignments, at the
first Executive/Governance Committee Meeting after a new Board Chair takes office, as
permitted by Article 1V, Section 3 of the Bylaws. Committee assignments are brought to
the Board for ratification.

Approve annually a Public Policy Rapid Response Team that provides advice and
counsel to the Board Chair and CEO on public policy matters when immediate action is
required between regular meetings of the Board. The appointment of the Public Policy
Rapid Response Team is brought to the Board for ratification.

Ensure that policies and procedures are in place and being implemented to ensure that the
committees of the Board are fulfilling their obligations as defined by their respective
charters. Provide a process for each committee to review and update its charter annually.

Ensure that at least once every two years, the Board of Directors Charter, Conflict of
Interest Policy, Director Job Description, and other relevant policies, as listed in the
Board Handbook, be reviewed and updated as needed with final approval from the Board.

Review periodically the governance processes, including Board organization and
structure, frequency of meetings and attendance and make any necessary
recommendations to the Board in accordance with the Two-Read Policy.

Ensure that orientation and training are in place for both new and current Board
Members, as appropriate.

Provide for a Board self-evaluation at least every two years.

Review annually the attendance and participation of Board Members and refer any
recommended action to the Board. It is ClearWay Minnesota’s policy that Minnesota-
based Board Members must be present for 50 percent of Board meetings annually, and no
Board Member may be absent for more than three consecutive meetings unless there are
extenuating circumstances. Failure to meet these guidelines will be grounds for
consideration for asking the Board Member to resign from their position.

Develop the agenda for meetings of the Board of Directors, including the distribution of
approved Executive/Governance Committee minutes to the Board.



ClearWay Minnesota®™
Charter of the Audit/Finance Committee

Board Approved January 15, 2014
Purpose:

The Audit/Finance Committee shall assist the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibility for
the integrity of ClearWay Minnesota’s financial and operational results, the system of internal
control, the audit process, ClearWay Minnesota’s investment policies and portfolio, and
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

The Committee will meet at least four times per year, with authority to convene additional
meetings, as circumstances require. The Committee may invite members of management,
auditors or others to attend meetings and provide pertinent information, as necessary. The
Committee may meet separately with auditors, with staff voluntarily excusing themselves, to
discuss the audit process and results.

Committee Structure:

The Committee shall consist of no more than seven members of the Board of Directors,
including the Treasurer (who may or may not chair the Committee), and the chair of the
Investment Advisory Committee. The Board Chair shall appoint the Audit/Finance Committee
Chair. Committee Members shall be appointed by the Board Chair, approved by the
Executive/Governance Committee and ratified by the Board.

Each member will have an understanding of audit and financial functions. At least one member
shall be designated by the Board as the “Financial Expert,” based on the guidelines attached
under Appendix A. The Committee will annually recommend a member or members for
designation as Financial Expert to the Board for its consideration.

Authority:

The Committee has authority to conduct or authorize special audits and investigations into any
matters within its scope of responsibility. It is empowered to:

e Appoint, compensate, terminate and oversee the work of any public accounting firm
employed by ClearWay Minnesota.

e Resolve any disagreements between management and the external auditors regarding
financial or operational control and reporting.

e Pre-approve all audit and non-audit services provided by our independent auditor.

e Retain independent counsel, accountants, or others to advise the Committee or assist in
the conduct of an investigation.

e Review and accept the external auditor’s reports along with management’s written
responses when appropriate.

e Be immediately informed by the auditor of all unresolved matters that obstruct the
conduct of an audit or review, after, where feasible, such matters were first brought to the
attention of the Chief Executive Officer and/or Chief Financial Officer.



Review and approve the external auditor’s audit plans.

Seek any information it requires from employees — all of whom are directed to cooperate
with the Committee’s requests — or with external auditors, legal counsel or others as
necessary.

Oversee the performance of the responsibilities of the Investment Advisory Committee
(1AC), in accordance with the IAC’s Charter, including receiving periodic reports from
the IAC and periodically reporting to the Board regarding the management and
performance of Clearway’s financial assets.

Responsibilities:

The Committee will carry out the following responsibilities:

Financial and Operational Review Oversight

Report to the Board on financial risks facing ClearWay Minnesota. The Committee
members should develop sufficient knowledge of the financial statements and assess risk
areas including understanding the critical judgments and estimates contained therein. The
Committee shall manage and understand issues related to the tobacco settlement and
Court restrictions on fund uses, and approval of uses of funds.

Advise the Board on the Statement of Investment Objectives and Policies. With input
from the Investment Advisory Committee, the Committee will periodically review the
Statement and recommend changes to the Board as appropriate. The Committee shall
make such other recommendations to the Board on such other policies and procedures
regarding stewardship and oversight of ClearWay Minnesota’s financial assets as the
Committee shall from time to time determine.

Select and terminate when appropriate, after reviewing any analysis and
recommendations of the Investment Advisory Committee and ClearWay Minnesota’s
CFO, the investment custodian; the investment consultant; the investment managers; and
investment vehicles consistent with ClearWay Minnesota policies.

Review significant accounting, operational and reporting issues and understand their
impact on the financial and operating results on the overall ClearWay Minnesota system
of internal control.

Review and discuss the annual audited financial statements results with management and
the external auditors.

Periodically review current internal financial statements of ClearWay Minnesota.

Internal Control

Evaluate the effectiveness of ClearWay Minnesota’s internal control system, including
information technology security and control.

Understand the scope of external auditor’s review of internal control over financial and
operational reporting and obtain reports on significant findings and recommendations,
together with management’s responses.



Other Responsibilities

e Perform other activities related to this Charter as requested by the Board of Directors.

e Institute and oversee special investigations within the Committee’s area of responsibility.

e Review and assess the adequacy of the Committee charter annually, requesting Board
approval for proposed changes, and ensure appropriate disclosure as may be required by
law or regulation.



ClearWay Minnesotas"

Charter of the Nominating and Board Development Committee
Board Approved January 16, 2013

Purpose:

The Nominating and Board Development Committee shall recommend at-large nominees to the
ClearWay Minnesota Board of Directors to fill all at-large vacancies and discuss possible
nominees for appointed vacancies. The Committee shall recommend officers to the Board of
Directors. The Committee shall oversee a plan for ongoing development of Board Members.

Committee Structure:

The Committee shall consist of seven members: four Board Members (of whom at least two will
be at-large members) and three -external community members who are not on the Board.
Committee members who are currently seated Board Members shall be appointed by the Board
Chair and approved by the Executive/Governance Committee. The Board Chair shall appoint the
Nominating and Board Development Committee Chair.

Authority:

The principal elements of the Charter of the Nominating and Board Development Committee
shall be:

1. Within two weeks of an at-large vacancy, to convene and solicit nominations to fill the
open Board position(s).

2. To assure that the solicitation of nominees shall proceed in a manner to be prescribed by
the Board.

3. To assess the Board’s current composition and identify needs to actively recruit
candidates for at-large Board positions.

4. To strive for a Board that broadly represents all Minnesotans.

5. To give special consideration in their nominee selection and recommendation to persons
who, in addition to dedication to ClearWay Minnesota’s vision, mission and values, have
expertise in one or more of the following areas:

- Governance of a not-for-profit organization
- Finance

- Communications

- Tobacco control/cessation

- Community organizing

- Health care

- Health insurance



- Populations at risk

- Public affairs

- Human resources

- Grant making

- Research and evaluation

- Legal

- Political expertise or experience

6. To utilize a peer nomination process that develops and presents annually to the Board of
Directors a slate of candidates to serve as Board officers for the upcoming year. A
Committee Member who is nominated as an officer of the Board shall not vote on, or
participate in deliberation of the position._The three external community members do not
participate in the selection of the slate of officers.

7. To present annually to the Board of Directors a slate of at large Board Members who
have completed their first three year terms and who are eligible and qualified, and who
wish to serve another term on the Board. A Committee Member who is nominated to
serve an additional term on the Board shall not vote on, or participate in discussion of, his
or her own nomination.

8. To identify key learning topics with Board input and provide opportunity for training for
on-going Board development.
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ClearWay Minnesota®™

Charter of the Program Grants and Program Contracts Committee
Board Approved January 15, 2014

Purpose:

The Program Grants and Program Contracts Committee (“PGPCC”) shall assist the Board in
fulfilling its oversight and fiduciary duties with respect to program grants and program contracts
(“Program Grants and Contracts”) in excess of $75 ,000".

The primary function of the PGPCC is to provide oversight of the process and to recommend the
funding of Program Grants and Contracts pursuant to which ClearWay Minnesota staff:
e Solicits requests for applications for Program Grants and Contracts;

e Executes a process to review applications for Program Grants and Contracts; and
e Presents recommendations as to which applicant organizations should be awarded
Program Grants and Contracts.

Program Grants and Contracts are specific grants and contracts that the Research, Cessation,
Community Development and Public Affairs departments of ClearWay Minnesota make to
accomplish the strategic goals of the organization, consistent with the most current Strategic Plan
approved by the Board of Directors. Program Grants and Contracts do not include contracts
which support the administration of ClearWay Minnesota’s governance and business affairs or
the Marketing and Communications Department, which are reviewed and recommended for
funding by the Audit/Finance Committee.

The PGPCC shall meet no fewer than two times per year, and as many additional times as the
PGPCC Chair deems necessary to discharge its duties and responsibilities.

Committee Structure:

The PGPCC will be comprised of no more than seven members of the Board of Directors.
Committee Members shall be appointed by the Board Chair, approved by the
Executive/Governance Committee and ratified by the Board. The Board Chair shall appoint the
PGPCC Chair.

Authority:

Provide oversight to ClearWay Minnesota staff in connection with the process for soliciting,
reviewing and recommending for approval applications for Program Grants and Contracts. (See
Attachment A for an annotated flowchart of the Program Grants and Contracts Competitive
Review Process.)

1. Meet with staff to review proposed funding priorities and make final recommendations on

funding priorities to the Board.

2. Exercise oversight to ensure that the grant and contract process established and managed by

!See ClearWay Minnesota’s Policies, Procedures and Guidelines Manual.
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the staff meets rigorous review processes consistent with ClearWay Minnesota’s policies and
procedures.

a. A member of the PGPCC may be designated to annually observe a review-panel
meeting to assure the integrity of the review-panel process.

b. The Chair or any member of the PGPCC may review documents that include the date
and title of all grant and contract review panels listed by fiscal year, a list of staff
present for all reviews conducted and documentation from the review members,
facilitator or chair that the summaries produced by staff are a fair and accurate
representation of the review-panel recommendations. These documents also include a
list of all individuals who served as reviewers (both external and staff) by fiscal year,
along with their curriculum vitae (for external reviewers only) and signed conflict of
interest forms.

3. Discuss and recommend funding for applicants to the Board based on the recommendation of
the review panels and financial due diligence reports from ClearWay Minnesota staff.

4. Review staff reports regarding progress of funded recipients with respect to their achieved
outcomes and/or performance of responsibilities. Report findings of progress to the Board or
the Executive/Governance Committee, as appropriate.

a. The PGPCC may request from the Chief Executive Officer or his or her designee,
advice and information concerning the performance of grantees and contractors.

5. Annually review the charter of the PGPCC and make recommendations to the Board
regarding desired changes.

The PGPCC’s authority shall not include routine programmatic monitoring or involvement with
programmatic activities of ClearWay Minnesota grantees or contractors, participation in the
review-panel process, or interacting with applicants with respect to their application, grant or
contract before, during or after the application review and funding process.

The PGPCC Members will treat all information regarding funding priorities, the funding process
and funding decisions as confidential and may not disclose, use or discuss confidential
application materials except in the context of fulfilling committee obligations.

12



ATTACHMENT A
Program Grant and Contract Competitive Review Process

Step 1: Based on the Strategic Plan, and approved budgets, a funding announcement is
developed.

Step 2: The Funding announcement is released to potential applicants based on eligibility
requirements.

Step 3: Letters of Intent are due from potential applicants; staff invite full applications from
those that meet qualifying criteria (this step is optional).

Step 4: Applicants submit full proposals.

Step 5: Review panel(s) meets. May include both external reviewers and ClearWay Minnesota
staff.

Step 6. Staff present review-panel funding recommendations to the PGPCC for action.
Step 7. Full Board makes final funding decisions.
Note that grants and contracts often have a multilayered review process that could include

multiple review panels, a revise and resubmit process, site visits and/or request for additional
information before a recommendation is made to the PGPCC.
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ClearWay Minnesota®™

Charter of the Strategic Development and Planning Committee
Board Approved January 15, 2014

Purpose:

The Strategic Development and Planning Committee shall lead ClearWay Minnesota’s Strategic
Planning efforts, monitor performance towards Legacy Goals and periodically review the 2023
Framework.

Committee Structure:

The Strategic Development and Planning Committee shall consist of no more than eight
members of the Board. The Strategic Development and Planning Committee Chair and
Committee Members shall be appointed by the Board Chair, approved by the
Executive/Governance Committee and ratified by the Board.

Authority:

The principal elements of the Charter of the Strategic Development and Planning Committee
shall be:

1. To oversee the timing, development and modification of the Strategic Plan. The Strategic
Plan and modifications to the Strategic Plan will be recommended to and approved by the
full Board.

2. To oversee the timing, development and modification of the 2023 Framework. The
Framework and modifications to the Framework will be recommended to and approved
by the full Board.

3. To monitor research and trends in the field and national and state environment that
impact development of the Strategic Plan and 2023 Framework.*

4. To review ClearWay Minnesota’s annual evaluation findings and apply them to the
development, execution and modification of ClearWay Minnesota’s Strategic Plans and

2023 Framework.

5. To recommend education for the Board on issues that impact ClearWay Minnesota’s
strategic direction.

6. To plan and oversee regular Board retreats for the purpose of strategic planning.

7. Toensure that at least once every two years, the Strategic Development and Planning
Committee Charter is reviewed and updated as needed.

*The monitoring process currently includes the annual evaluation presentation, annual best practices presentation,
Board education in preparation for strategic planning and staff review.
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CLEARWAY MINNESOTA
CHARTER OF THE INVESTMENT ADVISORY COMMITTEE
Board Approved 9-20-06
. PURPOSE:

The Investment Advisory Committee (the “Committee”) shall give advice on matters
relating to the investment policies and portfolio of ClearWay Minnesota. The Committee shall
be advisory only, and shall report to the Audit/Finance Committee.

II. COMPOSITION:

The Committee shall be comprised of no more than five persons appointed by the Chair
of the Board of Directors, subject to the concurrence of the Board. The term of each member
shall be one year, or until his or her successor is appointed, subject to a member’s earlier
resignation, removal by the Board, or unavailability for service. There shall be no maximum
number of terms for which a member may serve.

The Committee’s Chair shall be appointed by ClearWay Minnesota’s Board Chair, and
shall be a member of ClearWay Minnesota’s Board of Directors.

Each member shall be entitled to vote on all matters brought before the Committee.

Qualifications for Committee membership shall include an interest and knowledge in
capital investing, support for ClearWay Minnesota’s mission; and the ability to attend
Committee meetings. Experience in institutional investing is strongly preferred. A candidate,
who in the past ten years has (had) any affiliation with any business or organization which
manufactures or sells tobacco products, is barred from Committee membership.

Il. AUTHORITY:
The Committee is advisory only, and shall report to the Audit/Finance Committee.
IV. DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

Responsibilities of the Committee include advising ClearWay Minnesota’s Audit/Finance
Committee and ClearWay Minnesota’s Chief Financial Officer (the “CFO”) on the Statement of
Investment Objectives and Policies. The Committee will periodically review the Statement,
including investment objectives, guidelines, strategies, risk and return parameters, and
performance measurement standards, and recommend changes as appropriate. The Committee
shall make such other recommendations to ClearWay Minnesota’s Audit/Finance Committee and
CFO on such other policies and procedures regarding ClearWay Minnesota’s financial assets as
the Committee shall from time to time determine.

In addition the Committee shall:
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1. Recommend the selection and termination as appropriate, after receiving the
recommendations of ClearWay Minnesota’s CFO, a custodian bank; and receive periodic
reports through the CFO regarding performance, evaluation, and compensation of such
custodian bank.

2. Recommend the selection and termination as appropriate, after receiving the
recommendations of the CFO, an Investment Consultant to assist in structuring and
monitoring ClearWay Minnesota’s investment portfolio; and receive periodic reports through
the CFO regarding performance, evaluation, and compensation of such Investment
Consultant.

3. Recommend the selection and termination as appropriate, after receiving the
recommendations of the CFO, Investment Managers, commingled (“pooled”) funds, mutual
funds, and other appropriate investment vehicles consistent with ClearWay Minnesota
policy; and receive periodic reports through the CFO regarding performance, evaluation, and
compensation of such investment managers, funds, and other vehicles.

4. Periodically meet with the CFO and Investment Consultant to review an evaluation of the
overall performance of portfolio investments, and the consistency of those investments with
ClearWay Minnesota’s mission, principles, and policies; and recommend corrective action
deemed prudent and appropriate if investment performance is below expectations.

5. The Committee Chair shall periodically report to the Audit/Finance Committee regarding the
activities of the Committee, and provide such information as the Audit/Finance Committee
reasonably requests regarding the actions of the Committee.

V. MEETINGS AND NOTES:

The Committee shall meet in person no fewer than two times per year, and as many
additional times as the Committee deems necessary.

The Committee shall prepare written notes of its meetings. Such meeting notes shall be
made available to the Audit/Finance Committee or Board if requested.
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2023 Framework — Executive Summary - CONFIDENTIAL

Executive Summary

Introduction

In 1998, ClearWay Minnesota™ was created as an independent nonprofit
organization with a 25-year lifespan. Through research, action and collaboration
we work to reduce the harm — the negative health, economic and emotional
consequences® — of tobacco use in Minnesota.?

ClearWay Minnesota’s programs and activities are directed by three-year
Strategic Plans approved by our Board of Directors. Recognizing our unique
position as a catalyst for ongoing health initiatives, our Board, through the fifth
strategy of our 2007-2011 Strategic Plan, directed us to begin planning for our
transition out of existence through the creation of a Framework, a new tool to
complement the remaining strategic planning cycles. This Framework will assist
ClearWay Minnesota:

1) In effectively using resources to reach our goals by our 2023 transition or
phase-out;

2) In identifying ClearWay Minnesota’s desired legacy, and laying out a
specific Legacy Statement and Legacy Goals; and

3) Ininforming the remaining three-year strategic Planning Cycles, which will
shape the work of our remaining years.

! Clearway Minnesota defines tobacco’s harm as the negative health, economic and emotional
consequences of tobacco use and secondhand smoke exposure. As of this writing, smoking
accounts for an estimated 438,000 deaths each year in the U.S. — nearly one in every five deaths
nationally. Smoking harms nearly every organ of the body, causing many diseases and reducing
the health of smokers in general. It causes heart disease, the leading cause of death for
Americans. In Minnesota alone, smoking causes 5,600 deaths annually, and costs nearly $2
billion in health care costs; each individual pack of cigarettes smoked costs an estimated $8.85 in
medical expenses and lost productivity. Over $215 million is spent each year in Minnesota to treat
conditions caused by secondhand smoke, such as respiratory illness and heart disease. At this
time, 634,000 Minnesotans — mothers, fathers, sons, daughters, brothers, sisters, aunts, uncles
and friends — continue to smoke, and smoking-related disease and death impacts not only them
but their families and loved ones as well. Children of smokers are almost twice as likely to smoke
as those of nonsmokers.

% This document refers numerous times to “tobacco use.” It should be noted that this term refers
specifically to the use of commercial tobacco products such as cigarettes, and not to the sacred
and indigenous uses of tobacco practiced by American Indian communities and other groups.
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With the knowledge that difficult decisions will be necessary to maximize impact
during our remaining 14 years, ClearWay Minnesota has created a 2023
Framework Report to serve as a resource for making ongoing decisions about
our work.

Framework Model

Foundational
Assumptions &
Principles
Strategic Priorities

Legacy

Cycle1 Cycle 2 Cycle 3 Transition g

R ——

2012-2014 2015-2017 2018-2020 2021-2023

Method
In 2007 and 2008, steps were taken to develop the Framework, which is intended
to help find answers to the following questions:

o What should ClearWay Minnesota’s enduring impact be?
e What long-term goals will help us get there?

Staff combined their expertise and knowledge with external resources to develop
the 2023 Framework Recommendations.

Findings and Recommendations

In creating the Framework, ClearWay Minnesota staff used available information
to draw conclusions about limited lifetime models, and to create findings and
recommendations for the organization.

Findings

Few limited lifetime models exist. Since few comparable nonprofit organizations
with limited lifetimes exist, ClearWay Minnesota has little access to models for
best practices.

Foundational Assumptions and Principles are important for short-term and long-
term strategic planning. These will foster shared understanding of the
perspective from which this Framework has been developed, and from which
future Strategic Plans will be created.
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ClearWay Minnesota’s Legacy Statement should articulate the desired lasting
impact we will have, and our Legacy Goals clearly define specific, measurable
outcomes that we hope to achieve. For a limited lifetime organization in
particular, outcome-driven priorities are critical for achieving the greatest impact.

Strategic Priorities should be set to maximize ClearWay Minnesota’s impact until
we transition or phase out of existence. We must invest our time and energy in
activities that have the highest value, deliver that value in the shortest timeframe
and have an enduring impact on health-related work in this state beyond our final
days as an organization.

ClearWay Minnesota’s remaining Planning Cycles are limited. To be effective, we
must inform the remaining three Planning Cycles with appropriate financial
forecasting and with key strategic guidance from the Framework.

Recommendations
The Framework is informed by staff findings, and includes recommendations for
five key elements.

Foundational Assumptions and Principles
These should create a common understanding of ClearWay Minnesota’s
environmental, operational and strategic context.

Environmental e ClearWay Minnesota will transition or phase out of
existence in 2023.

e The tobacco industry and the problems caused by tobacco
will persist after 2023.

e Our work has greatly helped reduce tobacco’s harm in
Minnesota.

e Our programs and knowledge will have value after we have
transitioned out of existence.

¢ The Framework will be a tool for strategic planning in our
remaining years.

e The Framework must be flexible to account for
environmental change.

e The Framework should promote decisions designed to pass
on our knowledge, expertise and mission to other
organizations and efforts.

Operational o We will adhere to all court-authorized guiding documents.

o We will excel through our last day of operation.

e We will plan for strategic planning, transfer and transition
phases.

Strategic e Our vision, mission, business definition and values will
continue to guide us.
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e Our Legacy Statement and Legacy Goals will help us
prioritize our future work.

e Research, innovation and partnership will remain priorities
for us.

e We value evaluation as an important aid in achieving our
desired legacy.

¢ We are a learning organization, capable of evolving and
prioritizing as we approach the end of our lifespan.

e Priority areas are those that will have the greatest lasting
impact.

e Planning and prioritizing for the future — both during our
lifetime and after our transition or phase-out — is
increasingly important.

e Some of our knowledge, processes, programs and services
will be sustainable and transferable to our partners.

Legacy Statement and Legacy Goals

ClearWay Minnesota’s Legacy Statement is a defining statement of our desired
lasting impact, and articulates what we hope will remain after we transition or
phase out of existence. Our Legacy Goals are specific, measurable goals that
will direct long-term planning.

Legacy Statement
e By 2023, ClearWay Minnesota’s work will have changed Minnesota in
ways that have a lasting, tangible impact on the lives and health of its
people.

» We will have reduced tobacco-related harms, improved health and
created a tobacco-free future for more and more individuals and
communities statewide.

» We will have created capacity and infrastructure for ongoing,
sustainable tobacco control work, by developing operational tools
and strategies to create a lasting impact on the health and
wellbeing of Minnesotans.

» We will have changed the overall environment in Minnesota so that
tobacco use is less acceptable than it was before our work began.

Legacy Goals
e The prevalence of smoking among adult Minnesotans will have declined to
less than 5 percent by 2023.
e Less than 5 percent of nonsmoking adult Minnesotans will be exposed to
secondhand smoke in any location by 2023.
e One hundred percent of Minnesota smokers will have access to
comprehensive tobacco dependence treatment by 2023.
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Strategic Priorities

This Framework lays out Strategic Priorities, broad directional guidelines to
inform ClearWay Minnesota’s strategic planning and our work to achieve our
Legacy Goals. Priority areas are those that are likely to have the most lasting
impact on reducing tobacco’s harm in Minnesota within our remaining time and
budget, and beyond our transition or phase-out in 2023. ClearWay Minnesota’s
future work must continue to be founded in evidence-based science and
research, and be supported by media campaigns and other efforts to change
social norms around tobacco use in this state.

e Policy will be the priority, as research and practice have shown
policy change has the most lasting impact to reduce tobacco’s harm.

e Cessation services will be focused on treating those with the highest
rates of tobacco use, the greatest challenges in quitting and the least
access to such services.

e ClearWay Minnesota will prioritize our work with priority populations
to create lasting benefits for the most impacted communities among
them.

e We will plan for a limited lifetime by creating sustainable structures,
including operational tools and other strategies, to support change
and transition.

Financial Forecasting

ClearWay Minnesota’s strategic planning will include creating financial forecast
summaries by fiscal year, through 2023. These summaries will be formulated
consistent with the goals of this Framework, and will include expense projections
based on estimated program support and staffing levels, as well as revenue
forecasts based on both average expected investment returns and returns
assuming a minus one standard deviation rate. These financial forecast
summaries will be updated, along with ongoing strategic and other planning, as
new information becomes available.

Planning Cycles

ClearWay Minnesota is guided by three-year strategic Planning Cycles and
annual assessments. We are charted for three more strategic Planning Cycles
over our lifetime (2012-2014, 2015-2017 and 2018-2020), as well as for a three-
year Transition Cycle (2021-2023). This schedule promotes continuous
evaluation and adjustment, both proactive and reactive, based on environmental
changes and new knowledge. Moving forward, these Planning Cycles should be
informed by this Framework.
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Foundational
Assumptions &

" Legacy
Principles Transition Goole

Strategic Priorities

2012-2014 2015-2017 2018-2020 2021-2023

The 2023 Framework offers perspective to help plan for mission sustainability
beyond our transition or phase-out. It suggests that ClearWay Minnesota:

e During the 2012-2014 strategic Planning Cycle: continue to build assets
(knowledge, processes, products or services), continue financial
summaries and plan and conduct a pilot transfer/incubator project;

e During the 2015-2017 strategic Planning Cycle: build and transfer assets,
respond appropriately to pilot transfer from previous cycle, and plan
transition;

e During the 2018-2020 strategic Planning Cycle: continue to build and
transfer assets; plan and begin implementing transition; and

e During the transition period, 2021-2023: continue to transfer assets and
implement transition strategies.

Conclusion

This Framework is intended to provide clarity for programmatic and financial
prioritization during ClearWay Minnesota’s remaining years. It will serve as a
strategic guide for our Board and staff throughout the rest of our lifetime, as we
continue to excel, to meet our long-term goals and to have the maximum impact
in a changing environment.
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ClearWay Minnesota®™ 2012-2014 Strategic Plan (approved January 2011)

Strategy |: Support policies that reduce tobacco use and exposure to secondhand
smoke.

Goal 1: Make tobacco products less accessible.

Goal 2: Pass at least one policy initiative that advances tobacco control
work (secondhand smoke, cessation, e.g.) on each ClearWay
Minnesota-funded tribal reservation.

Goal 3: Advance policies that protect people from secondhand smoke.

Goal 4: Enhance tobacco cessation benefits for Minnesotans.

Goal 5: Increase public and private resources dedicated to reducing
tobacco’s harm in Minnesota.

Strategy Il: Advance initiatives for priority populations to eliminate tobacco-
related disparities.

Goal 1: Build capacity and skills within priority populations to effectively
reduce tobacco’s harm.
Goal 2: Advance practices for reducing tobacco-related disparities.

Strategy lll: Support research that can be translated into effective policies and
practices to reduce tobacco’s harm in Minnesota.

Goal 1: Assess the impact of ClearWay Minnesota’s efforts to change
social norms around tobacco.

Goal 2: Support research that measures the impact of policies supported
by ClearWay Minnesota and its partners.

Goal 3: Support research that advances the delivery of QUITPLAN®
Services and other Minnesota cessation services.

Strategy IV: Ensure access to evidence-based tobacco cessation services for all
Minnesotans.

Goal 1: Improve access to QUITPLAN Services for underserved
Minnesotans.

Goal 2: Increase the number of Minnesota smokers who use evidence-
based cessation services.

Strategy V: Build capacity to sustain Minnesota tobacco control work beyond
ClearWay Minnesota’s®™ existence.

Goal 1: Transfer knowledge about effective tobacco control work to our
partners.

Goal 2: Develop more expertise and leadership within the Minnesota
tobacco control community.

Goal 3: Continue Board discussion and action around ways to fulfill
ClearWay Minnesota’s legacy.

Goal 4: Seek out opportunities to create long-lasting impact to reduce
tobacco’s harm and improve health.
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| WILL

Keep the ClearWay MN mission and charter at the forefront of every decision.
Remain fully committed to serving my roles and responsibilities.
Follow the best practices for Board governance.

Come prepared to all meetings.

Be fully engaged and participate in all Board meetings.
Respectfully listen to all points of view.

Be open and welcoming to all members.

Model the highest personal standards.

Address issues directly, honestly, respectfully and quickly.

Be accepting of different personal styles and perspectives.

Be open to innovate ideas, creative strategies and solutions.

Consistently deliver excellent work, thoughtful input and decisions.

ClearWay

~ MINNESOTA
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Approved by the ClearWay Minnesota Board of Directors September 19, 2012
Approved by the Ramsey County District Court May 14, 2013

l. Introduction

The Board of Directors of ClearWay Minnesota®™ is committed to governing the organization in a
manner that takes appropriate care to identify, minimize the impact of and, where possible, eliminate
actual, possible or perceived conflicts of interest. This policy is intended to assist ClearWay Minnesota
Board Members and employees in identifying actual conflicts of interest and situations in which there
might be a conflict or the appearance of a conflict even if no actual conflict exists. This document also
describes the procedures that the Board has established for disclosing and resolving conflict situations
that arise.

Every Board Member and employee is responsible for knowing and following this policy. Board
Members and employees receive regular training in how to follow and apply this policy. Each year,
every Board Member and employee reviews a list of current ClearWay Minnesota grantees and
contractors and discloses any relationships with organizations that have grants or contracts with
ClearWay Minnesota before submitting a mandatory certificate of compliance with this policy.
ClearWay Minnesota informs its vendors and grantees of this policy and its application.

I1. Definitions

1) A ClearWay Minnesota Board Member or employee is “affiliated” with an organization
(and has an “affiliation” with an organization) if he or she or a family member is an officer of,
director of, employed by, an independent contractor for, receiving proceeds from a ClearWay
Minnesota grant or contract, or has a financial interest in the organization.

2) A “Board Member” is a person who is on the ClearWay Minnesota Board. A Board
Member may be appointed or elected.

3) “Family members” of a person are the person’s spouse or domestic partner, parents,
stepparents, siblings, children, stepchildren, and spouses or domestic partners of the person’s
children and stepchildren.

4) “Relatives” of a person are the person’s aunts and uncles.

5) A person has a “financial interest” if the person has, directly or indirectly, through
governance, business or investment:

a) An existing, foreseeable or recent (within the past year) ownership interest of more
than 2 percent in any entity with which ClearWay Minnesota has, or is negotiating, a
grant, contract or other arrangement; or

b) An existing, foreseeable or recent (within the past year) compensation arrangement
1



with ClearWay Minnesota or with any entity or person with which ClearWay Minnesota
has, or is negotiating, a grant, contract or other arrangement.

I11.  Actual Conflict of Interest

To ensure that the decisions of the ClearWay Minnesota Board and employees are objective and
independent, the Board prohibits giving contracts and grants to Board Members or ClearWay
Minnesota employees, or the family members of either. If a Board Member or employee is affiliated
with an organization with which ClearWay Minnesota is considering a grant or contract, the person
may have an actual conflict of interest. The Board has created the following rules and procedures for
such situations.

1) Absolute Prohibition on Contracts and Grants with Board Members, Employees or
Their Family Members. ClearWay Minnesota will not give grants to, or enter into contracts
with, a ClearWay Minnesota Board Member or ClearWay Minnesota employees (except for
employment contracts) or the family members of either while the person is serving ClearWay
Minnesota and for one year after the person ceases to be a Board Member or employee of
ClearWay Minnesota.

2) Contracts with or Grants to Organizations Affiliated with Board Members. ClearWay
Minnesota will not give grants to, or enter into contracts with, organizations with which a
Board Member is affiliated at the time of his or her election or appointment to the ClearWay
Minnesota Board or at any time during his or her service as a Board Member unless:

a) The Board Member promptly resigns from the affiliated organization and for one
year thereafter does not participate in discussions or decisions by ClearWay Minnesota
about awarding or managing grants and contracts with the affiliated organization; or

b) The Board Member promptly resigns from the ClearWay Minnesota Board;
ClearWay Minnesota sends the affiliated organization a certification form; and within
30 days, that organization returns the form verifying that the person will not, for one
year following his or her resignation, participate in discussions or decisions of the
organization regarding seeking or fulfilling grants or contracts with ClearWay
Minnesota.

3) Contracts with or Grants to Organizations Affiliated with Family Members or
Relatives of Board Members. If a family member or relative of a Board Member is, or
becomes, affiliated with an organization that has a grant or contract with ClearWay Minnesota,
that organization must:

a) Certify in writing to ClearWay Minnesota that the family member or relative will not
solicit, supervise, manage, administer or have a financial interest in the ClearWay
Minnesota grant or contract for the duration of that grant or contract;

b) Submit the certification within 30 days after the disclosure of the relationship to the
affiliated organization or a written request from ClearWay Minnesota; and
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¢) Promptly update the certification if the status of the family member or relative
changes.

4) Contracts with or Grants to Organizations Affiliated with Employees. ClearWay
Minnesota will not give grants to, or enter into contracts with, organizations with which a
ClearWay Minnesota employee is affiliated unless:

a) The employee promptly resigns from the affiliated organization and for one year
thereafter does not participate in discussions or decisions by ClearWay Minnesota about
awarding or managing grants and contracts with the affiliated organization; or

b) The employee promptly resigns from ClearWay Minnesota; ClearWay Minnesota
sends the affiliated organization a certification form; and within 30 days, that
organization returns the form verifying that the person will not, for one year following
his or her resignation, participate in discussions or decisions of the organization
regarding seeking or fulfilling grants or contracts with ClearWay Minnesota.

5) Contracts with or Grants to Organizations Affiliated with Family Members or
Relatives of Employees. If a family member or relative of a ClearWay Minnesota employee is,
or becomes, affiliated with an organization that has a grant or contract with ClearWay
Minnesota, that organization must:

a) Certify in writing to ClearWay Minnesota that the family member or relative will not
solicit, supervise, manage, administer or have a financial interest in the ClearWay
Minnesota grant or contract for the duration of that grant or contract;

b) Submit the certification within 30 days after disclosure of the relationship to the
affiliated organization or a written request from ClearWay Minnesota; and

c) Promptly update the certification if the status of the family member or relative
changes.

IV.  Procedure for Disclosing an Actual Conflict of Interest

1) ClearWay Minnesota Board Members and Chief Executive Officer (CEO). Every

2)

Board Member and the CEO is responsible for disclosing any conflict as described in
Section 111 to the Chair of ClearWay Minnesota’s Board (Board Chair) or, if the Board
Chair has the conflict, to the Vice Chair of the Board as soon as he or she discovers the
conflict. If any action has been taken before the disclosure, the process outlined in Section
VII.1.b will be followed.

ClearWay Minnesota Employees. Every employee is responsible for disclosing any
conflict as described in Section 111 to the CEO as soon as he or she discovers the conflict. If
any action has been taken before the disclosure, the process outlined in Section VI1.2.b will
be followed.



V. Possible Conflict of Interest

Depending on the specific circumstances, a ClearWay Minnesota Board Member or employee could
have a conflict in the following situations. (Examples are provided for illustrative purposes only and
are not intended to be all-inclusive.) To ensure that the decisions of the ClearWay Minnesota Board
and employees are objective and independent, the Executive/Governance Committee of the ClearWay
Minnesota Board will determine whether an actual conflict of interest exists in these and similar
situations following the process detailed in Section VII. The Executive/Governance Committee also
may delegate the resolution of a possible conflict issue to another Board committee.

1) There is a proposed action involving ClearWay Minnesota in which a family member or
relative of a ClearWay Minnesota Board Member or employee has a financial interest; or

2) A person or an organization involved in decisions regarding the performance or supervision
of a ClearWay Minnesota grant or contract has a personal, social or business relationship with a
ClearWay Minnesota Board Member, employee, or a family member of either; or

3) A family member or relative of a ClearWay Minnesota Board Member or employee is
affiliated with an organization that has a grant or contract with ClearWay Minnesota.

VI.  Appearance of Conflict (Perceived Conflict)

A perception that the ClearWay Minnesota Board or employees are not making a fair, objective and
independent decision may be created by circumstances that fall outside of the definition of an actual
conflict of interest. The following examples (provided for illustrative purposes only and not intended
to be all-inclusive) demonstrate when the interests or concerns of Board Members or employees, or
their relationships with family members, relatives, or other persons or entities, could be seen as
affecting the decisions of ClearWay Minnesota. To protect the integrity and reputation of ClearWay
Minnesota, the Executive/Governance Committee will determine how a perceived conflict of interest
will be handled in these and similar situations following the process detailed in Section VII. The
Executive/Governance Committee also may delegate the resolution of a perceived conflict issue to
another Board committee.

1) ClearWay Minnesota considers a grant to an organization, and a ClearWay Minnesota
Board Member was previously on the board of that organization.

2) An appointed Board Member’s allegiance, or perceived allegiance, to his or her appointing
authority is perceived as influencing his or her objectivity on an issue before the ClearWay
Minnesota Board.

3) A ClearWay Minnesota employee or his or her spouse has a close friend (not a family
member or relative) who has a financial interest in a ClearWay Minnesota vendor or
grantee.



VII.

Procedures for Disclosing, Assessing and Addressing a Possible or Perceived Conflict or
an Actual Conflict Disclosed after Action has been Taken

1) For ClearWay Minnesota Board Members and the Chief Executive Officer

Every Board Member and the CEO must disclose to the Board Chair the relevant facts of any
proposed action involving ClearWay Minnesota in which he or she has a possible or perceived
conflict as soon as it is discovered. If the Board Chair has a possible or perceived conflict, he or
she must disclose to the Vice Chair the relevant facts of the possible or perceived conflict.

Every Board Member and the CEO must notify the Board Chair (or the Vice Chair if the matter
involves the Chair) if he or she thinks there is a conflict of interest with another Board Member
or the CEO on a particular action.

a) If the disclosure is made before the Board or a Board committee considers the
action

i. The Executive/Governance Committee will review the possible or perceived
conflict and decide by majority vote if the person has a conflict. The person
may be present at the Executive/Governance Committee meeting and, if the
person is a member of the committee, he or she may be counted toward a
quorum. The Executive/Governance Committee may ask the person for
relevant information about the situation but the person will not participate in
the discussion or voting.

ii. If the committee decides that the Board Member or CEO does not have a
conflict, he or she may participate in the consideration of the proposed
action. If the committee decides that the Board Member or CEO does have a
conflict, he or she will not participate in the consideration of the proposed
action.

iii. The Board Member or CEO may appeal the Executive/Governance
Committee’s decision to the ClearWay Minnesota Board. The Board will
decide the issue without the participation of the person whose conflict is in
question.

b) If the disclosure is made after the Board or a Board committee considers the
action

i. If a possible or perceived conflict is not discovered before the Board or
Board committee decides on the action, the Board Member or the CEO must
disclose the possible or perceived conflict to the Board Chair (or the Vice
Chair, if the Board Chair has the possible or perceived conflict) as soon as it
is discovered.

ii. The Executive/Governance Committee will follow the process outlined in
5



the VII.1.a to determine whether there is a conflict and, if so, what remedial
action should be taken. The Board Member or CEO may appeal both the
decision as to whether there is a conflict and the remedy to the Board.

2) For a ClearWay Minnesota Employee

Every ClearWay Minnesota employee must disclose to the CEO the relevant facts of any
proposed ClearWay Minnesota action in which the employee has a possible or perceived
conflict as soon as it is discovered. Every employee also must notify the CEO or the Board
Chair (if the matter involves the CEO) if he or she thinks there is a conflict of interest with
another employee on a particular action.

a) If the disclosure is made before the Board considers the action

The CEO will review the possible or perceived conflict and decide if the
employee has a conflict. In the case of an employee who reports directly to
the CEO, the CEO will advise the Board Chair of the decision about the
existence of a conflict, and the Board Chair will obtain the
Executive/Governance Committee’s confirmation of the proposed decision
before finalizing it.

If the employee has a conflict, he or she will not participate in the
deliberation or decision by ClearWay Minnesota regarding the action unless
the Board Chair or the CEO asks him or her to provide information.

The employee may appeal the conflict decision to the ClearWay Minnesota
Board, which will decide the issue.

b) If the disclosure is made after the Board considers the action

If a possible or perceived conflict is not discovered before the Board or a
Board committee decides on the action, the employee must disclose the
possible or perceived conflict to the CEO as soon as it is discovered.

. The CEO will review the possible or perceived conflict and decide if the

employee has a conflict. If the employee has a conflict, the CEO will
determine whether any remedial action will be taken.

In the case of an employee who reports directly to the CEO, the CEO will
advise the Board Chair of the decision about the existence of a conflict and
any necessary remedial action, and the Board Chair will obtain the
Executive/Governance Committee’s confirmation of the proposed decision
before finalizing it.

If the Board Chair or the CEO decides that the questions of a conflict or
remedial action should be referred to the Board or the Executive/Governance
Committee, the procedure described in Section V1I.1.a will be followed.
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v. The employee may appeal the conflict decision to the ClearWay Minnesota
Board, which will decide the issue.

VIIl. Records

Appropriate records will be kept to document the handling and resolution of all matters involving
conflicts.

IX. Policy Enforcement; Education and Training

The Executive/Governance Committee will consider and determine the enforcement of this policy, as
well as the education of ClearWay Minnesota Board Members and employees about this policy.

X. Gifts

No ClearWay Minnesota Board Member or employee may receive a gift, including tickets to sporting
or cultural events, from any third party in connection with their service to ClearWay Minnesota if the
value of such gift is greater than $5.00. ClearWay Minnesota employees must report any gifts they
receive to their supervisor. Gifts from prospective grantees or vendors will not be accepted.

Gifts of food or flowers with a value greater than $5.00 will be placed in a common area of the office
and shared with all employees and visitors. The aggregate value of the food or flowers cannot be
greater than $100.00. Any gift may be returned; gifts worth more than $100 must be returned.

ClearWay Minnesota employees may consume food or beverages provided by partners, vendors or
grantees while attending events or meetings as part of conducting ClearWay Minnesota business.
Employees do not have to pay the host organization for food or beverages consumed at such events or
meetings. Employees are not required to report meals consumed while conducting ClearWay
Minnesota business unless they are seeking reimbursement.

XI.  Consultant Fees, Honoraria

All ClearWay Minnesota employees and Board Members are encouraged to participate in community
and professional activities. If the activities are part of their ClearWay Minnesota duties and
responsibilities, any payment received must be turned over to ClearWay Minnesota. This includes any
fees derived from ClearWay Minnesota reports, activities, events, speaking engagements or honoraria
while employed by ClearWay Minnesota or while serving on the ClearWay Minnesota Board.

XIl.  Loans

ClearWay Minnesota will not loan money or property to, or guarantee the obligations of, any person.



AMENDED AND RESTATED BYLAWS
of
CLEARWAY MINNESOTAM
Effective Julyl7, 2013

ARTICLE VI
CONFLICT OF INTEREST; ACCEPTANCE OF GIFTS

Conflicts of interest, including policies relating to loans and gifts, are governed by ClearWay
Minnesota’s Restated Conflict of Interest Policy, adopted by ClearWay Minnesota’s Board of
Directors September 19, 2012.

Enforcement of the Conflict of Interest Policy shall be considered and determined by the
Executive/Governance Committee of the ClearWay Minnesota Board. Any final decision
relating to any conflict of interest matter involving ClearWay Minnesota shall be made by the
ClearWay Minnesota Board on the recommendation of the Executive/Governance Committee, or
a committee designated by the Executive/Governance Committee, of the ClearWay Minnesota
Board.
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ClearWay Minnesota’s Policy Position Statements and Proposed Changes for Fiscal Year 2014

Policy Positions

Proposed Changes for FY14

Policy Position One: ClearWay Minnesota supports
maintaining and increasing Minnesota’s tobacco prices.

Added new information describing the significant 2013
tobacco tax increase.

Added a section describing what e-cigarettes are and
how they are taxed.

Policy Position Two: ClearWay Minnesota supports the
adoption, implementation and enforcement of policies (public
and voluntary) that protect people from the dangers of
secondhand smoke.

Added a section specifically about the impact that
secondhand smoke has on children and youth.
Added a section about what is known about
secondhand vapor from e-cigarettes.

Policy Position Three: ClearWay Minnesota opposes state
laws that preempt the authority of local governments to pass
local standards for public health that go beyond the 2007
Minnesota Clean Indoor Air Act.

No changes.

Policy Position Four: ClearWay Minnesota supports additional
public funding of evidence-based efforts to reduce tobacco
use, especially among youth and young adults.

Updated data throughout the facts and background
sections of the statement.

Provided recent examples of ClearWay Minnesota’s
work to support public tobacco control funding.

Policy Position Five: ClearWay Minnesota supports public and
private sector efforts to ensure that all Minnesotans have
access to comprehensive cessation services.

Added information about the impact of tobacco user
premium surcharging, reflecting changes made by the
Affordable Care Act.

Added information about the impacts of health care
quality measurement as it relates to work with
Minnesota’s statewide measurement system.
Clarified ClearWay Minnesota’s position and work on
individual policies referenced in this statement.

Policy Position Six: ClearWay Minnesota supports Minnesota’s
American Indian Nations in their efforts to reduce commercial
tobacco use and create policy initiatives to prevent exposure
to secondhand smoke in workspaces, including restaurants,
bars and casinos, on Indian lands in Minnesota.

Added data about American Indian smoking
prevalence and exposure to secondhand smoke.
Added information about traditional tobacco use
among American Indians.

Policy Position Seven: ClearWay Minnesota supports the Food
and Drug Administration (FDA) using full legal authority in
regulating tobacco.

No changes.

Policy Position Eight: ClearWay Minnesota supports a ban on
menthol in cigarettes by the Food and Drug Administration.

Updated data throughout the facts and background
section of the statement.

Added information about the FDA’s independent
review of menthol literature.
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ClearWay Minnesota®™ Senior Management Team Biosketches

ClearWay Minnesota’s staff is made up of individuals with expertise in public health, tobacco
cessation, research, community development, finance, investments, communications, public
affairs and nonprofit administration. For Fiscal Year 2014, the Senior Management Team of the
organization consisted of:

Chief Executive Officer David J. Willoughby, M.A.

David J. Willoughby has served as CEO since November of 2000, and leads ClearWay
Minnesota’s efforts in all areas, including cessation, research, communications and public
affairs, community development and other initiatives.

In addition to his responsibilities at ClearWay Minnesota, Willoughby has developed
collaborative initiatives to reduce commercial tobacco’s harm and promote long-term health in
Indian Country. Willoughby also served on the Board of the North American Quitline
Consortium (NAQC) for five years and was Board Chair of that organization for three years.

Before joining ClearWay Minnesota, Willoughby was Vice President of Cancer Prevention and
Control for the Southwest Division of the American Cancer Society in Arizona. He also served
on the Arizona Advisory Council on Tobacco Prevention and Cessation.

Willoughby is bilingual in Spanish and English and holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in theology
and a Master’s in counseling.

Vice President Andrea Mowery

Andrea Mowery oversees the Communications and Public Affairs Departments and
organizational strategic planning for ClearWay Minnesota. Mowery has more than 20 years of
experience in the strategic communications and public affairs fields.

Mowery has shared her experience and skills with other states and organizations, helping them
select contractors, evaluate their programs and learn from Minnesota-based initiatives. Mowery
has presented at a number of conferences since joining ClearWay Minnesota, including the
National Conference on Tobacco or Health, the Society for Research on Nicotine and Tobacco,
the University of South Florida’s Social Marketing Conference and the U.S. Centers for Disease
Control and Prevention’s Media and Messaging Conference.

Formerly an account supervisor and the Health and Wellness Specialty Director at Tunheim in
Minneapolis, Mowery developed and managed strategic communications programs on behalf of
that agency’s clients, including United Health Group and Target Corporation. Prior to joining
Tunheim, Mowery worked as the Assistant Director of Special Projects at the Minnesota
Attorney General’s Office, developing social marketing and community relations campaigns to
advance policy.

Vice President Barbara A. Schillo, Ph.D.



Vice President Dr. Barbara Schillo provides oversight for research, cessation and knowledge
management initiatives and provides strategic and operational direction for the organization. As
a community psychologist, Dr. Schillo has directed projects, published and lectured in areas of
tobacco control, community health promotion and disease prevention, substance abuse, and
health policy.

Dr. Schillo currently serves as a Board Member for the North American Quitline Consortium.
Prior to her joining ClearWay Minnesota, she served as a Senior Program Director for the
Michigan Public Health Institute. Dr. Schillo received her doctorate and M.A. in community
psychology at Michigan State University and a B.A. in psychology from the University of
Minnesota.

Chief Financial Officer Paul R. Orman, C.P.A. [Inactive]

Paul Orman was been responsible for all investment, administration, finance and accounting
programs at ClearWay Minnesota from August of 2003 through August of 2014. Working
closely with the Board of Directors, Orman developed and maintained ClearWay Minnesota’s
financial forecast modeling tool, which projects investment allocations, earnings and spending
through 2023. During his tenure as CFO he was instrumental in overseeing the development
and/or improvement of comprehensive personnel, investment, information technology, fiscal,
budgeting, reporting and other policies and systems.

Orman has more than 20 years’ experience in nonprofit administration and investment oversight.
Prior to joining ClearWay Minnesota he was Chief Financial Officer and then Chief Investment
Officer at Minnesota Masonic Homes, a long-term care facility in Bloomington, Minnesota;
Deputy Director at the Minnesota Museum of American Art; Controller at a manufacturing
entity; and public accounting auditor at the firm now known as McGladrey LLP.

Orman resigned from ClearWay Minnesota in August of 2014.

Director of Research Programs Raymond Boyle, Ph.D., M.P.H
Dr. Raymond Boyle leads ClearWay Minnesota’s Research Department. He is responsible for
oversight of the grants and contracts within the research portfolio.

Dr. Boyle has enjoyed a 20-year career in tobacco control research. He completed his doctorate
at the University of Oregon and has a Master of Public Health degree in epidemiology from the
University of Minnesota. Dr. Boyle came to ClearWay Minnesota in 2009 from the University of
Minnesota, Department of Family Medicine and Community Health. He has published over more
than 70 peer-reviewed articles.

Director of Marketing and Communications Marietta Dreher

Marietta Dreher oversees all communications and mass-media strategies for ClearWay
Minnesota, including advertising, public relations, social media, event planning and general
communications. She has been with ClearWay Minnesota for more than 10 years.

Prior to joining ClearWay Minnesota, Dreher spent over a decade working in advertising in the
Twin Cities. Formerly an account supervisor at BBDO, Dreher worked on the New Jersey



Department of Health’s Comprehensive Tobacco Control Program, developing social marketing
campaigns in youth prevention and adult cessation. Dreher also worked in account management
at Clarity Coverdale Fury and Kruskopf Olson.

Dreher earned her Bachelor’s degree at the University of St. Thomas in economics.

Director of Cessation Programs Paula Keller, M.P.H.
Paula Keller oversees all aspects of ClearWay Minnesota’s smoking cessation initiatives,
including QUITPLAN® Services, policy initiatives, evaluation and strategic planning.

Keller has more than 20 years of experience in tobacco cessation, tobacco control policy and
public health. Prior to joining ClearWay Minnesota in 2010, Keller was Senior Policy Advisor
for the University of Wisconsin Center for Tobacco Research and Intervention. She also had key
roles with the Subcommittee on Cessation of the Interagency Committee on Smoking and Health
and in disseminating the 2008 U.S. Public Health Service Clinical Practice Guideline Update. In
addition, Keller served as Deputy Director for the Addressing Tobacco in Managed Research
Grants Program and served as Co-Principal and Project Director for tobacco control policy
research projects. She has published and presented on several tobacco control topics. Prior to
joining the University of Wisconsin, she managed various public health programs for the
Wisconsin Medical Society and the Health Resources and Services Administration.

Keller earned a Bachelor’s degree in community health education from the University of
Wisconsin — La Crosse and a Master’s of Public Health in public health policy and
administration from the University of Michigan.

Director of Community Development Jaime Martinez, M.Ed.

As Director of Community Development, Jaime Martinez oversees efforts to improve the
capacity of priority population communities to expand the tobacco control movement in
Minnesota. These populations include American Indians; Africans and African Americans;
Chicanos/Latinos; Asians, Asian Americans and Pacific Islanders; Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual,
Transgender and Queer (GLBTQ) communities; groups of low socio-economic status; and other
populations.

Martinez’s education includes Bachelor of Science and Master of Education degrees and he has
competed coursework toward a Ph.D. He has been a Kellogg Fellow in education with the
Institute for Education Leadership at the University of Minnesota and a Fellow in the Advocacy
Institute’s Tobacco Control Leadership Fellows Program in Washington, D.C. He has more than
20 years of experience in alcohol and tobacco policy in Minnesota.

Martinez’s community activities include having served on the boards of the Smoke-Free
Coalition and Minnesota Join Together Coalition to Reduce Youth Alcohol Use, the Minneapolis
Advisory Committee on Alcohol, Tobacco and Other Drug Problems, Minnesota Department of
Human Services State Alcohol and Other Drug Abuse Advisory Council, and the Minnesota
Public Health Association, where he served as President.



Martinez has been at ClearWay Minnesota since 2000 and previously worked for the Community
Prevention Coalition of Hennepin County, a community initiative with the Hennepin County
Community Health Department. His work in alcohol policy has been featured in a publication
titled Case Histories in Alcohol Policy, by the Trauma Foundation, San Francisco General
Hospital, San Francisco, California, 2001. His work has received numerous honors and awards
and he is often guest faculty at the School of Public Health, University of Minnesota.

Director of Public Affairs Molly Moilanen , M.P.P.

Molly Moilanen leads ClearWay Minnesota’s public policy efforts. She is responsible for
advancing tobacco control policies at the local and state level using grassroots organizing, direct
lobbying and public relations. Since Moilanen joined ClearWay Minnesota in 2004, she has
managed various QUITPLAN programs and developed the local policy grant program. She also
served on the organization’s internal strategic planning team and currently co-chairs a coalition
of more than 30 health and nonprofit organizations committed to passing statewide policies to
further reduce tobacco’s harm in Minnesota.

Before coming to ClearWay Minnesota, Moilanen served as a Senior Program Officer at
ServeMinnesota, where she oversaw the state’s AmeriCorps programs. She also worked for
Minnesota Senator Steve Kelley and taught Master’s-level public policy courses at Concordia
University in St. Paul.

Moilanen graduated from Grinnell College with a B.A. in political science and earned a Master’s
degree in public policy from the Humphrey School of Public Affairs at the University of
Minnesota.
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"OLSEN THIELEN & Co., LTD.

Certified Public Accountants & Consultants

REPORT TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT/FINANCE COMMITTEE

Board of Directors and Audit/Finance Committee
ClearWay Minnesota™
Bloomington, Minnesota

We have audited the financial statements of ClearWay Minnesota®™ for the year ended
June 30, 2014, and have issued our report thereon dated August 28, 2014. Professional standards
require that we provide you with the following information related to our audit.

Our Responsibility Under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards

As stated in our engagement letter dated June 16, 2014, our responsibility, as described by
professional standards, is to express an opinion about whether the financial statements prepared by
management with your oversight are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve
you or management of your responsibilities.

Our responsibility is to plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonabie, but not absolute, assurance
that the financial statements are free of material misstatement. As part of our audit, we considered
the internal control of the Organization. Such considerations were solely for the purpose of
determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such internal
control. We are responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our
professional judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process.
However, we are not required to design procedures specifically to identify such matters.

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit

We performed the audit according to the planned scope and timing previously communicated to you
in our discussion of planning matters on June 24, 2014.

2675 Long Lake Road, St. Paul, Minnesota 55113-1117 65T 483 4521 FAX 651 489 2467
300 Prairie Center Drive, Ste. 300, Minneapolis, Minnesota 55344-7908 952 941 9242 FAX 952 941 0577



ClearWay Minnesota®
Page 2

Significant Audit Findings

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The
significant accounting policies used by the Organization are described in Note 1 to the financial
statements. No new accounting poficies were adopted and the application of existing policies was
not changed during the year. We noted no transactions entered into by the Organization during the
year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions
have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and
are based on management's knowledge and experience about past and current evenis and
assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are pariicularly sensitive because of
their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events
affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting
the financial statements were as follows:

Estimate Management's Method of Determination

Marketable Securities Based on fair market value determined by
quoted market prices.

Alternative Investments and Private Equity Based on net contributions to the fund plus
Fund of Funds allocated share of undistributed profit and losses
including realized and unrealized gains and

iosses.

Based on review of employee duties and time
Functional Expense Allocation studies and estimated program use of facilities,
services and office expenses

We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the estimates in determining that
they are reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

The disclosures in the financial statements are neutral, consistent, and clear.
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit.
We wish to thank the Organization’s management and staff for their assistance.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatemenis

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified
during the audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of
management. No such misstatements were identified.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial
statements or the auditor's report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose
during the course of our audit.



ClearWay Minnesota®™
Page 3

Significant Audit Findings (Continued)

Management Representation

We have requested certain representation from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated August 28, 2014.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation
involves application of an accounting principle to the Organization’s financial statements or a
determination of the type of auditor's opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our
professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the
consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other
accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and
auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Organization’s auditors.
However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our
responses were not a condition to our retention.

This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Directors and Audit/Finance

Committee and management of the Organization and is not intended to be and should not be used
by anyone other than these specified parties.

St. Paul, Minnesota O,@@/) MVJ + éﬂ.} LT/J

August 28, 2014
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"OLSEN THIELEN & Co., LTD.

Certified Public Accountants & Consultants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Board of Directors
ClearWay Minnesota™
Bloomington, Minnesota

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of ClearWay Minnesota®™ (a nonprofit
organization) which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2014 and 2013,and
the related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the years then ended,
and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers intermal control
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order fo
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express
no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of ClearWay Minnesota® as of June 30, 2014 and 2013 and the changes in its net
assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in conform|ty with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

St. Paul, Minnesota O% J % & éy.j Ufé/-

August 28, 2014

26%5 Long Lake Road, St. Paul, Minnesota 55113-1117 651 483 4521 FAX 651 483 2467
3006 Prairie Center Drive, Ste. 300, Minneapolis, Minnesota 55344-7908 952 941 9242 FAX 952 941 0577



CLEARWAY MINNESOTASM

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

ASSETS
2014 2013
Cash and cash equivalents $ 18,486 $ 17,885
Accounts receivable 65,451 112,654
Prepaid expenses 58,495 60,471
Investments 84,977,918 92,918,379
Equipment and leasehold improvements, net 42,590 64,095
TOTAL ASSETS $ 85,162,940 3 93,173,454
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable $ 687,807 $ 1,167,048
Accrued expenses 172,050 123,609
Grants payable 3,312,649 2,551,020
Total liabilities 4,172,506 3,841,677
NET ASSETS:
Unrestricted - designated for tobacco research and
other tobacco control purposes 80,990,434 89,331,817
Total net assets 80,990,434 86,331,817
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 85,162,940 $ 93,173,494

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

2



CLEARWAY MINNESOTASM

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

REVENUE AND GAINS:
Net investment income
Contributions and grants
Total revenue and gains

EXPENSES:
Program services:
Tobacco cessation
Research and other tobacco issues
Total program services

Supporting services:
General and administrative
Total expenses
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS at beginning of year

NET ASSETS at end of year

2014 2013

$ 8,413,327 $ 5,806,607
204,097 474,451
8,617,424 6,281,058
12,321,138 11,892,709
3,436,667 1,891,642
15,757,805 13,784,351
1,201,002 1,097,249
16,958,807 14,881,600
{8,341,383) (8,600,542)
89,331,817 97,932,359

$ 80,990,434 $ 89,331,817

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

3
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CLEARWAY MINNESOTASM

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

RECONCILIATION OF DECREASE IN NET ASSETS
TO NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Change in Net Assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to

net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation
Unrealized gains on investments
Realized gains on investments
Change in assets and liabilities:
Receivables
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Grants payable
Net cash used in operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of equipment
Purchase of investments
Proceeds from sale of investments
Net cash provided by investing activities

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS at beginning of year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS at end of year

The accompanying notes are an infegral part of the financial statements.

5

2014

(8,341,383)

32,046
(3,156,025)
(4,511,088)

47,203
1,876
(479,241)
48,441
761,629

15,596,442

{10,021)
(82,315,453)

__ 97,922,507
15,697,033

591

17,895

18,486

$

2013

{8,600,542)

30,598
(2,452,079)
(2,043,043)

(110,833)
12,101

563,056
(1,523)

445,622

{13,047 ,887)

(21,903)
{64,043,150)
77,058,230

12,983,177

(54,710)

72,605

$

17,895



CLEARWAY MINNESOTASY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Organization

ClearWay Minnesota® is an independent, nonprofit organization that works to improve the health of
all Minnesotans by eliminating the harm caused by tobacco. ClearWay Minnesota was created in
1998 to administer 3 percent ($202 million) of Minnesota's tobacco seftlement funds over a period
of 25 years.

ClearWay Minnesota’s mission is to enhance life in Minnesota by reducing tobacco use and
exposure to secondhand smoke through research, action and collaboration. The ordanization's
work is grounded in sound science and public health best practices, and includes a comprehensive
body of tobacco cessation programs {marketed as QUITPLAN® Services), extensive grant-making
activities in areas of research, policy and community development, and media campaigns to raise
awareness of the harms of tobacco use and secondhand smoke exposure.

Basis of Presentation

Financial statement presentation follows generally accepted accounting principles as outlined in the
Financial Accounting Standards Board's Accounting Standards Codification {ASC) 958. Under ASC
958 ClearWay Minnesota is required to report information regarding its financial position and
activities according to three classes of net assets, unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net
assets and permanently restricted net assets. ClearWay Minnesota has no temporarily or
permanently restricted net assets.

Accounting Estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumpfions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash Equivalents

ClearWay Minnesota considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less
when purchased to be cash equivalents except for money market and short-term investment funds,
which are detailed in Note 3.

Equipment and Leasehold Improvements

Equipment and leasehold improvements are carried at cost or, if donated, at the approximated fair
value at the date of donation. Additions, improvements or major renewals are capitalized. If items of
property are sold, retired or otherwise disposed of, they are removed from the asset and
accumulated depreciation accounts and any gain or loss thereon is reflected in the statement of
activities. ClearWay Minnesota capitalizes assets with a cost of $2,500 or greater,

Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets
as follows:

Leasehold improvements 5-10 Years
Furniture and fixiures 7 Years
Office equipment 5 Years
Computer software and equipment 3 Years



CLEARWAY MINNESOTASM

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying value of prepaid expenses, accounts payable and accrued expenses are reasonable
estimates of their fair value due to the short-term nature of these financial instruments.

Investments in marketable securities are stated at fair value, which is determined by quoted market
prices at June 30, 2014 and 2013. Alternative investment fund of funds and private equity fund of
funds, for which there is no public market, are valued at net contributions to the fund plus allocated
share of undistributed profit and losses, including realized and unrealized gains and losses based
on the financial information provided by the investee funds’ management, which may include
audited financial statements of the investee funds. Because these alternative investments are not
readily marketable, their estimated value is subject to uncertainty and, therefore, may differ from the
value that would have been used had a ready market for such investment existed.

In general, investments are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, credit and overall market
volatility risk. Due to the level of risk associated with certain investments, it is reasonably possible
that changes in the values of the investment will occur in the near future and that such changes
could materially affect the investment balances.

Included in investments on the statement of financial position are money market and short-term
investment funds. The money market and short-term investment funds are readily convertible to
cash and are stated at cost plus accrued interest, which approximates fair value.

Grants payable are stated at fair value by discounting payments due in more than one year. Grants
payable cancelled in a subsequent year are recorded in the year of cancellation.

Fair Value Measurements

Under generally accepted accounting principles as outlined in the Financial Accounting Standards
Board’s Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 820, fair value is the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. ASC 820 establishes a three-level fair value hierarchy that prioritizes
information used in developing assumptions when pricing an asset or liability as follows:

Level 1

Financial assets and liabilities are vaiued using inputs that are unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets accessible at the measurement date of identical financial assets and liabilities. The
inputs include those traded on an active exchange, such as the New York Stock Exchange, as
well as U.S. Treasury and other U.S. government and agency mortgage-backed securities that
are traded by dealers or brokers in active over-the-counter markets.

Level 2

Financial assets and liabilities are valued using inputs that are quoted prices for similar assets, or
inputs that are observable, either directly or indirectly for substantially the full term through
corroboration with observable market data. Level 2 includes private collateralized mortgage
obligations and private corporate debt securities.

Level 3

Financial assets and liabilities are valued using pricing inputs which are unobservable for the
asset, inputs that reflect the reporting entity’s own assumptions about the assumptions market
participants would use in pricing the asset. Level 3 includes private equity, alternative investments
and commodities.

The fair values of the Organization’s investments were determined based on inputs as presented in
Note 3.



CLEARWAY MINNESOTASM

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Functional Allocation of Expense

The costs of providing various programs and services are summarized on a functional basis on the
statement of activities. Accordingly, certain costs were allocated among the programs or services
benefited based on best estimates by management. '

Program Grants and Contracts

Program grants and contract expenses are reported on the statements of functional expenses net of
grant cancellations, if any.

Income Taxes

ClearWay Minnesota is exempt from federal income taxes under the provisions of Section 501(c)(3)
of the Internal Revenue Code. The Organization is also exempt from Minnesota income taxes.

The Organization follows the current accounting guidance related to uncertainty in income taxes.
This guidance clarifies the recognition threshold and measurement requirements for income tax
positions taken or expected to be taken in income tax returns. This includes positions that the entity
is exempt from income taxes or not subject to additional income tax liability on unrelated business
income. Under the standards, the Organization recognizes tax benefits from uncertain tax positions
only if it is more likely than not that the tax positions will be sustained on examination by taxing
authorities. The Organization has identified no significant income tax uncertainties. The
Organization files information returns as a tax-exempt organization. Should that status be
challenged in the future, all years since inception could be subject to review by the IRS.

The Organization’s federal and state information returns are open to examination for tax years 2011
through 2013,

Advertising Expense
Advertising expense is expensed as incurred.

NOTE 2 - EQUIPMENT AND LEASEHOLD IMPROVEMENTS

Equipment and leasehold improvements at June 30, 2014 and 2013 consist of the following:

2014 2013
Leasehold improvements $ 26,243 $ 26,243
Fumiture and fixtures 72,586 62,046
Office equipment 61,759 61,759
Computer software and equipment 204,767 207,639
365,355 357,687
Less accumulated depreciation 322,765 293,502
Net equipment and leasehold improvements $ 42,590 $ 64,095

Depreciation expense for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 was $32,046 and $30,598,
respectively.



CLEARWAY MINNESOTASM

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 3 - INVESTMENTS

Investments are stated at fair value at June 30, 2014 and 2013, and consisted of the following:

2014 2013

Money market and short-term investment funds $ 2,183,427 3 7,599,837
Bonds and pooled bond funds 51,280,391 45,059,408
U.S. equity fund - all cap index 4,994,295 -
U.S. equity fund - large cap enhanced index - 7,113,724
International equities 4,332,898 8,315,123
Alternative investment fund of funds 5,243,264 10,013,159
Private equity fund of funds 14,358,368 12,417 516
Commodity index fund 2,585,275 2,398,612

Total $ 84,977,918 3 92918,379

Net investment income for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 consisted of the following:

2014 2013
interest income $ 948,131 $ 1,598,658
Realized gains on sales of investments 4,511,088 2,043,043
Unrealized gains on investmenis 3,156,025 2,452,079
Management fees {201,917) (287,173)
Total $ 8,413,327 $ 5,806,607

ClearWay Minnesota has purchase commitments to invest in private equity fund of fund portfolios. These
commitments are currently estimated to be called by June 2015 and will be funded with other investment funds.
At June 30, 2014, ClearWay Minnesota had outstanding and unfunded investment purchase commitments of
$2,933,000.

The following tables, as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, provide information by Level for assets that are measured
at fair value.

Fair value measurements
using inputs considered as

Description Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
2014:

Money market and short-term investment funds $ 2,183,427 % 2183427 $ - % -
Bonds and pooled bond funds 51,280,391 51,280,391 - -
U.S. equity fund - all cap index 4,994,295 4,994,295 - -
International equities 4,332,898 4,332,898 - -
Alternative investment fund of funds 5,243,264 - 742,996 4,500,268
Private equity fund of funds 14,358,368 - - 14,358,368
Commedity index fund 2,585,275 - 2,580,311 4,964

Totals $ 84,977,918 $62,791,011 $ 3,323,307 $ 18,863,600




CLEARWAY MINNESOTASM

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 3 - INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Fair value measurements
using inputs considered as

Description Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
2013:

Money market and short-term investment funds $ 7599837 § 7599837 $ - 5 -
Bonds and pooled bond funds 45,059,408 45,059,408 - -
U.S. equity fund - large cap enhanced index 7,113,724 7,113,724 - -
International equities 8,315,123 8,315,123 - -
Alternative investment fund of funds 10,013,159 - 4,677,024 5,336,135
Private equity fund of funds 12,417,516 - - 12,417 516
Commodity index fund 2,399,612 - 2,391,213 8,399

Totals $ 92,918,379 $68,088,092 § 7068237 $17,762,050

Fair value measurements of investments in entities which utilize inputs classified as Level 2 and Level 3 include
international equities, alternative investment fund of funds, private equity fund of funds, and the commodity
index fund. The Organization uses the net asset value of these investment entities to determine the fair value of
these investments which do not have a readily determinable fair value and either have the attributes of an
investment company or prepare their financial statements consistent with the measurement principles of an
investment company.

Alternative investment fund of funds includes investments in limited partnerships. These limited partnerships are
invested in investment funds which in turn are invested in domestic or foreign stocks and bonds. The fair value
of the investment in the limited partnerships are based on quoted market prices for the underlying securities
which comprise the net asset value of the partnerships or the capital balances reported by the underlying
partnerships.

Private equity fund of funds are invested in limited partnerships which have invested primarily in venture capital
and limited partnerships, which in turn are invested in domestic and foreign stocks. The fair value has been
estimated based on quoted market prices for the underlying securities or the capital balances reported by the
underlying partnerships.

Commodity index funds include investments in multi-strategy commodity funds. The funds allocate assets

across a broad spectrum of commodity-oriented asset categories. The fair value has been estimated based on
the investment balances reported by the commodity fund.

10



CLEARWAY MINNESOTASM

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 3 - INVESTMENTS (Continued)

The following table provides summary of changes in fair value of the Organization's Leve! 3 financial assets for
the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2014:

Investments in Investee Funds by Class
Alternative Investments  Private Equity ~ Commaodity

Total Fund of Funds Fund of Funds  Index Fund
Balance at June 30, 2012 $ 17,583,068 $ 5,908,219 $ 11,575,069 $ 9,780
Purchases 1,305,000 - 1,305,000 -
Sales {2,834,286) {1,754,171) (1,078,755) {1,360)
Net realized and unrealized gains
(losses) on investments 1,233,511 617,864 616,202 {555)
Investment expense {92,203) {92,201) - (2)
Transfers in and out of Level 3 566,960 566,424 - 536
Balance at June 30, 2013 17,762,050 5336,135 12,417,516 8,399
Purchases 805,000 - 905,000 -
Sales (6,544,153) (3,378,860) (3,165,293) -
Net realized and unrealized gains
on investments 4,763,085 561,453 4,201,145 487
Invesiment Expense {87,606) (87,622) - 16
Transfers in and out of Level 3 2,065,224 2,069,162 - (3,938)
Balance at June 30, 2014 $ 18,863,600 $ 4,500,268 $ 14358368 4,964

NOTE 4 - CONCENTRATIONS

Financial instruments which potentially subject ClearWay Minnesota to concenirations of credit risk consist
principally of cash and investments. At times during fiscal years 2014 and 2013, cash balances exceeded
federally insured limits. The investments are not insured and involve risks, including the possible loss of the
principal invested.

NOTE 5 - GRANTS PAYABLE
Grants payable at June 30, 2014 and 2013, are as follows:

2014 2013
Payable in less than one year $ 2,280,519 $ 2,074,683
Payable in one to five years 1,129,822 510,621
Subtotal 3,410,341 2,585,304
Less: discount to present value at 7.00% 97,692 34,284
Total grants payable $ 3,312,649 $ 2,551,020

NOTE 6 - RETIREMENT PLAN

ClearWay Minnesota participates in a 401(k) defined contribution retirement investment plan that covers all
employees who meet eligibility requirements. For the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, the plan provided
eligible employees with a 50% matching contribution up to 5% of the employee’s compensation, a safe harbor
contribution of 3% and a discretionary employer contribution of 7%. ClearWay Minnesota’s contributions to the
plan totaled $329,546 and $309,041 for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

11



CLEARWAY MINNESOTASY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 7 - COMMITMENTS

ClearWay Minnesota has entered into leases for office space and equipment. Future minimum
lease payments for the next five years under these lease agreements are as follows:

Years Ending June 30;

2015 $ 130,600
2016 130,292
2017 132,195
2018 24,220
2019 - =

Total $ 417,307

Occupancy expense for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, was $155,646 and $172,471,
respectively.

NOTE 8 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
ClearWay Minnesota evaluated its June 30, 2014 financial statements for subsequent events
through August 28, 2014, the date the financial statements were approved by ClearWay

Minnesota's Audit/Finance Committee. ClearWay Minnesota is not aware of any subsequent
events which would require recognition or disclosure in the financial statements.

12



"OLSEN THIELEN & CO., LTD.

Certified Public Accountants & Consultants

REPORT TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT/FINANCE COMMITTEE

Board of Directors and Audit/Finance Committee
ClearWay Minnesota™
Bloomington, Minnesota

We have audited the financial statements of ClearWay Minnesota®™ for the year ended
June 30, 2014, and have issued our report thereon dated August 28, 2014. Professional standards
require that we provide you with the following information related to our audit.

Qur Responsibility Under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards

As stated in our engagement letter dated June 16, 2014, our responsibility, as described by
professional standards, is to express an opinion about whether the financial statements prepared by
management with your oversight are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve
you or management of your responsibilities.

Our responsibility is to plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
that the financial statements are free of material misstatement. As part of our audit, we considered
the internal control of the Organization. Such considerations were solely for the purpose of
determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such internal
control. We are responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our
professional judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process.
However, we are not required to design procedures specifically to identify such matters.

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit

We performed the audit according to the planned scope and timing previously communicated to you
in our discussion of planning matters on June 24, 2014.

2675 Long Lake Road, 3t. Paul, Minnesota 55113-1117 651 483 4521 FAX 657 483 2467
360 Prairie Center Drive, Ste. 300, Minneapolis, Minnesota 55344-7908 952 9419242 FAX 952 g41 05%7



ClearWay Minnesota™
Page 2

Significant Audit Findinas

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The
significant accounting policies used by the Organization are described in Note 1 to the financial
statements. No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was
not changed during the year. We noted no transactions entered into by the Organization during the
year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions
have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and
are based on management's knowledge and experience about past and current events and
assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of
their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events
affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting
the financial statements were as follows:

Estimate Management's Method of Determination

Marketable Securities Based on fair market value determined by
quoted market prices.

Alternative Investments and Private Equity Based on net contributions to the fund plus
Fund of Funds allocated share of undisiributed profit and losses
including realized and unrealized gains and

losses.

Based on review of employee duties and time
Functional Expense Allocation studies and estimated program use of facilities,
services and office expenses

We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the estimates in determining that
they are reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

The disclosures in the financial statements are neutral, consistent, and clear.
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit.
We wish to thank the Organization's management and staff for their assistance.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified
during the audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of
management. No such misstatements were identified.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial
statements or the auditor's report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose
during the course of our audit.



ClearWay Minnesota®"
Page 3

Significant Audit Findings (Continued)

Management Representation

We have requested certain representation from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated August 28, 2014,

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation
involves application of an accounting principle to the Organization’s financial statements or a
determination of the type of auditor's opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our
professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the
consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other
accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and
auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Organization’s auditors.
However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our
responses were not a condition to our retention.

This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Directors and Audit/Finance

Commitiee and management of the Organization and is not intended to be and should not be used
by anyone other than these specified parties.

St. Paul, Minnesota O,@@ﬂ M & w./ (’w

August 28, 2014
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T MINNESOTA

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENT CERTIFICATION

David J. Willoughby/Paul R. Orman individually certify that:

1. Each has reviewed the audited financial statements for the years ended June 30, 2014 and
2013 of ClearWay Minnesota;

2. Based on the knowledge of each of the undersigned, after due review and consideration, the
financial statements, and other financial information included in the statements, fairly present
in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of
ClearWay Minnesota as of, and for, the period presented in these financial statements.

LS

Based on the knowledge of each of the undersigned, there are appropriate procedures,
processes and adequate systems of internal controls in place at ClearWay Minnesota to
support the undersigned’s representation in paragraph 2 above that the financial statements
fairly represent the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of ClearWay
Minnesota, and to detect noncompliance with applicable laws and regulations and with the
governing documents and policies of ClearWay Minnesota,

Datéd: 0?/ 7'9’ / 20 I?[ Signature: DM ﬁ
~~David J. Wjlloughby

Chief Executive Officer

Dated: 02’/ z 2:/ 20/ ?/ Signature: CW/ f—

PAIl R, Orman
Chief Financial Officer

Reducing tobacco's harm.
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Form Under section 501(c), 527, or 4847{a}{1} of the Internal Revenue Code {except private foundations) 20 1 3
Department of the Treasury B~ Do not enter Social Security numbers on this form as it may be made public. Gpen to Public-
Internal Revenue Service P Information about Form 990 and its instructions is at W irs. coufarmaan - inspection 7y
A For the 2013 calendar year, or tax year beginning UL 1, 2013 andending JUN 30, 2014
B chekit |G Name of organization D Employer identification number
applicabla:
Ganes | CLEARWAY MINNESOTA (SM)
E%E?e Doing Business As 41-1921094
return Number and straet (or P.0. box if mail is not delivered to street address) Room/suite | E Telephone number
JTermin- TWO APPLETREE SQ, 8011 347TH AVE 8 400 952-767-1400
e[ Gity or town, state or province, country, and ZIP or foreign postal code G Gross receipts § 99,074,735,
Dﬁﬁﬁg_ﬁa' MINNEAPOLIS, MN 55425 _ Hia} Is this a group retum
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[Part 1| Summary
o | 1 Brefly describe the organization's mission or most significant activities: CLEARWAY MINNESQTA (SM) IS5 AN
% INDEPENDENT NONPROFIT OQRGANIZATION THAT WORKS TO IMPROVE THE HEALTH *
g 2 Check this box P~ LJ if the organization discontinued its operations or disposed of more than 25% of its net assets.
32 | 8 Number of voting members of the governing body (PartVl, tine 1ay 3 19
g 4 Number of independent voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 16) 4 19
$ | 5 Total number of individuals ermployed in calendar year 2013 (Part V, line 2a) 5 30
:‘g 6 Total number of volunteers {estimate fnecessary) . & 22
E 7 a Total unrelated business revenue from Part VI, cotumn (C), line 12 Ta 3,812.
b Net unrelated business taxable income from Form 980T, e 84 7b 0.
Prior Year Current Year
o | 8 Contributions and grants (Part VIl ine 1y 474,451, 204,097,
5| © Program service revenue (Part Vil fine2g) 0. 0.
% | 10 Investment Income (Part VIIl, column (), lines 3, 4, and 70} . 3,641,701, 5,459 ,2189.
© | 11 Otherrevenue (Part VINl, column (&), lines 5, 6, 8¢, 9¢, 100, and e, 0. 0.
12 Total revenue - add lines Bthrough 11 (must BWMi‘ qjtu?nWlme 12) .. 4,116,152, 5,663,316,
13 3 3,848,173. 6,482,927,
14 0. ¢.
g |15 3,223,582, 3,272,936,
2 | 18a Professional fy ing\f¢ck (St 0. 0.
;% b Total fundraisite-etpenses (Part 1, column (D}, Ilne 25 b 0. oo e L R
W 1147 Other expenses (Part IX, column (A), lines 11a-11d, 11+24¢) 8 0 9 7 0 O g. 7,404 ,861.
18 Total expenses. Add lines 13-17 (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25) _____________________ 15,168,773, 17,160,724,
19 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 18 frombine 12 . <11,052,621.p<11,4597,408.>
58 . : Beginning of Gurrent Year End of Year
§§ 20 Totalassets (PartX ine18) . e, 93,173,494, 85,162,940.
<3| 21 Total liabilties (Part X, ne 26) . 3,841,677, 4,172,506.
25| 22 Net assets or fund balances, Subtract ling 21 from fine 20 89,331,817.| 80,990,434,
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Under penalties of perjury, | declare that ¢ have examined this return, ingluding accompanying schedwies and statements, and lo the best of my knowledge and belief, it is
trug, corract, and complete. Declaration of preparer (other than officer} is based on all infermation of which preparer has any knowledge.

Sign P Signature af afficer Data

Here DAVID J. WILLOUGHBY, CHIEF EXEC OFFICER
> ‘1ype or print name and title

Print/Type preparer's name parer's signature Uate Check L_J[ PTIN
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+ Form 990 (2013) CLEARWAY MINNESOTA (SM) 41-71921094 page2

Part lll:] Statement of Program Service Accomplishments

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note toany lineinthis Part 1 @
1  Byiefly describe the organization’s mission:
SEE PART I, LINE 1
2 Did the organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on
the prior Form 990 or 990-EZ7 [ Ives No

If “Yes," describe these new services on Schedule O.

Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program services? Yes D No
If "Yes,” describe these changes on Schedule Q.

Describe the organization’s program service accomplishments for each of its thres largest program services, as measured by expenses,
Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to others, the total expenses, and
revenue, if any, for each program service reported.

4a

{Code: } {Expenses $ 7,406,182, including grants of $ 1,266 ,827. ) (Revenue s 0. )
COMMUNICATIONS AND PURBLIC AFFAIRS
COMMUNICATIONS AND OUTREACH ACTIVITIES HELP CLEARWAY MINNESOTA PROMOTE
ITS CESSATION SERVICES, MOTIVATE MINNESOTA TOBACCO USERS TO QULIT AND
EDUCATE MINNESOTANS ABQUT THE DANGERS OF TOBACCO USE AND SECONDHAND
SMOKE. CLEARWAY MINNESOTA DEVELOPS ITS COMMUNICATIONS CAMPAIGNS AFTER
EXTENSIVE RESEARCH AND PLANNING, USING GUIDELINES FROM THE U.S. CENTERS
FOR DISEASE CONTROL AND PREVENTION (CDC) AND LEARNING FROM THE
EXPERIENCES OF NATIONAL AND STATE PARTNERS.

CLEARWAY MINNESQOTA CONDUCTS STATEWIDE ADVERTISING CAMPAIGNS CONSISTING
OF PAID BROADCAST, INTERNET, PRINT AND QUT-OF-HOME ADVERTISING.
ADDITIONALLY, CLEARWAY MINNESOTA CONDUCTS AN OUTREACH PROGRAM OF *

b

{Code: ) (Expensess 3 I 197 r 920. including grants of $ 2 ' 49 2 I 383. ) (Hevenue$ 0. }
RESEARCH
CLEARWAY MINNESOTA PROVIDES GRANTS TO ACADEMIC, PROFESSICONAL AND
COMMUNITY-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AROQUND THE STATE TO CONDUCT RESEARCH THAT
ADVANCES SCIENTIFIC KNOWLEDGE OF EFFECTIVE TOBACCO CONTROL PROGRAMS AND
POLICIES.

DURING FISCAL YEAR 2014, CLEARWAY MINNESOTA AWARDED TWO GRANTS TO
ADVANCE OUR KNOWLEDGE OF THE IMPACT OF MENTHQCL CIGARETTES AND FOUR
GRANTS TO STUDY INNOVATIVE APPROACHES TO FURTHER REDUCE EXPOSURE TO
SECONDHAND SMOKE. CLEARWAY MINNESOTA ALSO CONTRACTS TO EVALUATE 1TS
MAJOR PROGRAMMATIC EFFORTS. IN ADDITION, CLEARWAY MINNESOTA CONDUCTS
SURVEILLANCE RESEARCH TO MONITQOR TRENDS IN TOBACCO-RELATED KNOWLEDGE,
ATTITUDES AND BEHAVIORS OVER TIME AND TO MEASURE THE IMPACT OF TOBACCO *

4c

(Ccde: )(Expenses$ 3 ' 7 88 ’ 29 3 * including grants of $ 1 [ 51 6 ’ 5 24 . ) (Hevanues 0 . )
CESSATION
CLEARWAY MINNESOTA SERVES MINNESOTANS BY PROVIDING EVIDENCE-BASED OR
PROMISING PROGRAMS TO HELP PEQPLE QUIT TOBACCO USE. SINCE INCEPTION,
QUITPLAN SERVICES HAS HELPED MORE THAN 100,000 MINNESOTANS IN THEIR
ATTEMPTS TO QUIT.

CLEARWAY MINNESOTA ALSO HELPS DIRECT MTNNESOTANS TO APPROPRIATE
CESSATION SERVICES, EITHER THROUGH QUITPLAN SERVICES OR THROUGH THEIR
HEALTH PLANS.

THE QUILTPLAN HELPLINE PROVIDES TELEPHONE CQUNSELING AND PRINTED
MATERIALS TO UNINSURED MINNESOTANS AND THOSE WHOSE INSURANCE DOES NOT *

4d

Other program services (Describe in Schedule O.)

(Expenses % 1 ’ 3 6 5 ’ 4 10 » including grants of $ 1 r 2 0 7 r 1 9 3 . ) (ﬂevanue 3 )

4e

Total program service expenses P 15,757,805,

332002

Form 990 (2013)

10-29-13 * SEE SCHEDULE O FOR CONTINUATION(S)



+ Form 990 (2013) CLEARWAY MINNESOTA (SM) 41-1921094 page3d
[PartV.{ Checklist of Required Schedules

Yes | No
1 Isthe organization described in section 501{c)(3) or 4947{a)(1} (cther than a private foundation)?
IF7Y8S," COMPIBIE SCABLIUIE A | ||| |||\t s e e oo 1 | X
2 Is the organization required to complete Schedule 8, Schedule of Contributorsy X
3 Did the organization engage in direct or indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition to candidates for
public office? If "Yes," complete Schedule C, Part! | e 3 X
4 Section 501{c}{3) organizations. Did the organization engage in lobbying activities, or have a sectlon 501(h) election in effect
during the tax year? If "Yes," complete Schedule C, Partlf ... 4 | X
5 Is the organization a section 501(c)(4), 501(c}(5), or 501(c){B} organization that receives membership dues, assessments, or
similar amounts as defined in Revenue Procedure 98-19? If "Yes, " complete Schedufe C, Part i 5 N/A
6  Did the organization mainiain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts for which donors have the right to
provide advice on the distribution or investment of amounts in such funds or accounts? if "Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part] | 6 X
7  Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement, including easements to preserve open space,
the environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? if "Yes," complete Schedule D, Pertti 7 X
8 Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? /f "Yes, " complete
SCREAUIE D, PAITHE ||| . e eeeeee e e et e ere 8 X
9 Did the organization report an amount in Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability; serve as a custodian for
amounts not listed in Part X; or provide credit counseling, debt management, credit repair, or debt negotiation services?
If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part IV e 9 X
10 Did the organization, directly or through a related organization, hold assets in temporarily restricted endowments, permanant
endowments, or quasi-endowments? /f "Yes, " complete Schedule D, Part V
11 If the organization's answer to any of the following questions is "Yes," then complete Scheduie D, Parts Vi, VII, VI, IX, or X
as applicable.
a Did the organization report an amount for land, buildings, and equipment in Part X, line 107 if "Yes, " complete Schedule D,
PBIEVE e e e e e oo oo oo oo ta; X
b Did the arganization report an amount for investments - other securities in Part X, line 12 that is 5% or more of its total
assets reported in Part X, line 167 /f "Yes, " complete Schedufe D, Partvitt . 11| X
¢ Did the organization report an amount for investments - program related in Part X, line 13 that is 5% or mare of its total
assets reported in Part X, line 187 i "Yes, " complete Schedule D, Part VIl 1ic X
d Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part X, line 15 that is 5% or more of its total assets reported in
Part X, line 167 If "Yes," complete Scheduie D, Part IX | 114 X
e Did the organization report an amount for other liabilities in Part X, line 257 if "Yes, " complete Schedule D, Part X 1ie X
f Did the organization's separate or cansolidated financial statements far the tax year include a footnote that addresses
the organization’s liabillity for tincertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)7 /f "Yes, " complete Schedule D, Part X . it | X
12a Did the crganization obtain separate, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If "Yes, " complete
Schedule D, Parts XIaNG XI ||| oo 12a | X
b Was the organization included in consclidated, independent audited financial statements for the tax year?
If "Yes," and if the organization answered "No" fo line 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts Xi and X! is optional , 12b X
13 Is the organization a school described in section 170(b1HANiE? If "Yes," complete Schedule 13 X
14a Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents outside of the United States? . 14a X
b Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaking, fundraising, business,
investment, and program service activities outside the United States, or aggregate foreign investments valued at $100,000
or more? If "Yes," compiete Schedule F, Parts 1and IV ... 14p | X
15 Did the organization report an Part iX, column {A), line 3, more than $5,000 of grants or other a5515tance to or for any
foreign organization? /f "Yes, " complete Schedule F, Parts lfand vy 15 X
16 Did the organization report on Part EX, column {A), line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or other assistance to
or for foreign individuals? If "Yes," complete Schedule F, Parts Il and IV 16 X
17  Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000 of expenses for professional fundraising services on Part IX,
column (&), lines 6 and 1167 /f *Yes,” complete Schedule G, Part! oo 17 X
18 Did the organization report more than $15,000 total of fundraising event gross income and contributions on Part VIll, lines
1c and 8a? If "Yes," complete Schedule G, Partll . 18 X
19 Did the organization report more than $15,000 of gross income from gaming activities on Part Vill, line 9a7 /f "Yes, "
complete SChaaUIe G, Part il ettt 19 X
20a Did the organization operate one or more hospitat facilities? if "Yes, " complete Schedte 4 ... 20a X
b i "Yes" to line 204, did the organization attach a copy of its audited financial statements o this refum? ............ it 20b N/A
Form 990 (2013)

332003
10-29-13



» Form 990 (2013) CLEARWAY MINNESCTA (SM) 41-1921094 page4
[ Part IV'| Checklist of Required Schedules (continued)

Yes | No
21 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to any domestic organization or
government on Part IX, column {A), line 17 if "Yes, " complete Schedule /, Parts fand 21| X
22 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to individuals in the United States on Part IX,
column (A), line 27 If "Yes, " complete Schedule I, Parts | and il 22 | X

23 Did the organization answer “Yes" to Part VII, Section A, line 3, 4, or 5 about compensatlon of the organization’s current
and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compansated employees? #f "Yes," complete
Schedule J 23 | X

24a Did the organization have a tax-exempt bond issue with an outstanding principal amount of more than $100,000 as of the
last day of the year, that was issued after December 31, 20027 f "Yes,* answer lines 245 through 24d and complete

Schedule K If "NO", GOTO NG 258 et 24a X
b Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax-exempt bonds beyond a temporary period exception? 24h
¢ Did the organization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year to defease

Ny TCEXEMPL DONGST | ettt et enr st 24¢
d Did the organization act as an "on behalf of" issuer for bonds outstandmg at any time during the year? _ 24d

25a Section 501(c}{3) and 501{c}{4) organizations. Did the organization engage in an excess benefit transactlon w:th a
disquaflified person during the year? If *Yes," complete Schedule L, Part! . 253 X
b Is the organization aware that it engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified person in a prior year, and
that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization's prior Forms 990 or 990-E27 If "Yes, " complete

SCHEAUIR Ly PAITI oottt e oo oo oo oo e oo e s e ettt 25b X
26  Did the organization report any amount on Part X, line 5, 6, or 22 for receivables from or payables to any current or

former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, highest compensated employees, or disqualified persons? if so,

complete Schedule L, Part Il e 26 X
27 Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to an officer, diractor, trustee, key employee, substantial

contributor or employee thereof, a grant selection committes member, or to a 35% controlled entity or family member

of any of these persons? /f Yes, " complate SChedule L, Part Hll
28 Was the organization a party to a business transaction with one of the following parties (see Schedule L, Part IV

instructions for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions):

a A current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part V. 28a X
b A family member of a current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part IV 28h X
¢ Anentity of which a current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee (or a family member thereof) was an officer,
director, trustes, or direct or indirect owner? if "Yes, " complete Schedule L, Part IV 28c X
28 Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in non-cash contributions? /f "Yes," complete Schedue M 29 X
30 Did the organization receive contributions of art, historical treasures, or other similar agsets, or qualified conservation
contributions? #f "Yes," complete Schedule M e 30 X
31 Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or dissclve and cease operatlons’-’
If "Yes," complete SCedule N, PAIET | e et 31 X
32 Did the organization sell, exchange, dispose of, or transfer more than 25% of its net assets?if "Yes," complete
SCRETUIE N, PAFLIL | e e 32 X
33 Did the organization own 100% of an entity disregarded as separate from the organization under Regulations
sections 301.7701-2 and 301.7701-32 if "Yes, " complete Schedule R, Part | 33 X
34 Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entity? If *Yes, " complete Schedule R, Part Il, ili, or IV, and
PaMt Vi€ T oo e e e e et et 34 X
35a Did the organization have a controlled entity within the meaning of section 51 2(b) 13 35a b4
b If "Yes" to ine 35a, did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transaction with a controlied entity
within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? f "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part V, lne2 ash |NFA
36 Section 501{¢}(3} organizations. Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable related organization?
If "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part VL IN@ 2. et 36 X
37 Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its activities through an entity that is not a related organization
and that s treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes? If "Yes, " complete Schedule R, Part VI 37 X
38 Did the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanations in Schedule O for Part V), lines 11b and 197
Note. All Form 990 filers are reguired to complete Schedule O i 38 | X
Form 990 (2013)
332004

10-28-13



= Form

990 {2013) CLEARWAY MINNESOTA (SM) 41-1921094  page 5

Part V| Statements Regarding Gther IRS Filings and Tax Compliance

Check if Schedule O contains & response or note to any line in this Part V

Ba

¢ If "Yes," to line 5a or Sb, did the organization file Form 8886-T7

Ba

Enter the number reported in Box 3 of Form 1096, Enter -0- if not applicable ... 1a

Enter the number of Forms W-2G included in line 1a. Enter -0- if not applicable 1b

Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to vendors and reportable gaming
{gambling) winnings 10 PHZe WINNErS Y L e

Enter the number of employees reported on Form W-3, Transmittal of Wage and Tax Statements,
filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by thisretern

If at least one is reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal employment tax retums?
Note. If the sum of lines 1a and 2a Is greater than 250, you may be required to e-file {see instructions)
Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more duringtheyear? ..
If “Yes," has it filed a Form 890-T for this year? If "No," to line 3b, provide an explanation in Schedule©
At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authority over, a
financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securitiss account, or other financial account)?
It “Yes," enter the name of the foreign country: 3 SEE SCHEDULE 0O

See instructions for filing requirements for Form TD F 90-22.1, Repoit of Forsign Bank and Financial Accounts.
Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the tax year?

Does the organization have annwal gross receipts that are normally greater than $100,000, and did the organization soficit
any contributions that were not tax deductible as charitable gontributions? oo
If *Yes," did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contributions or gifts

were not tax deductible?
Organizations that may receive deductible contributions under section 170(c).

Did the organization receive a payment in excess of $75 made partly as a contribution and partly for goods and services provided to the payor? )

If “Yes," did the organization notify the donor of the valus of the goods or services provided?

¢ Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of tangible personal property for which it was required

to file Form 82827

2

36

I P

5c_[N/A

sb [N/A

7o [N/A

d If "Yes," indicate the number of Forms 8282 filed during the year
e Did the organization receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal benefit contract?
1 Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contrace?
g It the organization received a contribution of qualified intellectual property, did the organization file Form 8899 as required?. | 7g N/A
h If the organization received a contribution of cars, boats, airplanes, or other vehicles, did the organization file a Form 1098-C? | 7h [N/A
8 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds and section 509{a)(3) supporting arganizatiens. Did the supporting 3;; : o
organization, or a donor advised fund maintained by a sponsoring organization, have excess husiness holdings at any time during the year? 8 [N/A
9 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds. :
a Did the organization make any taxable distributions under section 49662 ga [N/A
b Did the organization make a distribution to a donor, donor advisor, or related person? gb |N/A
10  Section 501{c)(7} organizations. Enter: e
a |Initiation fees and capital contributions included on Part VIll, fine12 ... ... 10a
b Gross receipts, included on Form 290, Part VIIl, fine 12, for public use of club facilities 10b
11 Section 501{c)(12) organizations. Enter:
a Grossincome from members or shareholders 1a
b Gross income from other sources (Do not net amounts due ar paid to other sources against
amounts dus or received fromthemy 11b
12a Section 4947(a)({1} non-exempt charitable trusts. Is the organization filing Form 980 in lieu of Form 10417 12a [N/A
b If "Yes," enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the year ... |i2b | i
13  Section 501(c}{29} qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers.
a lIs the organization licensed to issue qualified health plans in more than one state? . 13a [N/A
Note. See the instructions for additicnal information the organization must report on Schedule Q. i
b Enter the amount of reserves the organization is required to maintain by the states in which the
organization is licensed to issue qualified health plans 13b
¢ Enterthe amount of reserves onhand | | e, 13c :
14a Did the organization receive any payments for indoor tanning services during the taxyear? . . 14a X
b If "Yes,"” has it filed a Form 720 1o report these payrments? if "No," provide an explanation in Schedule O ... ... 14b [N/A
Form 990 (2013)
332005
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- Form 990 (2013) CLEARWAY MINNESOTA (SM) 41-1921094  psgeb

Part VI | Governance, Management, and Disclosure For each "Yes" response fo fines 2 through 7b below, and for a "No" response

to fine 8a, 8D, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes in Schedule O. See instructions.

Chack if Schedule O contains a response or note to any fine in this Part Vi

Section A. Governing Body and Management

1a

4]

7a

b
9

Enter the number of voting members of the goveming body at the end of the tax year 1a
I there are materiat differences in voting rights among members of the governing body, or if the governing
bady delegatsd broad authority to an executive committes or simiiar committee, explain in Schedule Q.

Enter the number of voting members included in line 1a, above, who are independent 1b

Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employee have a family relationship or a business relationship with any other
officer, director, trustee, or key employea?

Did the organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization's assets?
Did the organization have members or stockholders?
Did the organization have members, stockholders, or other persons who had the power to elect or appoint one or
more members of the govemning body? e
Are any govemance decisions of the organization reserved to (or subject to approval by) members, stockholders, or
persons other than the governing Body? |
Did the organization contemporaneousty document the meetings held or written actions undertaken during the year by the following:
THe QOVBINING BOAYT e ettt
Each committee with authority to act on behalf of the govemning body?
Is there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed in Part Vii, Section A, who cannot be reached at the

organization's mailing address? If "Yes, " provide the names and addresses in Schedule O

Section B. Policies (This Section B requests information about policies not required by the Internal Revenue Code.)

10a
b

11a

12a

13
14
15

16a

Yes | No
Did the organization have focal chapters, branches, or affiliates? 10a X
If “Yes," did the organization have written policies and procadures governing the activities of such chapters, affiiates,
and branches to ensure their operations are consistent with the organization’s exempt purposes? 10b [N/A
Has the organization provided a complete copy of this Form 990 to all members of its govermning body before filing the form? | 11a| X
Describe in Schadule O the process, if any, used by the organization to review this Form 990. i i)
Did the organization have a written conflict of interest policy? If "No,"go toline 13
Were officers, directors, or trustees, and key employses required to disclose annually interests that could give rise to conflicts? 12b
Did the organization regularly and consistently monitor and enforce compliance with the policy? # *Yes, * describe
in Schedule O fiow this Was JONe e 12¢
13

14

Did the organization have a written document retention and destruction policy?
Did the process for determining compensation of the following persens include a review and approval by independent
persons, comparability data, and contemporaneous substantiation of the deliberation and decision? |
The organization's CEQO, Executive Director, or top management official 15a | X

Other officers or key employees of the organization | . ..., 15b | X
If "Yes" to line 15a or 15b, describe the process in Schedule O (see instructions). .
Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or participate in a joint venture or similar arrangement with a

taxable entity during the year? 16a X

pal g |

If "Yes," did the organization follow a written policy or procedure reguiring the organization to evaluate its participation
in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and take steps to safeguard the organization’s B 5
exempt status with respect to such arrangements? ... 16b [N/A

Section C. Disclosure

17
18

19

20

List the states with which a copy of this Form 990 is required to be filed B MN
Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Forms 1023 {ar 1024 if applicable), 830, and 990-T (Section 501(c)(3)s only) available
for public inspection. Indicate how you made these available. Check all that apply.

Own website ] Anaother's website X1 Upon request (. Other (explain in Schedule O)
Describe in Schedule O whether {and if so, how), the organization made its governing documents, conflict of interest paticy, and financial
statements available to the public during the tax year.
State the name, physical address, and telephone number of the person who possesses the books and records of the organization: B

LANA KOPYLOV - 8952-767-1400
8011 34TH AVE S, STE 400, MINNEAPOLIS, MN 55425

332006 10-29-13 Form 990 (2013)



- Form 990 (2013) CLEARWAY MINNESQTA (SM) 41-1921094
[’Part._\.fﬂf[ Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated
Employees, and Independent Contractors
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VI D

Section A.  Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees
1a Complete this table for all persons required to be listed. Report compensation ior the calendar year ending with or within the organization's tax year,

@ List all of the organization's current officers, directors, trustees {whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount of compensation.
Enter -0- in columns (D}, {E), and (F} if no compensation was paid.

® |ist all of the organization’s current key employees, if any. See instructions for definition of "key employee."

© List the organization’s five tufrent highest compensated employees (other than an officer, director, trustee, or key employee} who received report-
able compensation {Box 5 of Form W-2 and/or Box 7 of Form 1089-MISC) of more than $1 00,000 from the organization and any related organizations.

@ List all of the organization’s former officers, key employees, and highest compensated employees who received more than $100,000 of
reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

@ List all of the organization's former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustes of the organization,
more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

List persons in the following order: individual trustees or directors; institutional trustees; officers: key employees; highest compensated employees;
and former such persaons.

Page 7

D Check this box if neither the organization nor any refated organization compensated any current officer, director, or trustee.

A {B) (C) D) (E} {F)
Name and Title Average | oo c,'?egksstnﬁgman e Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours per | box, unlass person is both an compensation compensation amount of
week officer and 2 direetor/irustee) from from related other
(list any g the organizations compensation
hours for | = . b organization {W-2/1099-MISC}) from the
related g = g {(W-2/1099-MISC) organization
organizations| £ | 3 gIE and related
below 12|25 EE = organizations
liney |E|E|5|5[EE|S
{1) TOM WEAVER 7.00
BOARD CHAIR (BEGINNING SEP®'13) X X 0. 0. c.
{2) VERNAE HASBARGEN 7.00
BOARD CHAIR (THRU SEPT'13) X X 0. 0. 0.
(3) JOEL SWANSON 3.00
VICE CHAIR (BEGINNING SEBT'13) X X 0. 0. 0.
(4) JAMES RHODES 4.00
VICE CHAIR (THRU SEPT'13) X X 0. 0. 0.
{5) BOB BOERSCHEL 4,00
TREASURER (BEGINNING SEPT'13) X X 0. 0. 0.
(6} JAMES DEAL 2.00
TREASURER (THRU SEPT'13) X X 0. 0. 0.
(7) DANIEL JOHNSON 3.00
S$ECRETARY (BEGINNING SEPT'13} X X 0. 0. 0.
{8) JOY RIKALA 5.00
SECRETARY (THRU SEPT'13) X X 0. 0. 0.
{9) ESLLEN DENZEN 1.00
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
(10} KELLY DRUMMER 1.00
DIRECTOR (BEGINNING MAY'14) X 0. 0. 0.
(11} DAVID JONES 2.00
DIRECTOR (BEGINNING SEPT'13) X 0. 0. 0.
{12) LARRY KRYZANIAK 3.00
DIRECTOR (THRU NOV'13) X 0. 0. 0.
{13) RUSSEL KUZEL, MD 1.00
DIRECTOR X 0. a. 0.
{14) VIVIAN JENKINS NELSEN 2.00
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
(15) PAMELA LUX 1,00
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
(16) TERESA MATSUI SANDERS 1.00
DIRECTOR {THRU DEC'13) X 0. 0. 0.
{17) STEVEN MCWHIRTER 2.00
DIRECTOR (BEGIMNING OCT'i3) X 0. 0. 0.

332007 10-26-13 Form 990 (2013)



. Form 990 (2013) CLEARWAY MINNESOTA (SM) 41-1921094 pPage8
lPaﬁ.rt '-V”:l Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees {continued)
(A) (B) (€) (o) {E) (F)
Name and title Average (0 ot ci‘gf:ﬁggm an one Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours per | nox, unlsss persan is both an compensation compensation amount of
week officer and a director/trustee) from from related other
(istany |35 the organizations compensation
hoursfor | & = organization (W-2/1099-MISC) from the
related | g | £ 2 {(W-2/1099-MISC) organization
organizations| £ | = g |E and related
below 1Z15|, |218E| s organizations
{18) HOWARD ORENSTEIN 1.00
DIRECTOR X C. 0. 0.
(19} JENNY PETERSON 4.00
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. C.
(20) BRIAN SHORT 1.00
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. G.
{21) LYN STEPANIAK 4.00
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
(22) GALEN VETTER 3.00
DIRECTOR {BEGINNING JULY'13) X 0. G. 0.
{23) DAVID J, WILLOUGHBY 40.00
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER X 147,927, 0.] 48,409,
{24) PAUL R, ORMAN 40.00
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER X 123.,008. 0.] 31,661.
{25) BARBARA SCHILLO 40.00
VICE PRESIDENT X 138,278. 0.1 37,4459.
{26) ANDREA MOWERY 40.00
VICE ERESIDENT X 133,097. 0.p. 29,002.
b Subtotal e P 542,310. 0.l 146,521,
¢ Totai from continuation sheets to Part Vil, SectionA = [ 3 326,171. 0. 89,535,
d Total {addlinestbandic)........................ e | 868,481, 0.] 236,056,
2 Total number of individuals (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than $100,000 of reportable
compensation from the organization B 7
Yes | No
3 Did the organization list any former officer, director, or trustee, key employee, or highest compensated employee on 3:'_-":‘-:} | :
line 1a? If "Yes," complete Schedule J for such individual 3 X
4 Forany individual listed on line 1a, is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensation from the organization SHNE S
and related organizations greater than $150,0007 /f "Yes, " complete Schedule J for such individwal
5 Did any person listed on line 1a receive or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual for services : i : :;':::__-' 2
rendered to the organization? If "Yes, " complete Schedule J 1or SUCh Derson . . 5 X
Section B. Independent Contractors
1 Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of compensation from
the organization. Repori compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization's tax year.
A B C
Name and btfsiz"ness address Descn'ptio(n c)yf services Comp(erjsation
CLARITY COVERDALE FURY, INC., 120 SOUTH MEDTA BUY AND
SIXTH ST, STE 1300, MINNEAPQLIS, MN 55402 QADVERTISING SERVICES| 5,263,822.
PROFESSIONAL DATA ANALYSTS, INC,, 219 MALIN QUITPLAN AND MEDIA .
STREET SE, STE 302, MINNEAPOLIS, MN 55414 [EVALUATION 387,404,
HIMLE RAPP & COMPANY, INC., 333 SOUTH 7TH PUBLIC AFFAIRS
8T, STE 2400, MINNEAPOLIS, MN 55402 SERVICES 341,573,
BLACKSTONE ALTERNATIVE MANAGEMENT L.P., 45 INVESTMENT
PARK AVENUE, 28TH FLOOR, NEW YORK, NY MANAGEMENT SERVICES 140,259.

2 Total number of independent contractors {including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than

$100,000 of compensation from the organization P 4

SEE PART VII, SECTION A CONTINUATION SH

332008
10-29-13
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- Form 930 CLEARWAY MINNESOTA (SM) 41-1921094
"Pa!..‘-t'::Vll_:l Section A, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued)
{A) (B) < D) 1] {F
Name and title Average Positian Reportable Reportable Estimatad
hours {check all that apply) compensation compensation amount of
per from from related other
week g the organizations compensation
{list any % '§ organization (W-2/1099-MISC) from the
hours for | = 5 (W-2/1089-MISC) organization
related |z | E z and related
organizations| £ | 2 g E organizations
below [E|S|s|E(z]s
ine) |E|E|E|E|2|E

{27) JAIME MARTINEZ 40.00

DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT X 11l6,816. 0.l 27,071,

{28) RAYMOND BOYLE 40.00

DIRECTOR OF RESEARCH PROGRAMS X 108,084. 0.] 32,561.

{29) PAULA KELLER 40.00

DIRECTOR OF CESSATION FROGRAMS X 101,271. 0. 29,903.

Total 1o Part VI, Section A, line 1c 326,171. 89,535,

332201
05-01-13



. Form 990 {2013) CLEARWAY MINNESOTA (SM) 41-1921094 page
Part VIl Statement of Revenue T

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VIE

(B} {&)] L)
Total revenue Related or Unrelated R?Plgrl%ﬂ{% gﬁ%gg?d
exempt function business sections
: revenue revenue 512 - 514
-%‘g 1 a Federated F:ampaigns __________________ 1a
52 b Membe_'rslhlp dues ib
@t ¢ Fundraisingevents . ... .. tc
gﬁ d Related organizations 1d
& c'% e Government grants {contributions) 1e 203,079,
g - i All other contributions, gifts, grants, and
.E:G‘EJ- similar amounis not included above 1§ 1,018,
%"% €1 Noncash contribulions included in lines 1a-1f: §
0a h_Total. Add lines 1a-1f ........... i b
Business Code
g |2e
§3|
& .
o f All other program service revenue
g Total. Add lines 2a-2f
3 Investment income (including dividends, interest, and
other similar amounts) ... (3 948,131, 3,812, 944,319,
4  income from investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds P
5 Rovalties ...
6a Grossrents ...
b Less:rental expenses .
¢ Rental income or (loss) .
d Net rental income or (loss)
7 a Gross amount from sales of (i) Securities (i) Other
assets other than inventory | 27,322,507,
b Less: cost or other basis
and sales expenses 93,411 415,
¢ Gainor{loss) 4,511,088,
d Net gain or (I055) ..o e B> 4,511,088, 4,511,088,
g 8 a Gross income from fundraising events {not i '
g including $ of
E contributions reported on line 1¢). See
= Part IV, line8 . ... a
g b Less:directexpenses ... b
¢ Net income or (joss) from fundraising events ... b
9 a Gross income from gaming activities. See
Part IV, line 19 ... a
b Less:directexpenses ... b
¢ Net income or (loss) from gaming activities ... b
10 a Gross sales of inventory, less returns
and allowances .. a
b Less: cost of goods sold i
¢ Net income or {loss} from sales of'inventory i B
Miscellaneous Revenue Business Codel:
11 a
b
[
d Altotherrevenue . . ..
e Total Addtinesta-11d . . [ 2 i i
12  Total revenue, Ses instructions. e, . 5,663,316, 5,455,407,

T Form 980 {2013)
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921094 pagei0

[Part IX [ Stafement of Functional Expenses

Section 507(c)(3) and 501{c){d) organizations must compiete all columns. All other organizations rust complete column (A).

Check if Schedule O contains a response or noteut\c; anylineinthis Part IX ... LT
Do not inciude amounts reportad on lin : {C) (G
75, 8b, 9, and 105 of Pt VI Total expenses e ° | fenegrren e oenses.
1 Grants and other assistance to governments and :
arganizations in the United States. See Part1v, line21] 6,414,162, 6,414,162.
2 Grants and other assistance to individuals in
the United States. See Part IV, ne 22 68,765. 68,765,
3 Grants and other assistance to governments,
organizations, and individuals outsids the
United States. See Part 1V, lines 15 and 16
4 Benefits paid to orformembers
5 Compensation of current officers, directors,
trustees, and key employees 363,533. 251,040. 112,493,
6 Compensation not included above, to disqualified
persons (as defined under section 4958(f)(1)) and
persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(BY
7 Othersalariesandwages 2,204,315, 1,521,518, 682,799.
& Pension plar accruals and contributions (include
section 401{k) and 403(b) employer contributions) 286,024. 197,869. 88,155,
9 Otheremployee benefits 244,637, 169,238, 75,399,
10 Payrolitaxes ... 174,427, 120,432, 53,595.
11 Feas for services (non-employess):
a Management
b tegat 25,157, 18,152, 7,005,
¢ Accounting 19,515. 14,081, 5,434,
d Loebbyving e,
e Professional fundraising services. See Part IV, line 17 i TR
f Investment managementfees . . . . 201,917. 201,917.
g Other. (Ifline 11g amount exceeds 10% of line 25,
column {A} amount, list line 11g expenses on Sch 0.) 63,229. 45,621, 17,608.
12  Advertising and promotion ..
13 Office expenses ... 201,678, 170,886. 30,792,
14 Informationtechnology ... ... ...
15 Rovalles . .l
16 Ocewpancy . .. 155,646. 104,129. 51,517.
17 TOBVEL e 82,028. 74,642, 7,386,
18 Payments of travel or entertainment expenses
for any federal, state, or local public officials
19 Conferences, conventionis, and meetings 153,363, 105,744, 43,619.
20 Imterest .
21 Paymentstoaffiiates ..
22  Depreciation, depletion, and amortization 32,046. 21,439, 10,607.
23 INSUMBNCE ... ..o 18,065. 12,086 5,979,
24 Other expenses. [temize expenses not coverad T T s awnet
above. (List riscellaneous expenses in line 24e. if line|:
24e amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column (A) ; : FENAE BT
amount, list line 24e expenses on Schedule 0) i R P
a PUBLIC EDUCATION/RELATI 5,945,808.] 5,942,632, 3,176,
b EVALUATION FEES 448,721. 448 ,721.
¢ CONSULTANTS 42,467, 42 ,467.
d OTHER EXPENSES 15,221, 10,183. 5,038,
e All other expenses
25  Total functional expenses. Add lines 1through 24e | 17,160,724, 15,757,805.] 1,402,919. 0.
26 Joint costs. Complete this ling cnly if the organization

reported in cofumn {B} joint costs from a cambined
educational campaige: and fundraising solicitation.

Chack here if following SOP 98-2 (ASC 958-720)

332010 10-29-13

Form 990 (2013)



Form 990 {2013)

CLEARWAY MINNESOTA {SM)

41-1921094 page 11

[Part X | Balance Sheet

Check if Schedule O cantains a response or note to any lineinthis Part X ... Lj
{A) (B)
Beginning of year End of year
1 17,895, 1 18,486.
2 2
3 Pledges and grants receivable,net 108,082.] 3 60,387,
4 4,572.] a 5,064,
5 Loans and other receivables from current and former officers, directors, :
trustees, key employees, and highest compensated employees. Complete
Partllof Schedule L
6 Loans and other receivables from other disqualified persons (as defined under
saction 4958(f)(1)), persons described in section 4958(c)(3}B), and contributing
employers and sponsoring organizations of section 501(c)(@) voluntary
,,E employees’ heneficiary organizations (see instr). Complete Part ll of SchL. 6
@ | 7 Notesandloans receivable,net . ... . 7
< | 8 Inventories forsaleoruse 8
9 Prepaid expenses and deferred charges 60,471.] o 58,495,
10a Land, buildings, and equipment: cost or other ' R
basis. Complete Part VI of Schedule D 10a 365,355, -
b Less: accumulated depreciation 10b 322,765, 64,095.( 10¢ 42,590.
11 Investments - publicly traded securites 68,088,092.] 11 62,791,011.
12 Investments - other securities. See Part IV, line 11 24,830,287.] 12 22,186,907,
13  Investments - program-related. See Part IV, line1t 13
14 Intangibleassets ... . 14
15 Other assets. See Part IV, line 11 15
16 __ Total assets. Add lines 1 through 15 (must equalfine 34} ... 93,173,494, 16 85,162,940,
17 Accounts payable and accrued expenses 1,290,657.] 47 859,857.
18  Grants payable 2,551,020.] 18 3,312,649,
19 Deferred revenue
20 Tax-exempt bond liabilities
21  Escrow or custodial account liability. Complete Part IV of Schedule D
@ |22 Loansand other payables to current and former officers, directors, trustess,
= key employees, highest compensated employses, and disqualified persons.
8 Complete Part tl of Schedule L ...
- 23 Secured mortgages and notes payable to unrelated third parties
24  Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third parties .
25  Otherliabilities (including federal income tax, payables to refated third
parties, and other habilities not included on lines 17-24). Complete Part X of
SChedUle D e
26 Total liabilities. Add lines 17 through 25 ... ...
Organizations that follow SFAS 117 {ASC 958}, check here p- IL] and
a complete lines 27 through 29, and lines 33 and 34. -
8 27 Unrestrioted netassets .. ... 83,331,817./ 27| 80,990,434.
& |28 Temporarily restricted net assets ...
T |29 Permanently restricted netassets .
I Organizations that do not follow SFAS 117 {ASC 958}, check here B [::]
5 and complete lines 30 through 34.
% 30 Capital stock or trust principal, or current funds ..
ﬁ 31 Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, building, or equipmentfund .
% |82 Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds 32
Z |33 Totalnetassets orfund balaness | ..o 89,331,817./33| 80,990,434,
34 Total liabilities and net assets/fundbalances ... ... . 93,173,484.] a 85,162,940,

332011
10-29-13

Form 990 (2013)



. Form 990 (2013) CLEARWAY MINNESQTA (SM) 41-1921094 page 12
Part XI| Reconciliation of Net Assets

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part X ... . S PP U OU U P PP UUPTOTUURIPOTON I___l
1 Totalrevenue (must equal Part VI, column (&), fine 12) 5,663,316,
2 Total expenses (must equal Part IX, column (8), line 28y 17,160,724.
3 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 2 fromlinet <11,497,408.>
4 Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (must equal Part X, line 33, column (AD 89,331,817.
5 Net unrealized gains {fosses) on investments 3,156,025,
6 Donated services and use of facilitles ... ..
Toolnvestmentexpenses
8 Prorperiod adjustments ...
9  Other changes in net assets or fund balances (explain in Schedule 8}] a.
10 Net assets or fund balances at end of year. Combine lines 3 through 8 (must equal Part X, line 33,
CORIMN (B)) ..o 10 80,5990,434.

1 Accounting method used io prepare the Form 990: |j Cash Accrual l:‘ Cther
If the arganization changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked “Cther," explain in Schedule O.
2a Woere the organization's financial staternenis compiled or reviewed by an independent accountant?
If "Yes," check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were compiled or reviewed on a
separate basis, consolidated basis, or both:
Separate basis D Consolidated basis I:} Both consolidated and separate basis
b Were the organization’s financial statements audited by an independent accountant?
If "Yes," check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were audited on a separate basis,
consolidated basis, or both:
Separate basis [:! Consolidated basis l:| Both consolidated and separate basis
¢ If "Yes" to line 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee that assumes responsibility for oversight of the audit,
review, or compitation of its financial statements and selection of an independent accountant?
If the organization changed either its aversight process or selection process during the tax year, explain in Schedule Q.
3a As aresult of a federal award, was the organization required to undergo an audit or audits as set forth in the Single Audit

Actand OMB Circular A133? e 3a X
b If “Yes," did the organization undergo the required audit or audits? If the organization did not undergo the required audit
or audits, explain why in Schedule O and describe any steps taken to undergo such audits ... . 3b N/A
Form 990 (2013}
332012

10-29-13



SCHEDULE A
(Form 980 or 990-EZ)

Department of the Treasury
Interna! Revanue Service

Public Charity Status and Public Support

Complete if the organization Is a section 501(c}(3} organization or a section
4947{a){1) nonexempt charitable frust.
P> Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ.
B information about Schedule A {Form 990 or 590-EZ) and its instructions is at wWww.irs. gov/form9s0.

QME No, 1545-0047

2013

1o Publ

Name of the organization

CLEARWAY MINNESOTA (SM)

Employer identification number

41-1521094

[Partl:| Reason for Public Charity Status (A organizations must complete this part.} See instructions.

The organization is not a private foundation because it is: (For lines 1 through 11, check only one box.)

1 D A church, convention of churches, or association of churches described in section 170(b}{1)(A)i).

2 l:] A school described in section 170{b){ 1)(A}ii). (Attach Schedule E)
3 E:I A hospital or a cooperative hospital service organization described in section 170(b)(1)[A)(iii).

4 A medical research organization operated in conjunction with a hospital described in section 170({b}{ 1}{A)iii). Enter the hospital's name,
city, and state:

5 D An organization operated for the benefit of a college or university owned or operated by a governmental unit described in
section 170{b)( 1}{A){iv). (Compleie Part 11.)

6 |:] A federal, state, or local government or governmental unit described in section 170{b}{1)(A){v).

7 D An organization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public described in
section 170(b}{1)(A}vi}. (Complete Part I1.)

8 I: A community trust described in section 170{b){ 1){A}{vi). (Complete Part II.)

9 [:' An organization that normally receives: (1) mare than 33 1/3% of its support from contributions, membership fees, and gross receipts from
activities related to its exempt functions - subject to certain exceptions, and (2) no mere than 33 1/3% of its support from gross investment
income and unrelated business taxable income (less section 511 tax) from businesses acquired by the organization after June 30, 1975.
See section 509(a)(2). (Complate Part H11.)

10 |:] An organization organized and operated exclusively to tast for public safety. See section 509(a){4).

11 An organization crganized and oparated exclusively for the benefit of, to perform the functions of, or to carry out the purposes of one or
more publicly supported organizations described in section 509(a)(1) or section 509(a)(2). See section 509{a)(3). Check the box that
describes the type of supporting organization and complete tines 11e through 11h.

a Typel b |:| Type ll N Type HI - Functionally integrated al ] Type I - Non-functionally integrated
e By checking this box, I certify that the organization is not controfled directly or indirectly by one or more disqualified persons other than
foundation managers and other than one or more publicly supported organizations described in section 509(a)(1) or section 509(a)(2).
f If the organization received & written determination from the IRS that it is & Type I, Type II, or Type I
supporting organization, checkthisbox .. ettt e e e e e 1
g Since August 17, 2008, has the organization accepted any gift or contribution from any of the following persons?
{i) A person who directly or indirectly controls, either alone or together with persons described in (i} and (i} below, Yes | No
the governing body of the supported organization? ... 11g() X
11gfii) X
11g(iii} X
h Provide the following information about the supported organization(s).

(i} Name of supported
organization

(it} EIN

(iii) Type of organization
{described on lines 1-9
above or IRC section
{see instructions))

t(iv) Is the organization
a col. {i) listed in your
governing document?

{v) Did you notify the
organization i col.
{i) of your suppori?

arn

—

{vi}ls the

ganization in cal,
i) erganized in the
us.?

(vit) Amount of monetary
support

Yes No Yes No Yes No
SEE SCHEDULE Alspr scumpuie a SEE SCHEDULE A
PART IV PART IV 6 X X X PART IV
SUPPLEMENTAL |SUPPLEMENTAL SUPPLEMENTAL
INFORMATION INFORMATION INFORMATION
Total 0.

I.HA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for

Form 980 or 990-EZ.

332021
18-25-13
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 980-E7) 2013 Page 2
Partll} Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Sections 170(p)(1){A)IvV) and 170(R)(1){A) (Vi)

{Complete only if you checked the box on line 5, 7, or 8 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under Part 111, If the organization
fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part 11}
Section A. Public Support N/A
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) b {a) 2009 {b} 2010 {c} 2011 {d} 2012 {e) 2013 {f) Total
1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received. (Do not
include any "unusual grants.")
2 Taxrevenues levied for the organ-
ization's benefit and either paid to
or expended on its behalf

3 The value of services or facilities
furnished by a govermmental unit to
the organization without charge

4 Total. Add lines 1 through 3 .

5 The portion of total contributions
by each person (other than a
govemnmental unit or publicly
supporied organization) included
on line 1 that exceeds 2% of the
amount shown on line 11,

comn () .
6 _Public support. Subtract line § from lire 4. |1+ i . : caal
Section B. Total Support N/A
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) | {a) 2009 (b) 2010 {c) 2011 {d) 2012 {e) 2013 (f) Total

7 Amounts fromlined _ ..
8 Gross income from interest,
dividends, payments received on
sacurities loans, rents, royalties
and income from similar sources
9 Net income from unrelated business
activities, whether or not the
business is reqularly carried on
10 Other income. Do not include gain
or loss from the sale of capital
assets (Explainin Part V) .
11 Total support. Add lines 7 through 10 [
12 Gross receipts from refated activities, etc. (seeinstructions) 12 I
13 First five years. If the Form 9980 is for the organization's first, secend, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501{c)(3)
organization, check this BoX N0 ShOD MBlE i ettt et et kgt en e enneaee b D
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
14 Public support percentage for 2013 {line 6, column {f) divided by line 11, column {f))
15 Public support percentage from 2012 Schedule A, Part i, linet4 . o 15 %
16a 33 1/3% support test - 2013. If the organization dig not check the hox on line 13, and line 14 is 33 1/3% or more, check this box and
stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organtzation -2 D
b 33 1/3% support test - 2012, If the organization did not check 2 box on line 13 or 16a, and line 15 is 33 1/3% or more, check this bax
and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization
17a 10% -facts-and-circumstances test - 2013, If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 18a, or 18b, and line 14 is 10% or more,
and if the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances” test, check this box and stop here. Explain in Part [V how the organization
meets the "facts-and-circumstances® test. The organization quatifies as a publicly supported organization . ...
b 10% -facts-and-circumstances test - 2012. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, or 173, and line 15 is 10% or
more, and if the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances" test, check this box and stop here. Explain in Part IV how the
organization meets the "facts-and-circumnstances” test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization .
18 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box ¢n line 13, 163, 16b, 17a, or 17b, check this box and see instructions ... b
Schedule A (Forr 990 or 990-EZ) 2013
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 890-E7) 2013 Page 3
Partlll{ Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Section 509(a)(2)
{Complete only if you checked the box on line 8 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under Part Il. If the organization fails to
qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part IL)
Section A. Public Support N/A
Galendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) > (a) 2009 {b} 2010 (c} 2011 {d} 2012 {e) 2013 {f) Total
1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees recsived. (Do not
include any "unusual grants.")

2 Gross receipts from admissions,
merchandise sold or services per-
farmed, or facilities furnished in
any activity that is related to the
organization's tax-exempt purpose

3 Gross receipts irom activities that
are not an unrelated trade or bus-

iness under section 513

4 Tax revenues levied for the organ-
ization's beneiit and either paid to
or expended on its behalf

5 The value of services or facilities
furnished by a govemmental unit to
the organization without charge

6 Total Add lines 1 through5 .

7a Amounts included on fines 1, 2, and
3 received from disqualified persons

b Amounis included on lines 2 and 3 received
from cther than digqualifisd persons that
exceed the greater of $5,000 or 1% of the
amount on ling 13 for the year

¢ Add lines 7a and 7b

Section B, Total Support N/A

Calendar year {or fiscat year beginning in) B {a} 2009 {b) 2010 {c) 2011 {d) 2012 {e} 2013 {f} Totat
9 Amounts fromfine 6

10a Gross income from interest,
dividends, payments received on
securities loans, rents, royalites
and income from similar sources
b Unrelated business taxable income
(less section 511 faxes) from businesses

acnuired after June 30, 1975

¢ Add lines10aand10b ...
11 Net income from unrelaied business
activities not included in line 10b,
whether or not the business is
regularly cariedon
12 Other income. Do not include gain
or loss from the sale of capital
asgets (Explain in Part IV} oooooonn
13 Total support, (add lires 8, 10c, 11, and 12.)

14 First five years. If the Form 990 is for the organization’s first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 5071(¢)(3) organization,

checkthis box and StOP REIre ... e ettt ettt et e et et cemeen eers b (]
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage N/A
15 Public support percentage for 2013 (line 8, column {f} divided by line 13, column (y 15 %
16 Public support percentage from 2012 Schedule A, Part 1, ine 15 ... TN N 16 %
Section D. Computation of Investment Income Percentage N/A
17 Investment income percentage for 2013 (line 10c, column {f} divided by line 13, column(ff) . .. 17 %
18 Investment income percentage from 2012 Schedule A, Part W, ine 17 18 %

19a 33 1/3% support tests - 2013. If the organization did not check the box on line 14, and line 15 is more than 33 1/3%, and line 17 is not
mare than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization .~
b 33 1/3% support tests - 2012. if the organization did not check a box on line 14 or ling 193, and line 16 is more than 33 1/3%, and
line 18 is not mare than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization
20 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 14, 19a, or 19b, check this box and see instructions ...
332023 09-25-13 Schedule A (Form 980 or 990-EZ) 2013




- Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-E7) 2013 CLEARWAY MINNESOTA (SM) 41-1921094 pagea
‘PartIV.{ Supplemental Information. Provide the explanations required by Part il, line 10; Part il, line 17a or 17b; and Part I}, line 12.
Also complete this part for any additional information. (See instructions).

PART I, LINE 11h

EXPLANATION: (i) & (ii) STATE OF MINNESOTA THROUGH THE SECOND JUDICIAL

DISTRICT COURT. CLEARWAY MINNESOTA (SM) WAS CREATED BY (AND REMAINS

SUBJECT TCO THE AUTHORITY OF) THE STATE OF MINNESOTA'S JUDICIAL BRANCH,

HAVING BEEN FORMED BY ORDER OF THE STATE'S SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT

TO RECEIVE AND ADMINISTER FUNDS WON BY THE STATE OF MINNESOTA IN THE

STATE'S SUCCESSFUL LAWSUIT AGAINST A CONGLOMERATE OF TOBACCO COMPANIES FOR

REMEDIES AND RELIEF FROM INJURIES TO THE HEALTH AND WELFARE OF THE PEOPLE

OF THE STATE. FROM INCEPTION THE ORGANIZATION'S GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE HAS

BEEN UNDER CONTROL OF THAT COURT, AND THE ORGANIZATION'S BOARD IS

COMPRISED IN PART OF APPOINTEES WHO SERVE AT THE PLEASURE OF THE STATE'S

LEGISLATURE AND EXECUTIVE BRANCHES,

{iv) AS EXPLAINED IN CLEARWAY MINNESQTA (SM)'S EXEMPTION APPLICATION,

THERE IS NO SPECIFIC NAMING OF A "SUPPORTED" ORGANIZATION IN THE ARTICLES

OF INCORPORATION, BUT THE ARTICLES WERE PART OF THE COQURT'S ORDER WHICH

ITSELF BOTH CREATES THE ORGANIZATION WITH PURPOSES AND GOVERNANCE

STRUCTURE FURTHERING THE STATE'S NEEDS AS MANDATED BY THE COURT ORDER.

{(vii) 100% OF EXPENDITURES AS MANDATED BY TERMS OF THE ORGANIZATION'S

FORMATION BY THE COURT AND ORGANIZATIONAL DOCUMENTS. (SEE EXPLANATION OF

RELATIONSHIP TO THE STATE OF MINNESQOTA IN (i) AND (ii) ABOVE.)

332024 09-25-13 Schedule A {Form 890 or 990-E2)} 2013



SCHEDULE C Political Campaign and Lobbying Activities OMB No. 1545 0017

Form 990 or 990-EZ,
( ) For Organizations Exempt From Income Tax Under section 501(c) and section 527 20 1 3

b Complete if the organization is described below. P~ Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ,
P See separate instructions. P Information about Schedule C (Form 990 or 990-EZ} and its
instructions is at waw s, aov/form9eg,

i the organization answered "Yes," to Form 990, Part IV, fine 3, or Form 990-EZ, Part V, line 46 (Political Campaign Activities}, then

® Section 501{c)(3) organizations: Complete Parts I-A and B. Do not complete Part I-C.

@ Section 501(c) (other than section 501{c)}(3)) organizations: Complete Parts I-A and C below. Do not complete Part 1-B.

@ Section 527 organizations: Complete Part I-A only,
If the organization answered “Yes," to Form 990, Part IV, line 4, or Form 990-EZ, Part VI, line 47 (Lobbying Activities), then

@ Section 501(c}(3} organizations that have filed Form 5768 (election under section 501{i)): Gomplete Part I1-A. Do not complete Part 1I-B.

@ Section 507(c}(3) organizations that have NOT fited Form 5768 (election under section 501{h)): Complete Part II-B. Do not compiete Part [-A.
If the organization answered "Yes," to Form 990, Part IV, line 5 (Proxy Tax) or Form 990-EZ, Part V, fine 35¢ (Proxy Tax), then

® Section 501(c){4), (), ar (6) organizations: Complete Part Iil.

Departmenl of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

Name of organization Employer identification number
CLEARWAY MINNESQTA (SM) 41-1921094
[Partl-A{ Complete If the organization is exempt under section 501(c] or is a section 527 organization. N/A

1 Provide a description of the organization’s direct and indirect political campaign activities in Part IV.
2 Political eXpanditUres ... e B3
3 Volunteer hours

]T"_ai_'_t ZI.-'BE'I Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c)(3). N/A
1 Enter the amount of any excise tax incurred by the organization under section 4955

b If "Yes," describe in Part IV,

tPartl-C| Complete if the organization is exempt under section b01(c), except section 501(c)(3). N/A
1 Enter the amount directly expended by the filing organization for section 527 exempt function activities 3
2 Enter the amount of the filing organization's funds contributed to other organizations for section 527
exempt function aCHIVISS .. . e g
3 Total exempt function expenditures. Add lines 1 and 2. Enter here and on Form 1120-POL,
line 17b B3

|_|No

& Enter the names, addresses and employer identification number {EIN) of all section 527 politicat organizations to which the filing organization
made payments. For each organization listed, enter the amount paid from the filing organization's funds. Also enter the amount of political
contributions received that were promptly and directly delivered fo a separate political organization, such as a separate segregated fund or a
politicat action committee (PAC). If additional space is needed, provide information in Part V.

(a} Name {b} Address {c}EIN {(d} Amount paid from (e) Amount of political
filing organization's | contributions received and
funds. If none, enter -0-. promptly and directly

delivered to a separate
political organization.
if none, enter -0-.

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Schedule C {(Form 990 or 900-EZ} 2013
LHA

332041
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. Schedule C (Form 990 or 980-E7) 2013 CLEARWAY MINNESOTA (SM) 41-1921094 page2
Partll-A| Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c){3} and iled Form 5768
(election under section 501{h)).

A Check P Lj if the filing organization belongs to an affiliated group {and list in Part [V each affiliated group member's name, address, EIN,
expenses, and share of excess lobbying expenditures).
B Check P E if the filing organization checked box A and “limited contral” provisions apply.

Limits on Lobbying Expenditures (a} Filing (b) Affiliated group
" ; . grganization’s totais
(The term "expenditures” means amounts paid or incurred.) totals
1a Total lobbying expenditures to influence public opinion (grass roots lobbying) . 50,396.
b Total lobbying expenditures to influence a legislative body (direct lobbying) 58,703.
¢ Total lobbying expenditures (add lines 12 and 1b) 149,099.
d Other exempt purpose expenditures ... .. 16,809,708,
........................... k&
e Total exempt purpose expenditures (edd lines icandtdy 16,958,807.
f Lobbying nontaxable amount, Enter the amount from the following table in both columns. 997,9840.
If the amount on line 1e, column {a) or {b} is: The lebbying nontaxable amount is: '
Not over $500,000 20% of the amount on line te.
Over $500,000 but not over $1,000,000 $100,000 plus 15% of the excess over $500,000.

Over $1,000,000 but not over $1,500,000 $175,000 plus 10% of the excess over $1,000,000
Over $1,500,000 but not over $17,000,000 $225,000 plus 5% of the excess over $1,500,000.
Over $17,000,000 $1,000,000.

g Grassroots nontaxable amount (enter 25% of line 11)
k Subtract line 1g from line 1a. H zero or less, enter -0
i Subtract line 1f from line 1c. If zero or less, enter -0-
i Ifthere is an amount other than zero on either line 1h or line 1i, did the organization file Form 4720
reporting section 4911 tax {or this year?

4-Year Averaging Period Under Section 501(h}
(Some organizations that made a section 501(h} election do not have to complete all of the five
columns below, See the instructions for lines 2a through 2f on page 4.}

l.obbying Expenditures During 4-Year Averaging Period

or ﬁscgf‘)',eer;fageg?ls;ing ) (a) 2010 {b) 2011 {c) 2012 (d) 2013 () Total

2a Lobbying nontaxable amount 871,259, 859,535, 854,080. 997,940.| 3,622,814,
b Lobbying ceiling amount .
{150% of line 2a, columnie))

5,434,221,

¢ Total lobbying expenditures 147,464. 106,065. 171,708, 149,099. 574,337.

d Grassroots nontaxable amount 217,815, 214,884. 223 520. 249,485, 905,704.
e Grassroots coling mourt r— e ettt Suaadion ol Wit Moveton N
(150% of line 2d, column {g)

1,358,556.

f Grassroots lobbying expenditures 98,485. 58,910. 117,623. 90,396, 365,414.
Schedule C (Form 920 or 990-E2Z) 2013
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Schedule C (Form 990 or 990-.E'_§]! 2013 CLEARWAY MINNESOQTA (SM) 41-1921094 Page 3
Pa -8 Gomp ete if the organization is exempt under section C and has iled Form

{election under section 501(h)).

For each "Yes," response to fines 1a through 1i below, provide in Part IV a detailed description (a} {b)
of the lobbying activity.

Yes No Amount

1 During the year, did the filing organization attempt to influence fareign, national, state or
local legisiation, including any attempt to influence public opinion on a legislative matter
or referendum, through the use of:
VORINEBEIST || e oo seee oo

Paid staff or management {include compensation in expenses reported on lines 1c through 19?7
Media advertiserments?

To ~0o o0 oW
=
o
=]
Q
]
e
o
3
[
3

3 o
]
w
@
o
o
I
)
on
o
g
=
=0
]
ge!
c
g
a
3

2a Did the activities in line 1 cause the organization to be not described in section 501(c)(3)?
If “Yes,” enter the amount of any tax incurred under section 4912

Yes No
1 Were substantially alf {90% or more) dues received nondeductible by members? 1
2 Did the organization make only in-house lobbying expenditures of $2,000 or I8SS? . .
3__Did the organization agree to carry over lobbying and pofitical expenditures from the priorvear? ... 3

Part llI-B] Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c){@), section 501(c)(5}, or section
501(c)(6) and if either {a) BOTH Part lll-A, lines 1 and 2, are answered "No," OR (b) Part llI-A, line 3, is
answered "Yes."
1 Dues, assessments and similar amounts from members
2 Section 162(g) nondeductible lobbying and political expenditures {do not include amounts of political
expenses for which the section 527(f) tax was paid),
a Cunent year

c Total

4 If notices were sent and the amount on line 2¢ exceeds the amount on line 3, what portion of the excess
does the organization agree to carryover to the reasonable estimate of nondeductible lobbying and political
eXPenditUre NEXEYBAIT e e e
Taxable amount of lobbying and political expenditures (see instructions)

IPart IV:|  Supplemental Information
Provide the descriptions required for Part I-A, line 1; Part |-B, line 4; Part I-C, line 5; Part iI-A {affiliated group list); Part [I-A, line 2; and Part II-B, line 1.
Also, complete this part for any additional infarmation.

PART II-A - BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION'S LOBBYING ACTIVITIES:

ACCORDING TC AUTHORITIES INCLUDING CDC AND THE U.S. SURGEON

GENERAL'S OFFICE, PUBLIC POLICIES THAT PROTECT PEQOPLE FROM SECONDHAND

SMOKE, MAKE QUIT-SMOKING HELP MORE ACCESSIBLE, MAKE IT HARDER FOR TOBACCO

COMPANIES TQO DO BUSINESS AND GENERALLY CHANGE THE ENVIRONMENT SO THAT

TOBACCO IS8 LESS ACCEPTABLE HAVE A SIGNIFICANT IMPACT ON REDUCING THE HARM
Schedute G (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2013

332043
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- Schedule C (Form 990 or 990-£7} 2013 CLEARWAY MINNESOTA (SM) 41-1921094 pagea
| Part IV | Supplemental Information (continued)

TOBACCO CAUSES INDIVIDUALS AND COMMUNITIES. BECAUSE SUCH POLICIES HELP

REDUCE SMCKING RATES AND REDUCE EXPOSURE TQ SECONDHAND SMOKE, CLEARWAY

MINNESQTA SUPPORTS WORK IN THIS AREA.

IN FISCAL YEAR 2014, CLEARWAY MINNESOTA RENEWED ITS DIRECT LOBBYING

CONTRACT WITH A QUALIFIED VENDOR. THIS YEAR'S DIRECT LOBBYING WORK FQCUSED

ON DEFENDING THE TOBACCQ TAX INCREASE PASSED IN 2013, PASSING SMOKE-FREE

FOSTER CARE LEGISLATION AND PASSING NEW STATEWIDE RESTRICTIONS ON

ELECTRONIC CIGARETTES. OTHER LOBBYING ACTIVITIES INCLUDED PUBLIC

RELATIONS, COMMUNICATIONS AND GRASSROOTS ORGANIZING ACTIVITIES TO ADVANCE

PRIORITY POLICY AREAS AND PROVIDING PUBLIC COMMENTS ON VARIOUS STATE AND

FEDERAL REGULATORY POLICY PROPOSALS. THIS YEAR, CLEARWAY MINNESOTA AWARDED

SEVEN NEW GRANTS TO NONPROFIT ORGANIZATIQNS AND LOCAL UNITS OF GOVERNMENT

TO REDUCE THE HARM TOBACCO CAUSES MINNESOTA THROUGH COALITION BUILDING,

POLICY ADVOCACY AND PUBLIC EDUCATION. FINALLY, CLEARWAY MINNESOTA ALSO

AWARDED GRANTS TO AMERICAN INDIAN TRIBES TO SUPPQRT THE DEVELQPMENT QF

RESERVATION INITIATIVES TO PROMOTE HEALTH AND ADVANCE SMOKE-FREE POLICIES

ON TRIBAL LANDS IN MINNESOTA. A SMALL PORTION OF THESE GRANTS (UP TO

$2,000 PER GRANT) IS USED FOR LOBBYING TO ADVANCE SMOKE-FREE POLICIES ON

TRIBAL LANDS.

Schedule C (Form 990 or §80-EZ) 2013
11-08



. . OMB No, 1545-0047
. SCHEDULE D Supplemental Financial Statementis =
(Form 990) P- Complete if the organization answered "Yes," to Form 980, 20 1 3
Part iV, line 6,7, 8,9, 10, 11a, 11b, 11¢, 11d, 11e, 11f, 12a, or 12b. , "
Departmant of the Treasury . Aﬂach to Form 990 Pub
Internai Revenue Service B Information about Schedule D (Form 980) and its instructions is at wyny irs gov/inrm990
MName of the organization Employer |dent1f|cation number
CLEARWAY MINNESOTA (SM) 41-1921094

Organizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts. Complets ff the
organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 6.

(a) Donor advised funds {b) Funds and other accounts
1 Totalnumberatendofyear . .. ... .. ...
2 Aggregate contributions to {(duringyear) .
3 Aggregate grants from (during year} ...
4 Aggregate valueatendofyear ..
5 Did the organization inform all donors and donor advisors in writing that the assets held in donor advised funds
are the organization's property, subject to the organization's exclusive legal control? . D Yes D No
6 Did the arganization inform all grantees, donors, and donor advisors in writing that grant funds can be used only
for charitable purposes and not for the benefit of the donor or donor advisar, or for any other purpose conferring
IMpermiSS Dl DIV ate ool D o i e e et s s een e e |:] Yes D No
[PartIl | Conservation Easements. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 7. N/A
1 Purpose(s} of conservation easements held by the organization (check all that apply).
Preservation of land for public use (e.g., recreation or education) Praservation of an historically important land area
Protection of natural habitat Praservation of a certified historic structure
Preservation of open space
2 Complete lines 2a through 2d if the organization held a qualified conservation contribution in the form of a conservation easement on the last
day of the tax year.
cio2f Held at the End of the Tax Year

a Total number of conservation easements 2a

b Total acreage restricted by conservationeasements 2b

¢ Number of conservation easements on a certified historic structure included in(@ 2c

d Number of conservation easements included in {c) acquired after 8/17/08, and not on a historic structure
listed in the National Begister e e 2d

3 Number of conservation easements modified, transferred, released, extinguished, or terminated by the organization during the tax
year p»
4  Number of states where property subject to conservation easement is located p»
5 Does the arganization have a written policy regarding the periodic monitoring, inspection, handling of
violations, and enforcement of the conservation easements it holds? ] Yes l:‘ No
6 Staff and volunteer hours devoted to monitoring, inspecting, and enforcing conservation easements during the year P
7 Amount of expenses incutred in monitoring, inspecting, and enforcing conservation easements during the year b $
8 Does each conservation easement reported on line 2(d) above satisfy the requirements of section 170{hH4)B){H
and SBCHON T O A B ) 7 e e Llves [Cno
9 In Part Xill, describe how the organization reports conservation easements in its revenue and expense statement, and balance shest, and
include, if applicable, the text of the footnote to the organization's financial statements that describes the organization's accounting for
conservation easements. _
‘Partlll;| Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets.
Complete if the organization answered “Yes" to Form 990, Part 1V, line 8. N/A
1a If the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 958), not to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works of art,
historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service, provide, in Part Xill,
the text of the footnote to its financial statements that describes these items.

b If the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 958), to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works of art, historical
treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service, provide the following amounts
relating to these items:

(i} Revenues included in Form 890, Part VIl line 1 . B $
(i) Assetsincluded in Form990, Part X e e, L g

2  If the organization received or held works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets for financial gain, provide
the following amounts required to be reported under SFAS 116 (ASC 958} relating to these items:

a Revenues included in Form 890, Part VI, Bne 1 |

b Assetsincludedin Form 980, Part X e, B &

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule D (Form 990) 2013

3320
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Schedule D (Form 990) 2013 CLEARWAY MINNESOTA (8M) 41-1921094 page?2
|Partill] Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets (continved)
3 Using the organization’s acquisition, accession, and other records, check any of the following that are a significant use of its collection items
{check all that apply):

a D Public exhibition d I:l Loan or exchange programs
b D Scholarly research e LT.J Other
c Preservation for future generations

4 Provide a description of the organization's collections and explain how they further the organization's exempt purpose in Part XIIi.
5 During the year, did the organization solicit or receive donations of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets

_to be_ sold to raise funds rather than to be maintained as part of the organization's collection? ... D Yes I:] No
Part V] Escrow and Custodial Arrangements. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 9, or

reported an amount on Form 990, Pari X, line 21. N/A

1a Is the organization an agent, trustee, custodian or other intermediary for contributions or other assets not included
ONFOrm 800, PEM X? |ttt et
b If "Yes," explain the arrangement in Part X1l and complete the following table:

¢ Beginning balance ...
d Additions during the year
e
f

Distributions during the year
Ending balance

b _If "Yes," explain the arrangement in Part XHI. Check here if the explanation has been provided in Part Xl

[Part V. | Endowment Funds. Complete if the organization answered “Yes"” to Form 990, Part IV, fine 10. N/A

{a) Current year {b) Prior year (c} Two years back | (d} Three years back | (e) Four years back

1a Beginning of year balance
Contributions

b
¢ Net investment eamnings, gains, and losses
d Grants orscholarships .
e Other expenditures for facilities

and programs ...
f Administrative expenses
g End of year balance

2 Provide the estimated percentage of the current year end balance {line 1g, column (a)) held as:
a Board designated or quasi-endowment P %
b Permanent endowment P %
¢ Temporarily restricted endowment b %
The petcentages in lines 2a, 2b, and 2¢ should equal 100%.
3a Are there endowment funds not in the possession of the organization that are held and agministered for the organization

by: Yes | No
(1) unrelated organiZations | | et 3ali)
(i) related organizations et 3alii}
b If *Yes" to 3a(i), are the related organizations listed as required on Schedule R? 3b
4 Describe in Part Xlil the intended uses of the organization's endowment funds.
‘Part Vl:i Land, Buildings, and Equipment.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" to Form 390, Part IV, line 11a. See Form 980, Part X, line 10.
Description of property {a) Cost or other {b) Cost or other (c) Accumulated (d) Book value
basis {investment) basis (other} depreciation
Ta Land e
b BUIdiNgS ..
¢ Leasehold improvements . ... .. 26,243, 10,282.
d EQUIDMENt e 339,112, 32,308.
€ Other .o i
Total. Add lines 1a through 1e. (Colimn {d) raust equal Form 990, Part X, column {B), ine 10(ch) . ... ... B 42,590,
Schedule D {Form 990) 2013
332052

08-25-13



Schedule D (Form 990) 2013 CLEARWAY MINNESOTA (SM) 41-1921094 page3
Part VIj Investments - Other Securities.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 11b. See Form 990, Part X, line 12.
(a) Description of security or £ategory (neuding name of security) {b) Book value {e) Method of valuation: Cost or end-of-year market value
(1) Financial derivatives .
(2) Closely-held equity interests
(3} Cther
(ay ALTERNATIVE INVESTMENT
@ FUND OF FUNDS 5,243,264, END-OF-YEAR MARKET VALUE
() PRIVATE EQUITY FUND OF
oy FUNDS 14,358,368.] END-OF-YEAR MARKET VALUE
| COMMODITY INDEX FUND 2,585,275.| END-QF-YEAR MARKET VALUE
P
(&)
(H)
Total. {Col. {b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B} line 12.) p» 22,186,907.4
Part VIll| Investments - Program Related.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 11c. See Form 980, Part X, line 13. N/A
(a) Description of investment {b) Book value {c) Method of valuation: Cost or end-of-yvear market vaiue

)]
)
)
“)
{9)
(&)
{7
{8)
{9)
Total. (Col. (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B) line 13.) B»
PartiX] Other Assets.
Compleig if the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 11d. See Form 990, Part X, line 15. N/A
(a} Description {b} Book value

@)

Part X| Other Liabilities.
Complete if the organization answered “Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 11e or 11f. See Form 990, Part
1. (a} Description of fiability {b) Book value o

N/A

(1} Federal income taxes

@}

3)

{4

5

{6)

{7}
8
9

Total. (Column (b} must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B) line 25.)

2. Liability for uncertain tax positions. In Part XIli, provide the text of the footnote to the organization's financial statements that reports the
organization's liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 {ASC 740). Check here if the text of the footnote has been provided in Part XiI}

Schedule B (Form 990} 2013

332052
09-26-13



Schedule D (Form 990) 2013 CLEARWAY MINNESQTA (SM) 41-1921094 page 4
rt X1 .| Recongiliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.

1 Total revenue, gains, and other support per audited financial statements 1 8,617,424,
2 Amounts included on fine 1 but not on Form 990, Part VIIL, line 12; o

@ Netunrealized gains oninvestments . 2a 3,156 ’ 025

b Donated services and use of facilities 2b

¢ Recoveriesof prioryeargrants 2¢

d Other (Describe in PartXIIL) . 2d <201,917

e Addlines 2athrough 2d .. 2,954,108,
3 Subtractiine 2e fromline 1 .. 5,663,316,
4  Amounts included on Form 990, Part VI, line 12, but not on fine 1:

a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part Vil line7b . 4a

b Other (Describein Part XUL) 4b

¢ AdAHNEs 4aand b || 4c Q.

Total revenue. Add lines 3 and 4e. (This must equal Form 990, Parﬂ e 12 ) 5 5,663,316,

Part XII. | Reconciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements With Expenses per Return.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes*® to Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.
1 Total expenses and losses per audited financial statements ...~
Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part 1X, line 25:

16,958,807,

a Donated services and use of faciiittes .~ 2a

b Priorysar adiIstments e Zb

C ONBrIOSSES e 2c

d Other (Describe In Part XL e 2d

e Addfines2athrough2d | Q.
3 subtractling 2e from ine 1 16,958,807,
4  Amounts inchaded on Form 990, Part [X, line 25, but not on line 1:

a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VI, line7b 4a

b Other (Describe inPart XU} 4b 201,917.]

C AQDINeSAand 4D e 201,917,

Total expenses. Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must equal Form 990, Part [, ite 18] oovvovevveeeeeeeeveevroooo 5 | 17,160,724,

[ Part X1} Suppiemental Information.
Provide the descriptions required for Part i, lines 3, 5, and &; Part Ill, fines 1a and 4; Part 1V, lines 1b and 2b: Part Vv, line 4; Part X, line 2; Part X|,
lines 2d and 4b; and Part XII, lines 2d and 4b. Also complete this part to provide any additional information.

PART X, LINE 2:

FIN 48 (ASC 740) DISCLOSURE FROM AUDITED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS :

CLEARWAY MINNESOTA IS EXEMPT FROM FEDERAL INCOME TAXES UNDER THE

PROVISIONS OF SECTION 501(C){3) OF THE INTERNAIL REVENUE CODE. THE

ORGANIZATION IS ALSO EXEMPT FROM MINNESOTA INCOME TAXES.

THE ORGANIZATION FOLLOWS THE CURRENT ACCOUNTING GUIDANCE RELATED TO

UNCERTAINTY IN INCOME TAXES. THIS GUIDANCE CLARIFIES THE RECOGNITION

THRESHOLD AND MEASUREMENT REQUIREMENTS FOR INCOME TAX POSITIONS TAKEN OR

EXPECTED TO BE TAKEN IN INCOME TAX RETURNS. THTS INCLUDES POSITIONS THAT

THE ENTITY IS EXEMPT FROM INCOME TAXES OR NOT SUBJECT TO ADDITIONAL INCOME

gg?ggfw Schedule D (Form 990) 2013




. Schedule D (Ferm 990) 2013 CLEARWAY MINNESQTA (SM) 41-1921094 pages
|Part XIIE| Supplemental Information continved)

TAX LIABILITY ON UNRELATED BUSINESS INCOME. UNDER THE STANDARDS, THE

ORGANTZATION RECOGNIZES TAX BENEFITS FROM UNCERTAIN TAX POSITIONS ONLY IF

IT IS MORE LIKELY THAN NOT THAT THE TAX POSITIONS WILL BE SUSTAINED ON

EXAMINATION BY TAXING AUTHORITIES. THE ORGANIZATION HAS IDENTIFIED NO

SIGNIFICANT INCOME TAYX UNCERTAINTIES. THE ORGANIZATION FILES INFORMATION

RETURNS AS A TAX-EXEMPT ORGANIZATION. SHOULD THAT STATUS BE CHALLENGED IN

THE FUTURE, ALL YEARS SINCE INCEPTION COULD BE SUBJECT TO REVIEW BY THE

IRS.

THE ORGANIZATION'S FEDERAL AND STATE INFORMATION RETURNS ARE OPEN TO

EXAMINATION FOR TAX YEARS 2011 THROUGH 2013.

PART XI, LINE 2D - OTHER ADJUSTMENTS:

INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT FEES -201,917.

PART XII, LINE 4B - OTHER ADJUSTMENTS:

INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT FEES 201,917.

Schedule D {Form 990) 2013
332056
09-25-13
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SCHEDULE F Statement of Activities Outside the United States Ry
(Form 980) B> Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 890, Part IV, line 14b, 15, or 16. 20 1 3
Bepariment of the Treasury P Attach to Form 990. P See separate instructions. :
Jnternal Revanue Service B Information about Schedule F (Form 990) and its instructions is at . irs.qov/s 990

Name of the organization

CLEARWAY MINNESOTA (SM)

Employer ldenttflcatlon number

41-1921094

Form 990, Pari 1V, line 14b.

General Information on Activities Outside the United States. Complete if the organization answered "Yes” on

1 For grantmakers, Does the organization maintain records to substantiate the amount of its grants and other assistance,
the grantees’ eligibifity for the grants or assistance, and the selection criteria used to award the grants or assistance? Yes D No

2 For grantmakers. Describe in Part V the organization's procedures for monitoring the use of its grants and other assistance outside the

United States.

3 Activities per Region. (The following Part |, line 3 table can be duplicated if additional space is needed.)

(2) Region (b} Number of | (¢} Number of | (d} Activities conducted in region (e) If activity listed in (d) (7} Total
~ offices :&%‘t"sy"zens 5 | by type) {e.g., fundraising, program is a program service, exﬁgpgggres
in the region { indenendent ser\.m?es, :nvestmepts, grant§ to descrlb‘e spes:nfac type investments
C?r?rgaqc_fn%rs reciplients located in the region) of service(s) in region in region
EUROPE {INCLUDING
ICELAND & GREENLAND) TNVESTMENT IN COLLER
- ALBANIA, ANDORRA, [NTERNATIONAL PARTNERS V-B,
AUSTRIA, BELGIUM 0 0 {.P. FUND 3,068 672,
3a Subtotal . a 0 3,068,672,
b Total from continuation
sheets toPart! Y 0 0.
¢ Totals {add lines 3a
and3b) oo 0 0 3,068,672,

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990.

332071
10-03-13

Schedule F {Form 990) 2013
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Schedule F (Form 990) 2013 CLEARWAY MINNESOTA (SM) 41-1921094

Page 4

{PartV:| Foreign Forms

Was the organization a U.S. transferor of property to a foreign corporation during the tax year? If "Yes," the
organization may be required to file Form 826, Retum by a U.S. Transferor of Property to a Foreign

Corporation {see Instructions for FOrM 926)
Did the organization have an interest in a foreign trust during the tax year? If *Yes, " the arganization

may be required to file Form 3520, Annual Return to Report Transactions with Foreign Trusts and

Receipt of Certain Foreign Gifts, and/or Form 3520-A, Annual Information Return of Foreign Trust With

a U.S. Owner (see Instructions for Forms 3520 and 8520-A) ... ...
Did the organization have an ownership interest in a foreign corporation during the tax year? f *Yes, "

the organization may be required to file Form 5471, Information Return of U.S. Persons With Respect To

Certain Foreign Corporations. (see Instructions for Form 6471)
Was the organization a direct or indirect shareholder of a passive fareign investment company or a

qualified electing fund during the tax year? if "Yes," the organization may be required to file Form 8621,

Information Return by a Shareholder of a Passive Foreign Investment Company or Qualified Electing Fund.

(see Instructions for FOMm 8621} e
Did the organization have an ownership interest in a foreign partnership during the tax year? if "Yes, "

the organization may be required to file Form 8865, Return of U.S. Persons With Respect To Certain

Forelgn Partnerships. (see Instructions for Form 8865)
Did the organization have any operations in or related to any baycotting countries during the tax year? If

"Yes, " the organization may be required to file Form 5713, International Boycott Report. (see Instructions

for Form 5713)

No

No

X] No

No

No

No

332074
10-03-13

Schedule F (Form 920) 2013



Schedule F {Form 990y 2013  CLEARWAY MINNESOTA (SM) 41-1921094 pages
PartV:| Supplemental Information
Provide the information required by Part |, line 2 {monitoring of funds); Part |, line 3, column {f) {accounting methed; amounts of
investments vs. expenditures per region); Part Il, line 1 (accounting method); Part I {accounting method); and Part Ill, column {c)
{estimated number of recipients), as applicable. Also complete this part to provide any additional information.

EXPLANATION: THE ORGANIZATION DOES NOT ISSUE GRANTS OR ASSISTANCE

OUTSIDE THE UNITED STATES.

332075 10-03-13 Schedule F (Form 980) 2013



£L-62-04

LOLEEE
(€102} (066 wio) | sinpaysg 066 WO JOJ SUORDNJISU] 2} 995 ‘20N0pN 10V Uononpay yomiaded 104  YH

7 < —— e —————— — T ——— BIGET | 605U Ul B51S] SUGHeIIeRI0 BUI0 15 TG0nu 60T B109 E

‘17 | a|ge} | sul sy Ul paysy suoneziuebio juswwaaob pue (£}(0) LOS U0I3D9S JO JBCUINU 210} JauT g
NW EN-INVED XZJITOd TYD0T "0 *L96 69T €0T0Y TOZZ6EF-0T £0855 MW 'HZNING - LITYLS
HOI¥EdNS ISHM F2% - LSYEHIMON-MH
YEAIN ROITIVIDOSSY ONNT NYI LAWY
NH TYHLNE] ‘D "556 67T EDT0Y TOEEZHEP-0E £0095 MR 'OLVENVH -
HINOS-INVED A3IT0d TYIOT TSET X0d "0°d - OIVNVH HIIYEED-MH
¥AJIIN NOILV¥IDOSSY ONAT NYITHAWY
II SHIDITOd ONISVYD dH2j ‘0 "000 0z £0T09 9T060E0-LE ZO¥SS NH ' SITOAVENNIK
HIOHS HAIRVAQY O IOILOHJ LTFILS HIB HIAOS 08 "WIINAD SAI 008
NOILYANNOA YHOINYD NYIANI NVIIGIHY
HY¥S0Hd NOIIVSSAD ‘D ‘0Z1 %9 d¥0> IIJd0¥d HOH 080IEZ0-0Z P0IB6 ¥M ‘ITLIVES
agsSve-g3M NYIdLnInd 00TZ IIINS 'SANIAV QUIHL 666
"ONI ONIZTTTEM HuHTY
HNITATIH NY'TdLINd 0 "¥50°€0F d¥00 LIdodd ¥od 086TEZ0-02 $0196 ¥M 'ITIIVAS
00tz EII0S "HONAAY TQYIHL 666
"ONI 'ONTHETIEM TUSTY
SEOIAYES TYIEday ‘0 ‘5066 d¥0D 1IJ0¥d ¥0J 080TEZD-0Z $0T86 ¥M 'HATIILVIS
ANCHJHTIL GNVY X¥d 0012 FLINS 'HONIAV dUIHL 666
"ORI 'ONIEGTIEM TOATY

: mm_mwwm% 8auElsISEE
aouesisse Jo SOUB]SISSE YsSEo-UoU .“_ o n.é uon m\yq_,%_, yseD-uou elb yseo e|qeoidde J jswulanob Jo
b jo asoding {y) jo uopnduosag (B) 10 Do_tm:z m 1O UNowy (a) 10 Wnowy (p) uoioas oYt (2) N3 {q) uoexnuebio jo ssappe pue awey (e) |

‘paposu s) 82eds [eUORIPPE Jt pazed)dnp aq Led |) eg DOO'GE UBL} 9J0L paAisdal Jey; jualdioas
Aue 10} 'L 2 auy ‘Al Wed '066 Wio 0} S8 A, PaIamsUE UoljeZiuebl0 au) |t s1aidion “Sa3e1S Pailf] Ay Ul SuogezueBig pue SIUAWLLIDAGE) O] SOUB]SISSY ISLID PUR SIUELD
ST uEED U]} U1 spuny JuelB JO &sA aLj] BULIG}IUGL 10} SeNpast0Id 8 UOEZIUEDIC 8if] A HEd Ul mn:ommo "z

oN ﬂ_ saA MI|NI|_ .......................................................................................................................................................................... s £8OUE]SISSE 10 SJURLB SU} DIBME O P3SN epato
UOR03(8S uy puk ‘auelsisse 1o siuelB syl Jo) AqiBle ssajurib ey ‘aaur)s|iSSE J0 SURIB SYL JO JUNOWIR BUY] STENUBISANS 03 SPJOJAI UEIUIBL uoneziuebio sy ssoq L

A0UR]SISSY PUE SueY UD UDIIEWLION| [e18UdD) “ AP¥ed:

760TEC6T-TV (WS) VILOSHNNIW AVMEVETD
Aaguinu uoneaynuapl Biodwsg uoneziuebio ay) o awep
Uo5TIDy[OU™ST M 3 5) suononsll S1 pue (Ge6 Wiod) | eINpayas Moge UCREWIOUY «f N —
‘066 W04 01 yoeny A Ainseas| ayj jo juswiyedsq

"ZE 19 LZ 8ul| ‘Al 11ed ‘066 wiod 01 ,S94, Palomsue :osmu_:mmho ay} 1 s1o|duron)

M—- QN S91B}S Pajiun Ay} Ui S{ENPIAIPU| PUE ‘SJUSWILLIDADK) {066 w104)

v30cher on B ‘suonjeziuebi() 0} 9OUEB]SISSY JOYIO PUE Sjue.y) | TINAZHIS




(066 wo4) | ainpaisg

£1-L0-50
L¥22EC

IONIINIZEQ 0 "E86° 66T EDT0Y ELTSSBT-TV £0ESS NW 'QnoiIo ‘IS
ODOVHOL ONILVEN "N ENNBAY HI9 90F%T
¥0d HONVHD WHISAS HITVAH NOITYANNOA HIEYAH FUVOVILNAD
(HOUVIESTY AALLVIEOS ‘0 ‘0007001 £0709 66LLYST-TY TO%SS I ' SITOIYIRNIH
SHS) SWIDIHEA HIUA-THOWS 095 TLINS 'HIMON ANNIAY UHIHI TTT
INTANCUIANA ONY AOMANT 404 YILNED
NOITYNIWASSIG ‘0 000 6L £0T09 66LLVIT-TP TO¥S55 NH 'SITOdVIANNIH
MOTTHI HOUYASIN 095 FIINS 'HIVON HAANIAVY OWIHL ZTT
204 1504 INIHNOUIANG INTRNOYIANT QNY ADYENT HOJd HIINID
ANY ADYENT YO4 WHINID
I0Hr0Yd ‘0 "zzo’L €2T09 66LLFIT-TP T0%5S NW ' SITOAVANNIN
ONIYOIINON ALITYOY) HIMON HANZAY OQUE ZTZ
¥IV NOIA¥N HI¥NYHI HILIHM INERNOYIANS NV ADWANH HOJ dIINID
N SHILTIO "0 "9L66FT £2T0H EFVOTPI-TV YITSS MW "10vd oS
NIML -INYED ADITOd TVOON LSAM TAY ALISHTAING G6ET
NH-SYIIOHSNON 04 NOIZVIDOSSY
LOHM0¥d SDILOVI ONIZINEVH ‘0 "L86 0€ £0T09 ZP¥POTIPI-T¥ ZIST-FPITSG NW ‘1IO¥d “IS
ZYLSNUNI O0DOVECI ONINIVHI 0t€s ‘M "HAV ATISUEAINA S6€2
NWH-SIHOTY SUTFAOHSRON/A NOILVIDOSSY
VIOSENNIK NI SHILINY4SId 0 99T’ 8¢ €070 TLLBZ0Z-0T ZT9%6 ¥O aNVYIANO
ODOVEQL DNILYRIKIIH 79 FILINS 'VEYId VMYDO "H ANVEd 00¢
FRLINDE OL NOILVAONNI T¥dddY
IDAr0¥d ITI EdHYV'] 0 "Z0s'EvT €3T09 TLLBZOTZ-0Z Z19%6 YO 'ONYINYO
29 HILIAS 'VYZVTId YMVOO ‘H MNVMd 00f
TYEdIV
dNo¥o AII¥Yd XINZOHA HHI 0 000°'52 €DT09 TLLBZOZ-0E Z19%6 ¥2 aNVTHYO
¥od N¥'Id DIDELVHLS LIV Z9 HILINS ‘YIVI4 WMVDO H ENWEI 00¢
vddav
{teL10 ‘lesieadde
‘AN “oog) BoUBISISSe

90UBISISSE J0 S0UBISISSE LSBO-LoU uoientea \SEO-UOL jueld yseo a|gqeo)dde g jusweAoh Jo uonezuebio

eJb jo asoding {u) Jo uondussag (B) jo poyley {1 JO Junowy (o) 10 unowy (p} uonoas Ju| (9) Ni3 (q) 10 ssaippe pue swepy (e}
(1l Hed ‘(066 Wio4) | SNPAYOS) S81€YG PajUn 8y} UL SucezIuef I pue SIUSLULLIBAOE) 0] 3JURISISSY J8YLD PUE SJUBID) L0 Uo{IENUUOD _ I u.ﬁmw*
L SBed (WS) VIOSANNIW AVMIVETD (0860 [empatRs

P60TC6T-1¥



{066 Wiod) | a|npaljog

€L-L0-50
L¥dgEe

SNdWY) ‘0 0007591 EDOTOY L99T90L-5L ££996 N 'TUVI SSVD
FALA-COOVHOL TYIDETWHOD MN Q¥ JTOMETLIIT S¥69 08T X0d 04
TOATIOD TYIIEL NV EOEHAT SOATIOD TYEINL H3NVE HOEAT
WHINAD TYDICHER 0 T0E0° 19T £0T04 €ELSP80-TH STHGS MH “SITOdYINNIN
"0D NIJENNAH ZHL &Y £-957 "HANAAV ¥¥V¥d TOL
HONAINIJEG O0JOVEOL IVIAJ NOIIVANNOA HIFIVAH NIZANNIH

O FONVHD WALSAS HIIVIH
II ZDAL0H] ‘0 "16¢ 88 EOT0H 98E6SEE-5€ LOPSS MW SITOAYINNIH
EOITOd INWATY ddRVYT HINOS EANEAVY ISTT 1082
HDOILSAL ¥0d NOILIYANANOA SHITLYMAVIH
SLOAL0¥d §,MOTTHI ‘0 T 44 £0T0q 98E6YEE-9E LOFSS MW ' STI0AVANNIR
ITI ddHVVT HOVNYH HINOS FANIAY LSTZ T08Z
H3ILSNL ¥OoZ NOILVGNNOd SYTIVYMGYIH
* ME0M 0 ¥69°L dd900 LIJ0¥d W04 O0LELBET-LE 70?55 NH ' SITOJANNIK
AD2I70d NOTIVSSED ONIOONG 006€ IIINS 'IITULS HIY HINOS EE
Ol dALYIEY SHIIAMES TYHAT ¥d IHDIGYH ANYIZTIVH
NOTLYLNIRETIHI]| "0 "6E0 16 d800 LIJ0¥d H0d PeEBIVE-LE Z0FSS MW “SITOJBRNIH
N¥'Id DIDdIv¥Lsg 006¢ FIINS 'IHFULS HI9 HINOS £€
ADIT0d NOILYSSHI ONILINSNOD IHOIHVH ONYIZTIVH

Hod SAOIANIS ONILTASNOY
NW LSV ‘0 €86 6LT ALNNOD ENHAOOL L&LSDOS-T? 99055 NH 'ONIM qIy
HINOS-INVED XDITOd T¥O0T -~ LIEYLS HLY LSEM IS5 - SHDIAYUIS
BITYIH DITALRd ALNNGCD ANHAOCH
N RaE1SEM ‘0 "ZT0'6FT SATINAOD MW OMI| SLL5009-1% 00599 MW 'COVEHNOOH
-ILNV¥D ADITOd TY¥DOTY £0€ EIINS 'BI¥ON “IS HITT STL
qUVod HLTVHH ALINAWWOD RIATIM-AYTO
MW TVEINED "0 000 SLT €070 ELTISSBI-I¥ £0£95 NH 'QOOTD IS
—LNWHD ADITOd IW00T ‘N OHONSAY HLY S0FT
NOTI¥ANNOs HITVAH TYVOVYLNAD

{1atpo ‘jeseidde
‘AN Hooq) aoue)s|sse
80UL]S|SSE 10 20uR]SISSe YSea-uou uoienea yseo-uou Juelb yseo s|qeodde y juawwaaob Jo uoeziuebic
welB o esoding (U) 10 uonduoss( (5} 1o pouylay (1) Jo junowy {3) 40 Junouy (pj uopoas Oy (a) N3 (9) J0 ssesppe pue atueN (2)

(1 ved ‘(066 W4} | 9nPsUog) SeIRlg panun] 8yl Ul Sucieziuebi) puUE SJUSUILIBADY) O) SOUR]SISSY 8110 PUR SIELY) JO UOHENUIIo:D

[ abeg

¥601Z6T-TY

(WS) VILOSHNNIW AVMYYHTID

(066 Wio) | 5INBaUBS



(066 uoy) | enpayos

€L-10-50
LFZTEE

NOIZVINIWETARI NOILI SNV ¢ 559 VT dd0od IIJo¥d ¥0d 0980T1Z£-92 TZ0OSS MW ' IIOVEINYE -
SHOIAYES NV¥TI4LIND TH04das HONIAY HITT 9T0T - 'ONI ‘SISATYNY
3 HOWVHASHY NYOIYAWY HIZON
HYOM ADITTOd ANY XHSATTEG 0 "5L0' Y &900 IIJ0¥d d0J 0980TZE-9%T 12055 MW 'I1I0vEIuvd -
HOTA¥AS NOIIVSSHED HONVAGY SAANEAY HITT 9T0T - 'ONI ‘SISATYNY
O6L HIME0 NI INIWNLEY4HQ ¥ HOUVASHY NVOIMHWY HLIJON

NOII¥SSED OL NOIIVIINSNOY
AYINNOD NYIONT] ‘0 ‘50T 8¢ £0T0G 8656F6T1-96 LOFSS MW ' SITOAVANNIH
NI ALINDE HITYAH HONVATY dzZeT EI1INS 'HINOS ANNIAY LSTZ 1082
On NOILVIITIOVA dNDOTVIO AdO¥HINYTIIHd Ni SNVIIHEWY FAILYN
NOIZVZITILL ENITITEH ‘0 "gen 1z €210 LPOPFOC-TL 90Z08 00 'HIANEQ
RYIdEIND YEMOHS HLOWON] LEEYLS NOSHOYL 00%T
OL AQOLS NOS¥YHd L0ddns HITVAH HSIMED TYNOILVN
ANITJTHH NYT1dLING ‘0 “L¥Loze £0109 L¥OPROC-TL 90208 0D 'WHANEQ
IHHYLS NOSMOVL (0FT
HITVEH HSIMAL TYNOIIVN
NOILWNIHESSIA ‘0 ‘090’5z £0T09 29T9¥2Z-G¢ £I9S5 MR ' SITOAVANNIR
aN¥ NOILVINIWETIND AN LAFYLS AYMAVOHH £EFC
' INSHAOTEAAG HYNSYIH INEHEYASYAR ALINAWHOD YIOSANNIN

TSN COOVEOL HAIMATVILS
LOELOUd {INORY ‘0 "80% pEZ NOITYN TYaIdy LLSTIST-1¥ §5£95 N "VIHVNO
&4, NCd) | NIIVYMSYDVTY FATEE ¥NIAOO BOFEF
ODED, INVED XDIT0d EMEILO O ONVE SOVT HTTIIH

¥ U 02DYHOL TVEINI
HONZANZIAQ o "GH6TLT NOIIYN TvaIuy LL5T99I-T% 6SE95 NH YINYNO
020¥H0E DONITVIWY HATSA YNIAOO BOTET
¥04 FONVHD WAILSAS HITVAH IMHINO A0 ANVE SO¥T HTTIW
ONIZEE0T HAIMAIVIY "0 ‘006 LET I¥Vd 1I1d0¥e €04 GSTI90FET-TP TO%55 N 'SITOdYINNIW
027 EIIDS 'S EONIAY NOZONIHSYM (0T
"dUITCd NANYN TVANIED ZOATUAD0OT

{(1ouz0 'lesieadde
‘AN Yo0Qq) 20UBISISSE
30UBIS|SSE A0 90UB)SISSE LSED-UOU UoiEN[EA UYses-uol yesf ysen aigeodde jusLLaAoh 1o uoneziuebio
juesb o esoding (y) 10 uonduosag {B) 10 poyle {1} 10 unouy (@) 10 Junowy (p) uonses 5y (o) NI (q) JO ssaIppk pue awep ()

(11 ved (066 ULOL) | SINPaYIS) $91EIS PEUUN Y} Ul SUONEZIURHID PUER S]UAILISA0Y) 0] 90UR]SISSY JSYLD PUE SIUEBID JO UOENUQUOD) _”._,_.fmm._

| 5beg

V60TZ6T-17

(WS ) YILOSHENNIW AVMMVYATO

(066 win4) | sINpaLog



(066 Wi04) | a|npayog

£L-10-50
Lyegee

TYNSOIXE HIOHS ODIVHOY 0 "698°'PTT ATILNZ INVHD/GNVT zj ETSLO05-T¥ 66755 KW ' SITOIYINNIN
UNY QVET ¥0d DNINIIUOH 05% FILINS 'LATYLS HVO 00Z
JOOHATIHD TNIYINONOY ¥dS 40 EDILI0C 'WON IHL 30 SINIDAH
SONIQTING ONISACH 2ITdAJ ‘0 919 92T AIIINT INVMO/QNYT 0] £IGLO09-TF 56795 MR SITOLVENNIR
NI NOIINVINEWETIHI X2I170J 0% HiIns 'EEEUIS AY0 00T
FIYI-FAOHS 20 TOVARI ¥ds 40 @DI4A0 'WOn HHL J0 SINIOEY
NOILVYSSHD ONIMOHS ‘0 *BST 6% AEILNT INVID/ANYT MW €TGL009-TF G5P5S NW ' SITOdVENNIN
NO SALLIUVOID THUOAYTH 067 ALINS ' TATULS WYO 00T
TOHINTH DNINNYE 40 LOH3AT ¥d§ 40 EDIJLI0 'HON SHI 40 SINZDEY
SHANONHS TOHLNAH ‘0 “866 66% ALILNE INVID/ANWT NW EISL009-TF §SPSS MW SITOJVENNIK
DNOWY HOIVd ANILOJOIN HIIM 0§% 3LI0S 'IEENIS AVO 00Z
ROIIVNIGHOD NI UNY ENOTY ¥ds 20 01440 'WON IHL 40 SINADEE
FLLIIVOID-8 A0 AOVOIdAE
SHEINVYED VIOSINNIH ] "g66 67T ALIINT INVMD/ANVTI IM Z6F9005-6€ 90LES IM 'NOSIOQVW - 14 HI¥
A¥YMYUYETD O HONVISISSY 'EONEAY ALISHIAINA 0G4 - NISNODSIM
TYOINHDEL 40 NOISIAOE] 40 ALISHIAING HHI A0 SINIDHEY
SISATYNY IMOHOD SIVH ‘0 ‘68E9 ALLENE INVHO/ANYT KW £TSL009-TF 9795 NH ' SITOIVAENNIK
0S? HIIAS 'IEFILS AYO 00T
¥ds 40 TDIAJ0 'WOn THI J0 SINISIH
SHITINOIMOdE] ‘0 "000'S2T EOT09 L9E968T1-1¥ S0TSS MW '1In¥d "I§
ANV SEONATIVHD HIHI-HMOHS ANNTAY LIWHANS 5L8
HYVYD YEISCd L1009 "ONI 'HEINED MY HIUIVEH 2I74dnd
AQNLS MAITAYILKT 0 "ovz 1S d40d LIJ0Wd ¥WCL 06£Z98T-TV PTP5G N STTOIVANNIN
HAHOWS -£102 HESVEIONI XY E0E ALIAS '"E°S IATULS NIVR 612
TDNI CBESATUNY VIVGE TVYNOISSTI0N
LOEL0¥d HMOHS (NVHAINODAH 0 51668 d¥0D IId0d¥d ¥0d O06EE98TI~1IP PIFSS NW ' SITOIVINNIN
HOUVISHEE HAIIVHHOS] Z0t HyIAs 'T'S  LATEIS NIVA 612
"ONI ‘SISATYNY ¥YIVD TYNOISSHAON]
(41430 ‘[esRIddEe
‘AN Moog) 8IUB]S|SSE
B80UB]S|SSE 10 90UBISISSE YSEI-Uou uolzenien LSBO-uUdUY wesf ysea a1qeodde j wawwaaob Jo uoneziiebio
welb Jo asoding (y) 10 vonduasaq (6} 1o poysy (1) 10 unowyy (s) Jo unowy (P uoioass Hui (9) N3 {a) JO sseppe pue swey (e)

(11 ved ‘(D86 wuod) | Npeyag) Se1eIS PaliUN] 3yl Uj SUCNIEZ|UBBIQ PUE SJUSLLILISACKE) 0} S0UB)SISSY J8UI() PUE SJUEID) 30 UCHENURUoY) mm_._. .a...._ma‘_

| abey

v60TC6T-17F

(WS} VIOSHNNIW AVMIYITD

(EECE NEGEEVRS



{os6 wuo4d) | 9Inpayog

€1-10-50
L¥geee

0 ‘gov€9> BNTVA ILNASHYE LEN INVID NI TONVHD
] .mmm.mm SHSNIJXH dELVIIY-INYID
) ‘L9p 8T YIARA ANY 000'6$ SINVYD
0 "859 961> SNOTLVTIHONYD INVHD
¥102 (SIVR) AEAYNS ‘0 "85 €ED d¥02 IId0¥d ¥04 99G6250-F8 05802 OH HTITANOOYW
0DDVHOI 110aY VIOSENNIH (MVATTAOT HOWVESHY TGST
ONI ‘IVISEM
SHALNYIE ‘0 A A1+ €0109 £6TI6TEZ-SE PITISS MM “11avd "is
ADITOd QNV NOIIVOAGH ISEM HNNEAY ALISHEAINOD 97%2
O2OVHEOL IVHIUL 30d Y I NOILOW HENOLSTIIM
ALINOKRKOD XOOIS ¥dddr ‘o “000° 08T NOII¥N Ive€Id¥d 06Z9T60-T7 1¥295 NH “STIVd BIINVID
¥od INVED ADITOd (N ISVE L9 AMH $%LG LPT Xod ‘074
NOIIV¥DATd QJDVAOL 'TVEINd ALINOWHOD XNOIS dd4dn
MW LSIMHINOS-INVEL 0 ‘766 67T SATIINNOD NW HATd T90LDTE-LT 85295 MH ' TIVHSUVH
XDIT0d T¥OOT F1,Ad 00T ATINS '"&S NMIVKH "M 500
SIITANAS NYHOH TNV HITYIH MS
HO¥VASTY SEILIYYASI| 0 "G00°5%  ALILNE INVED/OGNYT MW £TSL00S-TP GSF55 NH ~SITOAVANNIN
HII¥EH NI INYED L0TId 05% ALINS 'IATELS AVO 007
¥dS 40 d0I340 ‘WO HHL A0 SINIDIY
{Jajo ‘eseidde
‘AN Y00Qq) aoUR)SISSE
J0Ue}SISSE 40 20UE]SISSE YSeD-uou uoeniea L|seo-uou wesfi yseo a|qea)dde y juawulanch Jo uopeziveBio
juest jo asoding (y) Jo uonrduosaq {6) jo poyiaiy () 0 unowy (8) [ jo unowy {p) uonoss Oy| (o} NiE {a) 10 SSRIpPPE pUE BWeN (B)

{11 Hed {066 Wiog) | 9|Npayog) S21EIS Payun 9 w suoeziueBl) PUB S1UBWILIBACK) 0} 82UB]SISSY IS4} PUE SJUE.L) JO UOIIBNUIIIGYD

11 Hed|

| sheq

V60TC61-1F

(WS)

YLOSHNNIW AVMIVHETID

{066 wucd) | sInpaycs



{066 waod) | 2INpayog

£4-10-50
L PEZ2EE

0 "GLY 6> SINIHESYNERTIEY NY1d HLIVHH
{1aupo 'Jeserdde
‘AN “oog) a0UE)S|SSE
90UBISISSE 10 0UEISISSE LSED-UOL uoijen|ea yseo-uou eif yseo sjqeoydde u Juswweaoh Jo uojeziuebio
et jo asoding fy) jo uojduaseq (6) o poyla {1) jounowy (a} | o unowy {p) uoloes Ol (9) NI3 (q) j0 ssaippe pue sueN (e)
(1 1ed {0686 WI0L) | 9INpayog) setels paliuf syl ul sucneziuebI0 PUB SJUSLLLIZAOL O} 2DUBISISSY JOYI() PUE SIUEIS 1O UCHBNURUOY) _”_u..a.._.mm._
L ebed V60TZ6T-TV (RS) VILOSENNIN AVMUVATS (066 WioJ 1ainparps



{e10z) {066 Wiod} | 8jnpaysg

£l-62-0f z20LZee

*SLNVED THTYVMY HOLINOW

ANY SHSSHOOUd MHATIAZY-INVED NVId ‘'SINZWHEONNONNY ALINALYOddO HLVAYD AHTHL

SY SHHMAOTAWH ¥04 HAIND V¥V S¥Y NV SSHOOUd ONINVW~LNVED S, YLOSENNIW AVMUYHID

d0 NOILLVLNAWADOO TV¥IDIA40 5V SHAWHES LNIWND0d STHL °SEYNIDO¥Yd ODNINVH-LNVED

SLI SHSTAHY SLNIWLIVIHd DNIMVA-INVID S, VLOSHMNIW AVMUVETDO 40 ANV

YHAHENHHM QELVAdN SI LNHRNAD0d SIHL “SENITHECIND SSHO0¥d ONIMNVW-LNVYD HHIL NI

HI¥OA LES HUV SHINAID0Ud ONITHYOLINOW INVID S,YLOSHNNIW AVMAVATD

17 ANIT ‘I 1¥¥d ‘I HINCFIHDS

“UGIfELLIOJUl [BUOIIPPE 1830 Aue pue (g} uwnjos 7| Jed ¢ euf] || JBd Ul padinbal Uopeuiojn ey} opIACid -UOREWI0M| [ejuawaiddng “_”_>.._.. tmn__

mummomfj ¥/N'0 ‘005 L T YIVd IGIMILIYIS dNLL 40 NOILLYNIWASSIC
/N ¥/N'0 "ZBL 08 T FATIVIZINI WYED0¥d ADITOd ODOVEOL NYIANI
KYOINERY ¥O4d EONVISISSY TVOINHOEL ANY ONILTIASNOD
¥/ ¥/N'o egviot T "BLOEL0¥d XTI JAWVYYT ONIMOLINOW NI HONVLSISSY
{1810 ‘fesieidde ‘a4 Hoog) | 8duBlSISSE YseD welb ysen spualidios)
SJUEBJSISSE YSeo-UoU Jo uonduosseg (3} uoirenjea jo poyiap (a) -uou Jo nowry (p} ;o Junowry (o) o raquunp {q) aouesisse Jo welb Jjo adA) (e)

‘Papsau §1 30BdS [BUCIIPPE 4 Paieolidnp oq ued ||| g ____
‘22 Uil ‘Al Hed ‘0885 W04 01, SeA, Dasamsue uojjeziuefio sy; j elejdwoy) 'sajels pajn AU Ui S|enpialpu) 03 aouelsissy Jaylo pue sjuen [ ied:

g ebed $601C6T-1V

(HS) VIOSHNNIW AVMIVATID [E102) (086 LWIo4) | 3INpaYRg



Schedule | {Form 990) CLEARWAY MINNESQOTA (8&8M) 41-1921094 page2
[Part IV | Supplemental Information

CLEARWAY MINNESQOTA RECOGNIZES THAT GRANT MONITORING IS ESSENTIAL IN

SUPPORTING THE CAPACITY OF GRANTEES TO MAKE SIGNIFICANT CONTRIBUTIONS TO

THE FIELD QF TOBACCO CONTROL IN MINNESOTA. THE PURPOSE OF MONITORING

GRANTEES IS:

—-TO ENSURE ACCOUNTABILITY AND PROPER USE OF GRANT FUNDS;

~TO VERIFY COMPLIANCE WITH LEGAL AND GRANT-MAKING REQUIREMENTS ;

-TO ENSURE TIMELY PROGRESS IN MEETING PROJECT GOALS:

—TO IDENTIFY ISSUES AND WORK WITH THE GRANTEE TO ADDRESS THEM;

-TO ENCOURAGE CONTINUOQOUS IMPROVEMENT OF PROGRAM QUALITY; AND

-TO IDENTIFY OPPORTUNITIES FOR DISSEMINATION AND SUPPORT FOR

FINDINGS/RESULTS.

THE FOLLOWING IS A GENERAL QUTLINE OF THE PROCEDURES THAT CLEARWAY

MINNESOTA USES FOR GRANT MONITORING.

GRANTEE ORIENTATION:

ONCE GRANTS ARE APPROVED BY THE BOARD, GRANT MANAGERS COMMUNICATE WITH

GRANTEES AS NEEDED, EITHER IN PERSON, BY TELEPHONE OR VIA WRITTEN

COMMUNICATION. THESE TNITIAL COMMUNICATIONS PROVIDE BACKGROUND TO GRANTEES

ABOUT KEY ELEMENTS CONTAINED IN THEIR GRANT AGREEMENTS, WITH A FOCUS ON

PROGRESS AND FINANCIAL REPORTING REQUIREMENTS. AFTER GRANT AGREEMENTS ARE

EXBECUTED, GRANTEES RECEIVE AN ORIENTATION PACKET AND ADDITIONAL RELEVANT

INFORMATION.

THE INITIAL GRANT PAYMENT IS MADE AFTER EXECUTION OF THE GRANT AGREEMENT,

AFTER THE GRANT IS5 RECORDED IN THE GENERAL LEDGER AND AFTER RECEIPT OF IRB

APPROVAL, IF REQUIRED.

Schedule | {Form 990}
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Schedule | (Form 990) CLEARWAY MINNESOTA (SM) 41-1921094 page2
[Part V] Supplemental Information

REPORTING:

REPORTS ARE THE PRIMARY TOOL USED TO MONITOR GRANTEE PROGRESS, CHALLENGES

AND FINANCIAL STATUS. THROUGHOUT THE GRANT PERIOD, GRANTEES SUBMIT PROGRESS

AND FINANCIAL REPORTS ON A REGULAR BASTS. IN-PERSON MEETINGS ARE SCHEDULED

ON AN AS-NEEDED BASIS DEPENDING ON THE SCOPE, NEEDS AND PROGRESS OF THE

FUNDED GRANT. PAYMENTS ARE RELEASED ACCORDING TO THE APPROVED PAYMENT

SCHEDULE, AND ONLY IF ALL PROGRESS AND FINANCIAL REPORTS HAVE BEEN

APPROVED.

SITE VISITS:

CLEARWAY MINNESOTA GRANT MANAGERS MAY OPT TQ SPEND TIME WITH GRANTEES AT

THEIR WORKSITES. THE SCOPE AND FREQUENCY OF SITE VISITS VARIES BY

DEPARTMENT AND GRANT TYPE,

TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE:

AS CLEARWAY MINNESOTA GRANT MANAGERS REVIEW PROGRESS AND FINANCIAL REPORTS,

THEY NOTE AREAS IN WHICH GRANTEES MAY NEED ADDITIONAL TRAINING OR

ASSISTANCE WITH THIRD-PARTY EXPERTS AS NEEDED.
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SCHEDULE J Compensation Information OM8 No, 1545-0047

{(Form 920) For certain Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest
Compensated Employees
P~ Gomnplete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 23.

Departmant of the Treasury P> Attach to Form 980. P See separate instructions. Lt
Internal Revenue Service P Information about Schedule . (Form 990) and Its Instructions is at ww irs ooutormaan P

Name of the organization Employer identificat.ion nﬁmber
CLEARWAY MINNESOTA (SM) 41-1921094
[Partl | Questions Regarding Compensation

Yes | No

1a Check the appropriate box(es) if the organization provided any of the following to or for a person listed in Form 890,
Part Vi, Section A, line 1a. Complete Part Il to provide any relevant information regarding these items.
First-class or charter travel !:I Housing allowance or residence for personal use
Travel for companions Payments for business use of personal residence
Tax indemnification and gross-up payments Health or scciat club dues or initiation fees
D Discretionary spending account |:| Personal services (e.g., maid, chauffeur, chef)

b If any of the boxes on line 1a are checked, did the organization follow a written policy regarding payment or
reimbursement or provision of alt of the expenses described above? If "No," complete Part Il toexplain . ...
2  Did the organization require substantiation prior to reimbursing or allowing expenses incurred by afl directors,
trustees, and officers, incfuding the CEQ/Executive Director, regarding the items checked in line 187 2 [N/A

3 Indicate which, if any, of the following the filing organization used to establish the compensation of the organization's
CE0/Executive Director. Check all that apply. Do not check any boxes for methods used by a related organization to
establish compensation of the CEG/Executive Director, but explain in Part 11,

Compensation committee Written employment contract
Independent compensation consultant EK] Compensation survey or study
Form 990 of other organizations Approval by the hoard or compensation committea

4 During the year, did any person listed in Form 990, Part Vi, Section A, line 1, with respect to the filing
organization or a related organization:

a Receive a severance payment or change-of-contro! payment? 4a X
b Participate in, or receive payment from, a supplemental nonqualified retirementptan? 4b X
¢ Parlicipate in, or receive payment from, an equity-based compensation arangement? 4c X

If *Yes* to any of lines 4a-c, list the persons and provide the applicable amounts for each item in Part 1.

Only section 501{c){3) and 501(c)(4} organizations must complete lines 5-@.
5 For persons listed in Form 980, Part Vi, Section A, line 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any compensation
contingent on the revenues of:
a The organization?

If "Yes" to line 5a or &b, describe in Part (Il
6 For persons fisted in Form 990, Part Vi1, Section A, fine 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any compensation
contingent on the net earnings of:
a8 The OIgaNIZatON T
b Any related organization?
If "Yes" to line 6a or 6b, describe in Part 111,
7 For persons listed in Form 990, Part VIl, Section A, line 13, did the organization provide any non-fixed payments
rot described in lines 5 and 67 If "Yes," describe in Part 1
8 Were any amounts reported in Form 990, Part VI, paid or accrued pursuant to a contract that was subject to the
initial contract exception described in Regulations section 53.4958-4(a)(3)? If "Yes," describe in Part 1]
9 I "Yes' toline 8, did the organization also follow the rebuttable presumption procedure described in
Regulations section 53.4958-6{C)7 ... . . i OUUOO RO 9
LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule J (Form 990} 2013

A

332111
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SCHEDULE O Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ | —S2iaecns
[Form 990 or 890-E2) omplete to provide information for responses to specific questions on
Form 890 or 990-EZ or to provide any additional information.

Department of the Treasury P Attach to Form 990 or 990-EZ.

Internal Hevenug Service B> Inforsnation about Sehedule O (Form 990 or 890-EZ) and its instructions is atwawy irs gou/inmaan

Name of the organization Employer identification number
CLEARWAY MINNESOTA (8M) 41-1921094

FORM 990, PART I, LINE 1, DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATTON MISSTION:

OF ALL MINNESOTANS BY ELIMINATING THE HARM CAUSED BY TOBACCO. CLEARWAY

MINNESOTA WAS CREATED IN 1998 TO ADMINISTER 3 PERCENT (6202 MILLION) OF

MINNESOTA'S TOBACCO SETTLEMENT FUNDS OVER A PERIOD OF 25 YEARS.

CLEARWAY MINNESOTA'S MISSION IS TO ENHANCE LIFE FOR ALI, MINNESOTANS BY

REDUCING TOBACCO USE AND EXPOSURE TO SECONDHAND SMOKE THROUGH RESEARCH,

ACTION AND COLLABORATION.

THE ORGANIZATION'S WORK IS GROUNDED IN SOUND SCIENCE AND PUBLIC HEALTH

BEST PRACTICES, AND INCLUDES A COMPREHENSIVE BODY OF TOBACCO CESSATION

PROGRAMS (MARKETED AS QUITPLAN (R) SERVICES), EXTENSIVE GRANT-MAKING

ACTIVITIES IN AREAS OF RESEARCH, POLICY AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT, AND

MEDIA CAMPAIGNS TO RAISE AWARENESS OF THE HARMS OF TOBACCO AND

SECONDHAND SMOKE EXPOSURE AND TO PROMOTE QUITTING.

FORM 9390, PART III, LINE 3, CHANGES IN PROGRAM SERVICES:

IN FISCAL YEAR 2014, CLEARWAY MINNESOTA (SM) STOPPED OFFERING

A STANDALONE WEB-BASED TOBACCO CESSATION PROGRAM, AND INSTEAD

DEVELOPED NEW TOOLS AND SERVICES THAT ARE AVAILABLE BOTH ONLINE AND BY

PHONE TO BETTER MEET TOBACCO USERS' NEEDS AND SUPPORT THEM IN THE

QUITTING PROCESS. THESE SERVICES ARE DESCRIBED IN PART III, LINE 4C.

SPECIFIC PROGRAM GRANTS AND CONTRACTS DO CHANGE FROM YEAR TQ YEAR; SEE

ATTACHMENTS FOR A LIST OF PROGRAM GRANTS AND CONTRACTS.

FORM 990, PART TIII, LINE 4A, PROGRAM SERVICE ACCOMPLISHMENTS:

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ., Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-E7) (2013}

332211
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Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-E7) (2013) Page 2
Name of the organization Emplover identification number

CLEARWAY MINNESOQTA (SM) 41-1921094

COMMUNITY VISITS, MEDIA INTERVIEWS AND MEETINGS WITH COMMUNITY LEADERS.

THIS WORK ENGAGES MINNESOTANS AT THE LOCAL LEVEL, PROVIDING

OPPORTUNITIES FOR THEM TO LEARN MORE ABOUT CLEARWAY MINNESOTA'S

MISSION, PROGRAMS AND ACTIVITIES, AND TO GIVE CLEARWAY MINNESOTA

FEEDBACK. CLEARWAY MINNESOTA'S COMMUNICATIONS WORK ALSO INCLUDES

CUSTOMIZED OUTREACH TO DIVERSE COMMUNITIES.

IN FISCAL YEAR 2014, CLEARWAY MINNESOTA'S ADVERTISING AND OUTREACH WORK

WAS SPECIFICALLY FOCUSED IN THE FOLLOWING AREAS: THE PROMOTION OF A NEW

SUITE OF QUITPLAN SERVICES; EDUCATION ABOQUT THE HEALTH AND ECONOMIC

COSTS OF SMOKING TO MINNESOTA, AND THE IMPACT OF TOBACCO USE ON YOQUTH;

THE ROLE PLAYED BY THE TOBACCO INDUSTRY IN CREATING THOSE EFFECTS; AND

THE BENEFITS OF CIGARETTE PRICE INCREASES.

IN FISCAL YEAR 2014, CLEARWAY MINNESOTA'S MASS MEDIA CAMPAIGNS -

CONSISTING OF TV, RADIO, QUT OF HOME AND DIGITAL ADS - REACHED 99

PERCENT OF MINNESOTA ADULTS AN AVERAGE OF 104 TIMES THROUGHOQUT THE

YEAR. FURTHERMORE, 883 PERCENT OF MINNESQTA SMOKERS SAW MESSAGES

RELATING SPECIFICALLY TO SMOKING CESSATION AN AVERAGE OF 65 TIMES

DURING THE YEAR.

IN ADDITION, CLEARWAY MINNESOTA AGAIN LEVERAGED CDC'S NATTONAL MEDIA

CAMPAIGN BY PURCHASTNG ADDITIONAL MEDIA TIME FOR THE HARD-HITTING

CESSATION ADS. CLEARWAY MINNESOTA'S PROGRAMS, SERVICES OR KEY MESSAGES

ALSO RECEIVED COVERAGE BY MINNESOTA MEDIA MORE THAN 2,400 TIMES OVER

THE COURSE OF THE YEAR.

THIS YEAR, CLEARWAY MINNESOTA ALSQO AWARDED SEVEN NEW GRANTS TO

NONPROFIT ORGANIZATIONS AND LOCAL UNITS OF GOVERNMENT TQO REDUCE
s Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ} (2013)




Schedule O (Form 890 or 990-EZ) (2013) Page 2
Name of the organization Employer identification number

CLEARWAY MINNESOTA (SM) 41-1821094

TOBACCO'S HARM IN MINNESOTA THROUGH COALITION BUILDING, POLICY ADVOCACY

AND PUBLIC EDUCATIQON. ALL GRANTEES CONTRIBUTED TO CLEARWAY MINNESOTA'S

STATEWIDE POLICY GOALS BY DEFENDING THE 2013 TOBACCQO TAX INCREASE,

PASSING SMOKE-FREE FOSTER CARE LEGISLATION AND SECURING NEW REGULATIONS

ON E-CIGARETTES. THEY ALSO CONTRIBUTED TO REDUCING TOBACCO'S HARM IN

THEIR LOCAL JURISDICTIONS THROUGH PUBLIC EDUCATION AND ENGAGEMENT

ACTIVITIES AND THROUGH UPDATING LOCAL TOBACCO ORDINANCES, PASSING NEW

PUBLIC POLICIES AND PASSING VOLUNTARY POLICIES SUCH AS SMOKE-FREE

MULTI-UNIT HOUSING POLICIES.

FORM 990, PART III, LINE 4B, PROGRAM SERVICE ACCOMPLISHMENTS:

CONTROL POLICIES AND PROGRAMS. RESULTS FROM THESE RESEARCH AND

EVALUATION PROJECTS ARE USED TO ADVANCE AND GUIDE CLEARWAY MINNESOTA'S

ACTIVITIES.

DURING FISCAL YEAR 2014 CLEARWAY MINNESOTA, IN PARTNERSHIP WITH

MINNESOTA TOBACCC CONTROL RESEARCHERS, PARTICIPATED IN NUMERQUS

NATIONAL, STATE AND LOCAL CONFERENCE PRESENTATIONS AND PUBLISHED IN

SEVERAL PEER-REVIEWED PUBLICATIONS. GRANTEE DISSEMINATION HIGHLIGHTS IN

FISCAL YEAR 2014 INCLUDED ONE CONFERENCE ABSTRACT, A TOOL KIT

DEVELOPMENT AND DISTRIBUTION, A LOCAL CONFERENCE PRESENTATION, AN

ARTICLE IN LOCAL PRINT MEDIA, DEVELOPMENT OF THREE MANUSCRIPTS FOR

PUBLICATION, AND DISTRIBUTION OF DISSEMINATION MATERIALS THROUGH LIST

SERVES AND WEBINARS. CLEARWAY MINNESOTA STAFF ALSO PUBLISHED FQUR

PEER-REVIEWED SCIENTIFIC PAPERS. IN ADDITION, STAFF FACILITATED TWO

SYMPOSIA AT THE ANNUAL MEETING OF THE SOCIETY FOR RESEARCH ON NICOTINE

AND TOBACCO. THE FIRST SYMPOSIUM FOCUSED ON THE IMPACT OF A TOBACCO

PRICE INCREASE ON TOBACCO MARKETING, CONSUMER PURCHASING BEHAVIOR AND

e, Schedule O (Form 990 or 980-EZ) (2013)




Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2013) Page 2
Name of the organization Employer identification number

CLEARWAY MINNESOTA (SM) 41-1921094

CESSATION. THE SECOND SYMPOSIUM ADDRESSED THE EMERGING SCIENCE ON

MENTHOL CIGARETTES AND THE IMPLICATIONS FOR TREATMENT AND POLICY. BOTH

SYMPOSTA INCLUDED FIVE MINNESOTA-BASED RESEARCHERS AND A NATIONALLY

KNOWN TOBACCO CONTROL EXPERT WHO SERVED AS PANELISTS.

FORM 990, PART III, LINE 4C, PROGRAM SERVICE ACCOMPLISHMENTS:

COVER CESSATION HELP; OVER-THE-COUNTER NICOTINE REPLACEMENT PRODUCTS IN

THE FORM OF PATCHES, GUM AND LOZENGES ARE PROVIDED AS APPROPRIATE.

HELPLINE ENROLLEES MAY ALSO ADD INTEGRATED TEXT MESSAGING AND/OR EMAIL

SUPPORT SERVICES AS PART QOF THE HELPLINE PROGRAM.

THROUGH JANUARY 2014, CLEARWAY MINNESOTA OFFERED QUITPLAN.COM, AN

INTERACTIVE TOBACCO CESSATION WEBSITE THAT PROVIDED SOCIAL SUPPORT AND

TOOLS TO USERS WHO WERE READY TO QUIT OR HAD RECENTLY QUIT TOBACCO USE.

THIS PROGRAM ENDED IN FISCAL YEAR 2014 PRIOR TO THE LAUNCH OF OUR NEW

SUITE OF QUITPLAN SERVICES.

ON MARCH 3, 2014, QUITPLAN SERVICES EXPANDED TO INCLUDE MORE OPTIONS.

TOBACCO USERS CAN NOW CHOOSE THE QUITPLAN HELPLINE OR INDIVIDUAL

QUITPLAN SERVICES. INDIVIDUAL QUITPLAN SERVICES INCLUDE NICOTINE

REPLACEMENT STARTER KITS, A TEXT-MESSAGING PROGRAM, AN EMAIL PROGRAM

AND/OR A PRINTED QUIT GUIDE. TO COMPLEMENT THE NEW SERVICES AND

FACILITATE ONLINE ENROLLMENT, THE QUITPLAN SERVICES WERSITE WAS

REDESIGNED IN ITS ENTIRETY TO PROVIDE EASY ACCESS TQ INFORMATION, TOOLS

AND RESQURCES. WITH THE LAUNCH OF QUR NEW SUITE OF SERVICES, TOBACCO

USERS CAN REGISTER FOR ANY QUITPLAN SERVICE EITHER ONLINE OR BY PHONE.

DURING FISCAL YEAR 2014:

-2,753 TOBACCO USERS ENROLLED IN THE QUITPLAN HELPLINE.

Bo-04-13 Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-E2) (2013)




Schedule O (Form 980 or 98D-EZ) (2013) Page 2
Narme of the organization Employer identification number

CLEARWAY MINNESOTA {(&8M) 41-1921094

-1,486 PEOPLE ENRQLLED IN QUITPLAN.COM.

-5,270 TOBACCO USERS ENROLLED IN INDIVIDUAL QUITPLAN SERVICES.

QUITPLAN SERVICES ARE EVALUATED TO AID IN PROGRAM MONITORING, TO

ENHANCE QUALITY AND TO GUIDE DECISION-MAKING AND RESOURCE ALLOCATION.

CLEARWAY MINNESOTA STAFF WORKS WITH A WIDE RANGE OF ORGANIZATIONS TO

ADVANCE CESSATION SERVICES, PARTNERING CLOSELY WITH THE MAJOR MINNESOTA

HEALTH PLANS THAT PROVIDE TELEPHONE COUNSELING SERVICES THROUGH THE

CALL IT QUITS COLLABORATIVE. THIS COLLABORATIVE PROVIDES A FORUM FOR

ALL OF THE STATE'S QUITLINE SERVICE PROVIDERS TO SHARE INFORMATION AND

LEARN ABOUT BEST PRACTICES. THE CALL IT QUITS COLLARORATIVE ALSO

SUPPORTS THE CALL IT QUITS REFERRAL PROGRAM, WHICH ALLOWS HEALTH CARE

PROVIDERS TQ USE A SINGLE FORM AND FAX NUMBER TO REFER PATIENTS TO

QUITLINE SUPPORT, REGARDLESS OF INSURANCE STATUS.

CLEARWAY MINNESOTA STAFF IS ALSO ACTIVELY INVOLVED IN CESSATION POLICY

WORK TO ENSURE THAT ALL MINNESQOTANS HAVE ACCESS TO COMPREHENSIVE

TOBACCO DEPENDENCE TREATMENT. THIS WORK ENTAILS EDUCATING ABOUT AND

ADVOCATING FOR COMPREHENSIVE TOBACCO CESSATION BENEFITS AS PART OF

HEALTH INSURANCE COVERAGE, PROMOTING SYSTEMS CHANGES TO FOSTER THE

INTEGRATION OF TOBACCC DEPENDENCE TREATMENT INTQO BOTH HEALTH CARE AND

PUBLIC PROGRAMS, AND ADVOCATING FOR HEALTH CARE QUALITY MEASURES ON

TOBACCO TREATMENT DELIVERY.

CLEARWAY MINNESOTA STAFF MEMBERS WORK TQO SHARE FINDINGS AND LESSONS

LEARNED FROM QUR WORK THROUGH LOCAL, STATE AND NATIONAL CONFERENCE

PRESENTATIONS.

e Schedule O (Form 990 or 880-EZ) (2013)




Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-E2) (2013} Page 2
Name of the organization Employer identification number

CLEARWAY MINNESOTA (SM) 41-1921094

FORM 990, PART III, LINE 4D, OTHER PROGRAM SERVICES:

COMMUNITY DEVELQOPMENT

CLEARWAY MINNESOTA FUNDS EFFORTS IN PRIORITY POPULATIONS (AFRICANS AND

AFRICAN AMERTCANS, AMERICAN INDIANS, ASIANS, ASIAN AMERICANS, PACIFIC

ISLANDERS, CHICANOS/LATINOS, LESBIAN, GAY, BISEXUAL AND TRANSGENDER

[LGBT] COMMUNITIES, BLUE-COLLAR WORKERS, 18-24-YEAR-OLDS AND OTHER

GROUPS TO CREATE AWARENESS ABOUT THE HARMS OF COMMERCIAL TOBACCO AND

SECONDHAND SMOKE, TQ PROMOTE STOP~SMOKING SERVICES, TO BUILD LEADERSHIP

AND CAPACITY FOR TOBACCO CONTROL POLICY, AND TO DEVELOP COMMUNITY

NETWORKS/COALTITIONS AND PROJECTS THAT SUPPORT AND PROMOTE TOBACCO

CONTROL EFFORTS. THESE POPULATIONS HAVE A DISPROPORTIONATE

TOBACCO-RELATED DISEASE BURDEN AND DISPARITY.

IN FISCAL YEAR 2014, CLEARWAY MINNESOTA CONTINUED ITS POLICY EFFORTS IN

INDIAN COUNTRY TO ADVANCE COMPREHENSIVE COMMERCIAL TOBACCO-FREE

POLICIES AND PROMOTE HEALTH ON MINNESOTA TRIBAL LANDS. (THE ABUSE OF

COMMERCIAL TOBACCO PRODUCTS, SUCH AS CIGARETTES, IS DIFFERENTIATED FROM

SACRED, TRADITIONAL USES OF TOBACCO PRACTICED BY AMERICAN INDIAN

NATIONS.)} A COMPREHENSIVE EVALUATION COMPONENT IS PART OF THESE

PROJECTS WITH THE GOAL OF DOCUMENTING PROGRESS AND CONTRIBUTING TO

PROMISING AND BEST PRACTICES IN THE TOBACCO CONTROL FIELD. A PROJECT TO

EDUCATE THE MINNESOTA AND NATIONAL INDIAN GAMING ASSOCIATIONS REGARDING

THE HARMS OF COMMERCIAL TOBACCO AND SECONDHAND SMOKE IS ALSO SUPPORTED,

IN AN EFFORT TO ADVANCE SMOKE-FREE CASINO POLICIES. ADDITIONALLY,

CLEARWAY MINNESOTA IS SUPPORTING AND INVOLVED IN A DIALOGUE WITH

MINNESOTA FOQUNDATIONS AND TRIBAL LEADERSHIP ABOUT THE FUTURE OF HEALTH

PROMOTION WORK IN INDIAN COUNTRY.

o naa Schedule O (Form 980 or 990-E2) (2013)




Schedute O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2013} Page 2
Name of the organization Employer identification number

CLEARWAY MINNESOTA (SM) 41-19521094

CLEARWAY MINNESOTA ALSQ CONTINUED THE LEADERSHIP AND ADVOCACY INSTITUTE

TO ADVANCE MINNESOTA'S PARITY FOR PRIORITY POPULATIONS (LAAMPP). LAAMPP

15 A FELLOWSHIP PROGRAM CREATED TO BUILD CAPACITY AND LEADERSHIP IN

PRIORITY POPULATION COMMUNITIES TO DEVELOP AND IMPLEMENT EFFECTIVE

TOBACCO PREVENTION AND CONTROL PROGRAMS AND POLICTES; LAAMPP ALSO HAS

AN EVALUATION COMPONENT. ADDITIONALLY, A LAAMPP ALUMNI POLICY CHAMPIQONS

PROJECT IS NOW ENGAGING LAAMPP FELLOWS IN PUBLIC POLICY WORK TN

MINNESOQTA.

EXPENSES § 1,365,410, INCLUDING GRANTS OF § 1,207,193, REVENUE §$ 0.

FORM 990, PART V, LINE 4B, LIST OF FOREIGN COUNTRIES:

GUERNSEY, CAYMAN ISLANDS, BRITISH VIRGIN IS

FORM 3390, PART VI, SECTION B, LINE 11:

THE IRS FORM 990 AND ATTACHMENTS ARE COMPLETED BY THE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR AND REVIEWED BY STAFF AND LEGAL COUNSEL. THE FORM IS

PRESENTED TO THE AUDIT/FINANCE COMMITTEE AND THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS FOR

REVIEW AND APPROVAL. THE COMMITTEE AND BOARD RECEIVE THE DOCUMENT

APPROXIMATELY ONE WEEK IN ADVANCE OF THE RESPECTIVE MEETING AT WHICH IT I8

REVIEWED. THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR IS AVAILABLE TO ANSWER ANY QUESTIONS THAT

MAY ARISE.

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION B, LINE 12C:

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST, INCLUDING POLICIES RELATING TO LOANS

AND GIFTS, ARE GOVERNED BY CLEARWAY MINNESOTA'S CONFLICT OF INTEREST

POLICY. BY THIS POLICY, CONTRACTS AND GRANTS WITH BOARD MEMBERS, EMPLOYEES

OR THEIR FAMILIES ARE PRQHIBITED.

680413 Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ} (2013)
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Name of the organization Employer identification number

CLEARWAY MINNESOTA (SM) 41-1921094

ENFORCEMENT OF THE CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY SHALI, BE MADE BY THE

CLEARWAY MTNNESQTA BOARD, ON THE RECOMMENDATION OF THE EXECUTIVE/GOVERNANCE

COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD, OR OF A COMMITTEE DESIGNATED BY THAT COMMITTEE.

CLEARWAY MINNESOTA REGULARLY AND CONSISTENTLY MONITORS AND ENFORCES

COMPLIANCE WITH ITS CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY. THE BOARD REQUIRES EACH

BOARD MEMBER AND EMPLOYEE TO BE ADVISED OF THIS POLICY, AND PROVIDED A

COPY, TMMEDIATELY UPON ASSUMING THEIR CLEARWAY MINNESOTA DUTIES OR

RELATIONSHTP, AND TO BE PERIODICALLY REMINDED OF THIS POLICY AND EDUCATED

CONCERNING ITS APPLICATION. EVERY BOARD MEMBER AND EMPLOYEE IS RESPONSIBLE

FOR KNOWING AND OBSERVING THE POLICY.

EACH BOARD MEMBER AND EMPLOYEE IS REQUIRED TO SUBMIT A CERTIFICATE OF

COMPLIANCE ANNUALLY., THE CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE REQUIRES BOARD MEMBERS

AND EMPLOYEES TO REVIEW A LIST OF CURRENT CLEARWAY MINNESOTA GRANTEES AND

CONTRACTORS AND TO DISCLOSE AFFILTATIONS WITH ANY ORGANIZATIONS THAT HAVE

GRANTS OR CONTRACTS WITH CLEARWAY MINNESOTA.

IN FISCAL YEAR 2014, CLEARWAY MINNESOTA REFINED THE CONFLICT OF INTEREST

SCREENING PROCESS TO IDENTIFY POTENTIAL CONFLICTS INVOLVING APPLICANTS FOR

FUNDING THAT HAVE NOT HAD A GRANT OR CONTRACT WITH CLEARWAY MINNESOTA

DURING THE PAST YEAR. THIS PROCESS IDENTIFIES POTENTIAL CONFLICTS EARLY IN

THE APPLICATION PROCESS IN ORDER TO IMPLEMENT CONFLICT OF INTEREST

MITIGATION STRATEGIES THAT MAY BE NECESSARY DURING THE APPLICATION REVIEW

PROCESS.

BOARD DIRECTORS AND STAFF HAVE THE RESPONSIBILITY TO DISCLOSE TO THE

I Schedule O (Form 990 or 930-EZ) (2013)




Schedule Q {Form 920 or 990-EZ) {2013) Page 2
Name of the organization Employer identification number

CLEARWAY MINNESOTA (SM) 41-1921094

ORGANIZATION THE RELEVANT FACTS OF ANY PROPOSED ACTION INVOLVING CLEARWAY

MINNESOTA TN WHICH THEY HAVE POSSIBLE OR PERCEIVED CONFLICTS AS SOON AS

THEY ARE DISCOVERED.

FORM 920, PART VI, SECTION B, LINE 15:

CLEARWAY MINNESOTA REVIEWS COMPENSATION {(SALARY RANGES AND

BENEFITS} ON AN ANNUAL BASIS. AT LEAST EVERY TWO YEARS, AN INDEPENDENT

COMPENSATION CONSULTANT COMPARES ALL JOBS TO APPLICABLE MARKET SURVEYS TO

DETERMINE COMPENSATION COMPETITIVENESS TQ THE MARKET. THIS REVIEW WAS LAST

DONE IN FISCAL YEAR 2014. 1IN YEARS WHERE A CONSULTANT IS NOT ENGAGED),

STAFF REVIEWS THE MOST CURRENT ANNUAL WORLD-AT-WORK SURVEY OR SIMILAR

INFORMATION TO DETERMINE MARKET TRENDS. FROM THESE ANALYSES, PAY RANGE

MODIFICATIONS AND THE ANNUAL BUDGETED SALARY MERIT INCREASE PERCENTAGE ARE

DETERMINED. THIS TINFORMATION IS REVIEWED BY THE EXECUTIVE/GOVERNANCE

COMMITTEE, AND BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, WHICH MAKES THE FINAL DECISION ON

SALARY RANGE LEVELS AND BUDGET AMOQUNTS.

ALL STAFF SALARY CHANGES, EXCEPT THAT OQF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, ARE

REVIEWED AND APPROVED BY THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER. SALARY CHANGES FOR

THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE QOFFICER ARE DETERMINED ANNUALLY BY THE

EXECUTIVE/GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE AND APPRQVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS.

FORM 590, PART VI, SECTION C, LINE 19:

CLEARWAY MINNESOTA'S GOVERNING DOCUMENTS, INCLUDING ITS

CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, ARE AVAILABLE AT THE

CLEARWAY MINNESOTA OFFICE FOR INSPECTION.

o Schedule O {Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2013)



rom 990-T
{(and proxy tax under section 6033(e))
For calendar year 2013 or other tax year beginning JUL 1 ’ 2 0 1 3 , and ending JUN 3 0 .

Exempt Organization Business income Tax Return
2014 .

OMB No. 1545-0687

B> Information about Form 990-T and its instructions is available at

Department of the Treasury www.irs.gov/form990t.

Internal Revenue Service

B> Do not enter SSN numbers on this form as it may be made public if your organization is a 501(¢)(3).

2013

. it i : : D Employer identification number

Al gggg;g% gnged Name of organization { 1 Check box if name changed and see instructions.) EE;‘L‘S%iii’.,"”S" 60
B Exemptunder section | Print | CLEARWAY MINNESOTA (SM) 41-1921094

501c i3 ) Ty;; Number, sireel, and room ar suite no. If & 2.0. box, see iastructions. E et usiss sciiy codss

[ J408(e) [_220(e) TWO APPLETREE SQ, 8011 34TH AVE §, NO. 400

[__J408a !___|530(a) City or town, state or province, country, and ZIP or foreign postal code

[ Is29(a) MINNEAPOLIS, MN 55425 900099

Baok valus of allassets | F Group exemption aumber (See instructions. ) B

857162,940. [aChesk organization type B | X1 501(c) corporation [ 501(c) trust L1 a0i(a) trust L] Other trust

H Describe the organization's primary unrelated business activity. p PARTNERSHIP INVESTMENT

I' During the tax year, was the corporation a subsidiary in an affiliated group or a parent-subsidiary controlled group?
If "Yes," enter the name and identifying number of the parent corporation. b

b L fves

LX | No

J Thebocks areinczre of B> LANA KOPYLOV

Telephone number B 952-767-1400

Opan 1o Public Inspection for
S01{c)3) Organizations Cnly

[PartT [ Unrelated Trade or Business income (A) Incomne (B) Expenses (C) Net
1a Gross receipts or sales
b Less returns and allowances ¢Balance b | 1c
2 Costofgoods sold (Schedule A, line 7y 2
3 Gross profit. Subfractfine 2fromline 1c 3
4a Capital gain net income (attach Form 8949 and Schedwle Dy . 4a
b Net gain (loss) (Form 4797, Part Il, line 17) (attach Form 4797) 4b
¢ Capltalloss deductionfortrusts .. T 4c
5 Income {loss) from partnerships and S corperations {attach statement) 5 3,812.|8
6 Rentincome {Schedule C) . .. . ... ... 6
T Unrelated debt-finanged income (Schedule By 7
8 Interest, annulties, royalties, and rents from controlled organizations (Sch. F).__ 8
9 Investment income of a section 501{e)(7), (9), or (17) organization (Schedule G)i 9
10 Exploited exempt activity income (Schedute ®y . . . 10
11 Advertising ingome (Schedule Jy 11
12  Cther income (See instructions; attach schedule.) 12
13 Total. Combing lines 3through 12 ... 13 3,812, 3,812,
Deductions Not Taken Elsewhere (See instructions for limitations cn deductions.)
(Except for contributions, deductions must be directly connected with the unrelatad business income.)
14 Compensation of afficers, directors, and trustees (SehedUle K} 14
18 Salaries @M WBUES ... et 15
16 Repairs and MaieNaNCE e e 16
17 BAUBDIS | et o ettt e 17
18 Interest (attach sChEdUIE) e 18
19 TaxeSANGUEBOSES | e e, 19
20  Charltable contributions {See instructions for limitation rules) STATEMENT 3 SEE STATEMENT 2 | 20 0.
21 Depreciation (attach FOrm 4582} . ... 21 i
22 Less depreciation claimed on Schedule A and elsewhere onreturn 22a 22h
B8 DDl OM e e 23
24 Contributions to deferred compensalion MANS e, 24
25  Employee BENBRL PFOQRAMS . it e ee et en et e 25
26 Excessexemptexpenses (SChEOUIB ) e 26
27 Excess readership costs (Sehedule d} e, 27
28 Other deductions {attach sChedle) e 28
29 Total deductions. Add fines 14 through 28 ... e 29 0.
30  Unrelated business taxable income beiore net operating loss deduction. Subtract ling 28 from line 13 . L 30 3,812.
31 Net operating loss deduction (limited to the amount on line 30} STATEMENTJ- 31 3,812.
32 Unrelated business taxable income before specific deduction. Subiract line 31 from line 30 32 0.
33 Specific deduction (Generally $1,000, but sea instructions for exceptions.) 33 1,000,
34 Unrelated business taxable income. Subtract line 33 from line 32. If line 33 is greater than line 32, enter the smaller of zero or
BB B2 oottt e e ee e oo s et s et eenea e e enscenseeeeeeseeernnnsneensesereenenre ernseares 34 __0.
iy Form 990-T (2013)

12-12-13

LHA  For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see instructions.



Fomoee-Teo1y  CLEARWAY MINNESOTA (SM) 41-1

921094 Pags 2

[Part lli] Tax Computation

35 Orpanizations Taxable as Corporations. See instructions for tax computation.
Coatrolled group members (sections 1561 and 1563} check here B~ D See instructions and;
a Enter your share of the $50,000, $25,000, and $9,925,000 taxable income brackets {in that order);
(M Is | @8 | @l |
b Enter organization's share of: {1} Additional 5% tax (not morg than $11,750)  |$ J
{2} Additional 3% tax (not more than $106,000}
¢ Income tax on the amount 0m 0 34
36 Trusts Taxable at Trust Rates. See instrugtions for tax computation. Ingome tax on the amount on line 34 fromz
(] Tax rate schedule or - [ Scheduls D (Form 1041}
37  Proxy tax, See instructions
38 Alternative minimum tax ...
39 Total. Add lines 37 and 38 to line 35¢ or 36, whichever applies

[Part V] Tax and Payments

402 Foreign tax credit (corparations attach Form 1118; frusts attach Form 1116) 40a

b Other credits (see instructions) 40b

e Backup withholding (see inStructions) . e

I Credit for small emplayer health insurance premiums {Attach Form 884 1)

g Cther credits and payments: [ Form 2439

[ 1rorm4136 [ other

45 Total payments. Add lines 44a through 44g
45 Estimated tax penalty (see instructions). Check if Form 2220 is attached p» ]
47  Taxdue. Itline 45 is less than the total of lines 43 and 46, enter amountowed
48  Overpayment. If line 45 is larger than the total of lines 43 and 46, enter amount overpaid ... ...
49  Enter the amount of ling 48 you want: Gredited to 2014 estimated tax P> l Refunded

45
48
| 47 0.
| 48 0.
b | 49

[Partv | Statements Regarding Certain Activities and Other Information (see instructions)

1 Atany time during the 2013 calendar year, did the organization have an interast in or a signature or other authority over a financial account (Dank
securities, or other) in a foreign country? if YES, the organization may have to file Form TD F 90-22.1, Repoit of Foreign Bank and Financial

Accounts. 1 YES, enter the name of the foreign country here B SEE STATEMENT 4

/ Yes | No

2 During the tax year, did the crganization receive a distributicn from, or was it th& §raiTor aT, or wansteror (G, 3 Toreign TUst?
If YES, see instructions for ther forms the organization: may have 1o file.

3 Enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the fax year e §

Scheduile A - Cost of Goods Sold. Enter method of inventory valuation p N/A

1 Inventory at beginning of year 1 8 Wwentoryatendofyear .
2 Purehases 2 7 Gost of goods sold. Subtract line 6
8 Costofibor . 3 from line 5. Enter here and in Part |, line2
44 additional section 263A costs (alt. schedule) | 42 8 Do the rules of section 263A (with respect to Yes { No
b Other costs {attach schedule} . 4h property produced or acquired for resale) apply to AL
5 Total. Add lines 1throughdb ... 5 the organization? ...

Under penalties of perjury, | dl
corre®t, and complate, Declargti

qparer (other than taxpayer) is based on,all information of which preparer has any knowledge.

ai | hava examined this return, ingluding accompanying schedules and statemants, and to the best of my knowladge and beliel, it is true,

Sign hay 1he IS CISCUSS T h
Here Y B l/0/5 [t/ ) CHLEF EXEC OFFICER tre repisershown belon (00
> Sighature of pijicer /Y baig 77/ THlé instructions)? Yes [ ] No
Print/Type prgparer's name Preparer's sigrature Date Check {__| if [PTIN T -
Paid ofd o seli- employed
Proparer [LINDA M. NELSON Cﬁ“‘-‘*}hw 10 )2/ P00205567
Use Only |Firm's name p OLSEN THIELEN' & CO., LTD Firm'sEiy B 41-1360831

2675 LONG LAKE ROAD
Fim's address p ST. PAUL, MN 55113 Phone no.

651-483-4521

323711 12-12-13

Form 990-T (2013)



Form 990-T (2013) CLEARWAY MINNESOTA (8M) 41-1921094 Page 3
Schedule C - Rent Income (From Real Property and Personal Property Leased With Real Property)(see instructions)

1. Description of property

]

2

{3)

{4)

2. Rent received or acorusd
" Deductions dirgctly connected with the income in
a) From personal property (if the percentage of b} From real and personat property (if tha percentage 3(3)
( rent for personal property is more than ( )of rent for personal property exceeds 50% or if ¢ golumns 2(a) and Z(b) {attach schadule)
10% but not more than 50%%) the rert is based on profit or incoma)

)

@

(3)

4

Total 0. |Toa 0.
() Total income. Add fotals of colemns 2(a) and 2(b). Enter éh) Tgtal dt;duntinn&

. nter here and on page 1,

here and on page 1, Part|, line 6, column{A} ... .. . P 0. |partl,tines, cclumn?s; . 0.

Schedule E - Unrelated Debt-Financed iﬁcome {see instructions)

1. Description of debt-financed property

2. Gross income from
or allocabls to debt-
financed property

3. Beductions directly connecied with or allocable
to debi-financed proparty

{a) straight line depreciation
fattach schedule)

(h) Other deductions
(aftach schedule)

(1)

)

(3)

)

4. Amount of avarage acquisition
debt on or allogable to debt-financed
property {attach schedule)

B, Average adjusted basis
of or aflocable to
debt-financed property
(attach schedule)

6. Column 4 divided
by column 5

7. Gross incoms
reportable (column
2 x column 6)

8, Aloeable deductions
{column 6 x total of columns
3(a} and 3(b))

(1} %
2 %
(3} %
&) %
Enter here and ¢n page 1, Enter here and on page 1,
Part |, line 7, column (A). Part |, line 7, column {B).
OIS > 0. 0.
Total dividends-received deductions INCIECE IN COIUMIN 8 ... ..o ottt veeare e s e e sne b 0.

Schedule F - Interest, Annuities, Royalties, and Rents From Controlled Organizations (see instructions)

Exempt Controlled Organizations

1. Name of controlied arganization

Employer id:entiﬁcation
number

3

Net unrelated income
(loss) {see instructions)

Total of specified
payments made

4 5. Part of column 4 that is
included in the controlling
organization's gross income

6. Deductions directly
connected with ingome
in column &

(1

(2)

()

(4}

Nonexempt Controlied Organizations

7. Taxable Income

8. Net unretated income (oss)

(see instructions}

9. Total of specified payments
made

10. Past of column 9 that is included
in the contraliing organization's
gross incoma

11. Deductions directly connected
with income in cofumn 10

(]
@)
{3)
(4)
Add columns 5 and 10. Add columns 6 and 11.
Enter here and on page 1, Parl |, Enter here and on page 1, Part |,
line 8, calumn (A). line 8, column (B).
TOMES ... oo ettt et em et et e et ee e ea et et en s e ens st enmsnieea P 0. 0.

323721 12-12-13

Form 990-T (2013)



Form 990-T (2013) CLEARWAY MINNESOTA {SM)

41-1921054

Page 4

Schedule G - Investment Income of a Section 501(c)(7}, (9}, or (17) Organization

{see instructions)

1, Description of income

2. Aamount of income

3. Deductions
directly cannactad
{attach scheduia)

4, Set-asides
{attach schedule)

5. Total deductions
and set-asides
{col, 3 plus col. 4)

{1)
@
3
]
Enter kere and on page 1, Enter hers and on page 1,
Part |, line 9, column (A). i:| Part 1, ine 9, column (B).
Totals

0

Schedule | - Exploited Exempt Activity Income, Other Than Advertising Income
(see instructions)

0.

1. Description of
exploited activity

2. Gross

income from

unrglated business

trade or business

3. Expenses
directly connected
with production
of unrelated
business income

4, Net income (loss)
from unrglated trade or
business (colurmn 2
minus column 3). If a
gain, compute cols. 5
through 7.

5. Gross incoms
from activity that
is not unrelated

business income

B. Expanses
attributable to
caolumn &

7. Excess exempt
éxpanses {column
6 minus column 5,
but not mare than
column 4).

page 1, Part |,

line 10, cal. (A}

Enter here and on

0-

Enter here and on
page 1, Part |,
ling 10, col. {B).

0.

Schedule J - Advertising Income (ses instructions)

Enter here and
on page 1,
Part Il line 26.

0.

TIncome From Periodicals Reported on a Consolidated Basis

1. Name of periodical

2. Gross
advertising
income

3. birect
advertising costs

4, Advertising gain
or {loss) (col. 2 minus
<ol, 3}, If a gain, computg
cofs. 5 through 7.

5. Girculation
income

6. Readership
costs

7. Excess readership
costs (column B minus
column 5, but not mere

than column 4).

(1)

)

8)

4

Totals (carry to Part I, ling (5))

>

0.

0.

0.

Part L.

Income From Periodicals Reported on a Separate Basis (For each periodical listed in Part 1T, fill i
columns 2 through 7 on a fine-by-line basis.)

2.a 4, Advertising gain 7. Excess readership
o ad\.ler{ios?: 3. Direct or {loss) {col. 2 minus 8. Circulation 6. Readership costs (column 6 minus
1. Name of periodical incame 9 advertisingcosts | col. 3). If a gain, compute income cosis column §, bul nat more
cals. § through 7. than column 4},
m
2
&)
4
Totals from Part | 0. 0. 0.
Enter here and onr Enter here and on Enter here and
page 1, Part I, page 1, Part |, on page 1,
lina 11, col. [A). fine 11, col, (B). Part Il, lins 27.
Totals, Part Il (fines 1-5)............... P _ Q. 0. 0.
Schedule K - Compensation of Officers, Directors, and Trustees (ses instructions)
3. Farcent of 4. Gompensation attributabla
1. Name 2. Tite 1'""2:;‘:;?: to to unrelated business
) %
2 %
) %
@) %
Total. Enter hereand onpage 1, Partll, 08 14 . . 0.
o Form 990-T (2013)
1

12-12-13



CLEARWAY MINNESOTA (SM)

41-1921094

FOOTNOTES

STATEMENT 1

INCOME (LOSS) FROM PARTNERSHIPS

MESTIROW FINANCIAL PRIVATE EQUITY PARTNERSHIP FUND IV, LP

UNRELATED BUSINESS TAXABLE INCOME PER K-1:

LINE 1 - ORDINARY BUSINESS INCOME (LOSS)
LINE 2 - NET RENTAL INCOME (LOSS)

LINE 5 - INTEREST INCOME

LINE 6A - ORDINARY DIVIDENDS

LINE 7 - ROYALTIES

LINE 8 - SHORT-TERM CAPITAIL GAIN (LOSS)
LINE 9A - LONG-TERM CAPITAL GAIN (LOSS)
LINE 10 - SECTION 1231 GAIN (L0OSS)

LINE 11F -~ OTHER INCOME

LINE 12 - SECTICON 179 DEDUCTION

LINE 13H - INVESTMENT INTEREST EXPENSE
LINE 13J - SECTION 59(E)(2) EXPENDITURES
LINE 13W - OTHER DEDUCTIONS

WEATHERGAGE VENTURE CAPITAL LP
UNRELATED BUSINESS TAXABLE INCOME PER X-1:

LINE 1 - ORDINARY BUSINESS INCOME (LOSS)
LINE 13J - SECTION 59(E)(2) EXPENDITURES

TOTAL PARTNERSHIP INCOME

NET OPERATING LOSS CARRYFCRWARD SCHEDULE

FYE 6/30/2008 LOSS
FYE 6/30/2010 LOSS
FYE 6/30/2011 LOSS
FYE 6/30/2012 TAXABLE INCOME
FYE 6/30/2013 TAXABLE INCOME

TOTAL LOSS CARRYFORWARD

FYE 6/30/2014 TAXABLE INCOME

NET OPERATING LOSS CARRYFORWARD TO FYE 6/30/2015

3,608.
<131.>
1,364.
1,359.
1.
214,
241.
56.
1,826.
<ll.>
<l,157.>
<2,054.>
<1,673.>

471.
<302.>

3,812.

<4,613.>

<3,550.>

<6,794.>
2,376.

<12,577.>

3,812.

<8,765.>

STATEMENT(S) 1



CLEARWAY MINNESOTA (SM) 41-1921094

FORM 990-T CONTRIBUTIONS STATEMENT 2
DESCRIPTION/KIND OF PROPERTY METHOD USED TO DETERMINE FMV AMOUNT

FROM MESIROW FINANCIAL K-1 N/Aa 1,567,
TOTAL TO FORM 990-T, PAGE 1, LINE 20 1,567.

STATEMENT(S) 2



CLEARWAY MINNESOTA (SM)

41-1521094

FORM 590-T CONTRIBUTIONS SUMMARY

STATEMENT

3

QUALIFIED CONTRIBUTIONS SUBJECT TO 100% LIMIT

CARRYOVER OF PRIOR YEARS UNUSED CONTRIBUTIONS
FOR TAX YEAR 2008
FOR TAX YEAR 20089
FOR TAX YEAR 2010
FOR TAX YEAR 2011
FOR TAX YEAR 2012

TOTAL CARRYOVER
TOTAL CURRENT YEAR 10% CONTRIBUTIONS

TOTAL CONTRIBUTIONS AVAILABLE
TAXABLE INCOME LIMITATION AS ADJUSTED

EXCESS 10% CONTRIBUTIONS

EXCESS 100% CONTRIBUTIONS

TOTAL EXCESS CONTRIBUTIONS
ALLOWABLE CONTRIBUTIONS DEDUCTION

TOTAL CONTRIBUTION DEDUCTION

1:567

1,567

1,567
1,567

STATEMENT(S)

3



' CLEARWAY MINNESOTA (SM) 41-1921094

FORM 3590-T NAME OF FOREIGN COUNTRY IN WHICH STATEMENT 4
ORGANIZATION HAS FINANCIAL INTEREST

NAME OF COQUNTRY

GUERNSEY
CAYMAN ISLANDS
BRITISH VIRGIN ISLANDS

STATEMENT(S) 4



ClearWay

MINNESOTA

Appendix L

Charitable Organization Annual Report



STATE OF MINNESOTA
CHARITABLE ORGANIZATION INITIAL REGISTRATION & ANNUAL REPORT FORM

ATTORNEY GENERAL LORI SWANSON
SUITE 1200, BREMER TOWER

445 MINNESOTA STREET

ST. PAUL, MN 55101-2130

(651) 757-1311

(651) 296-1410 (TTY)
www.ag.state.mn.us

Annual Reporting l:] Initial Registration

FEDERAL EIN NUMBER: 41-1921094

FOR YEAR ENDING: 06/30/2014

SECTION A: REQUIRED INFORMATION FOR INITIAL REGISTRATION & ANNUAL REPORTING

1. Legal Name of Organization: CLEARWAY MINNESOTA (SM)

If annual reporting, is this a new name since the organization’s last filing?

If so, please state former name:

l:] Yes No

2. List all names under which the organization solicits contributions:

3. Mailing Address of Organization (required)

TWO APPLETREE SQ, 8011 34TH AVE S

Physical Address of Organization (required)
TWO APPLETREE SQ, 8011 34TH AVE S

NO. 400

NO. 400

MINNEAPOLIS, MN 55425

MINNEAPOLIS, MN 55425

4.  Contact Person  DAVID WILLOUGHBY

Tel. No. 952-767-1400

E-maii DWILLOUGHBY@CLEARWAYMN.ORG

FaxNo. 952-767-1422

5. Does the organization use the services of a professional fund-raiser (outside solicitor or consultant)?

l:] Yes No

If so, provide name and address of any outside professional fund-raiser employed by the organization and state the total amount of

compensation each outside fund-raiser received from the filing organization during the year. Attach schedule if more than one.

Name N/A
Address
City State Compensation
6. a) Does this professional fund-raiser solicit or consult in Minnesota? D Yes D No
b) Is this professional fund-raiser registered to solicit or consult in Minnesota? l:] Yes l:] No
7. Month and day accounting year ends:
8. Has the organization included the filing fee, late fee (if any) and all attachments required by the instructions? Yes l:] No

office Use Only: | ARFL_|$25 [ [$50 [ | N(e-Postcard) [__Jooo [ ez [ Jprl_Jresl Isic[_IBp [_[saLl ] Audit]

01/13

399801
05-01-13

Upon request this material can be made available in alternate formats.



9. This Section A(9) must be completed by organizations filing a 990-N (e-Postcard) or organizations whose filing does not contain the information
requested below. This includes organizations that: 1) do not file an IRS Form 990, 2) file an IRS Form 990-EZ or 990-PF, or 3) organizations
that file a group return that does not include the filing organization’s individual financial information.

INCOME SEE FORM990
Contributions from the public $
Government Grants $
Other revenue $

TOTAL REVENUE $

EXCESS or DEFICIT $
TOTAL Assets $
TOTAL Liabilities $
END OF YEAR FUND BALANCE/NET WORTH (Assets minus Liabilities) $

399802
05-01-13



SECTION C: REQUIRED FOR ANNUAL REPORTING ONLY

ALL Annual Report filers MUST complete questions 1-6

1. Has the organization’s accounting year changed since the last report was filed? l:] Yes No
If yes, provide the new year-end date:

2. Attach an explanation if there has been any change in the organization’s tax status with the Internal Revenue Service; a significant change in
the purposes of the organization; or if the organization’s right to solicit funds has been denied, suspended, revoked or enjoined by any state
agency or court in any state, or if there are proceedings pending. None D Attached

3. List of the five highest paid directors, officers, and employees of the organization and its related organizations, as that term is defined by
section 317A.011, subdivision 18, that receive total compensation of more than $100,000, together with the compensation paid to each.
For purposes of this subdivision, "compensation” is defined as the total amount reported on Form W-2 (Box 5) or Form 1099-MISC (Box 7)
issued by the organization and its related organizations to the individual. The value of fringe benefits and deferred compensation paid by the
charitable organization and all related organizations as that term is defined by section 317A.011, subdivision 18, shall also be reported as a
separate item for each person whose compensation is required to be reported pursuant to this subdivision.

Name/Title Compensation Deferred Compensation Fringe Benefits

DAVID J. WILLOUGHBY

1 CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 147,927. 23,259, 25,150.
BARBARA SCHILLO

2 VICE PRESIDENT 138,278. 20,038. 17,411.
ANDREA MOWERY

3 VICE PRESIDENT 133,097. 20,087. 8,915.
PAUL R. ORMAN

4 CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 123,008. 19,130. 12,531.
JAIME MARTINEZ

5 DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY DEV] 116,816. 14,463. 12,608.

4. Attach a list of organization’s board of directors. l:] Attached

Included in IRS return

5. Attach a GAAP audit if total revenue exceeds $750,000. Attached
l:] Audit not included under the Food Shelf Exemption (excluding from total revenue the value of food donated to a nonprofit food shelf for
redistribution at no cost). l:] Audit not required

6. Minnesota law requires that an organization file a copy of all tax or informational returns filed with the IRS, including IRS Form 990-N (e-Postcard),
990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF, including all schedules and amendments. Has the organization included with this annual report a copy of all tax or
informational returns, including IRS Form 990-N (e-Postcard), 990, 990-EZ or 990-PF that it filed with the IRS (excluding Schedule B or any other
donor list)? Yes l:] No (Not required to file a return with IRS or files a group return).

NOTE: By answering YES to the above question, you are attesting that the IRS informational return filed with this office is an exact copy, including
all schedules and attachments, of the IRS informational return filed with the IRS (excluding Schedule B or any other donor list the IRS may require).

399811
05-01-13



SEE FORM990

7. This Section C(7) must be completed by organizations that: 1) do not file an informational return with the IRS; 2) file a 990-N (e-Postcard), 990-EZ,
or 990-PF; 3) file a group return that does not include the filing organization’s functional expense information; or 4) file an IRS Form 990 that
does not contain a completed functional expenses statement within the IRS Form 990.
Statement of Functional Expenses

(A) (B) (&) (D)
Total expenses Program service Management and Fundraising
expenses general expenses expenses

1 Grants and other assistance to governments
and organizations in the U.S.

2 Grants and other assistance to individuals in the U.S.

3 Grants and other assistance to governments,

organizations, and individuals outside the U.S.

4  Benefits paid to or for members

5 Compensation of current officers, directors,
trustees, and key employees

6 Compensation not included above, to disqualified
persons (as defined under section 4958(f)(1) and
persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B)

7 Other salaries and wages

8 Pension plan contributions (include section
401(k) and section 403(b) employer contributions)

9 Other employee benefits

10 Payroll taxes

11 Fees for services (non-employees):
Management

Legal

Accounting
Lobbying
Professional fundraising services

Investment management fees
Other
12 Advertising and promotion

@ |= |0 |2 |0 |T|o

13 Office expenses

14 Information technology

15 Royalties
16 Occupancy
17  Travel

18 Payments of travel or entertainment expenses
for any federal, state, or local public officials

19 Conferences, conventions, and meetings
20 Interest
21 Payments to affiliates

22  Depreciation, depletion, and amortization

23 Insurance

24 Other expenses. ltemize expenses not covered
above. (Expenses grouped together and
labeled miscellaneous may not exceed 5% of
total expenses shown on line 25 below.)

o 0 T o

All other expenses
25 Total functional expenses. Add lines 1 through 24d

26 Joint costs. Check here p> L Tif following
SOP 98-2. Complete this line only if the organi-
zation reported in column (B) joint costs from a
combined educational campaign and
fundraising solicitation

Must be prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
For 990-EZ filers: Column A, Line 25 should equal line 17 IRS Form 990-EZ
For 990-PF filers: Column A, Line 25 should equal line 26 IRS Form 990-PF
The total of Column A, lines 1 through 24d should equal line 25a.
399812 The total of lines 25b, 25¢ and 25d, should equal line 25a
05-01-13 5



SECTION D: REQUIRED FOR INITIAL REGISTRATION & ANNUAL REPORTING

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
SIGNATURES AND ACKNOWLEDGMENT

We, the undersigned, state and acknowledge that we are duly constituted officers of this organization, being the

CHAIR, BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Titte) and TREASURER (Title) respactively, and

that we execute this document on behalf of the organization pursuant to the resolution of the

BOARD QF DIRECTORS (Board of Directors, Trustees, or Managing Group) adopted onthe 1 7TH

day of SEPTEMBER , 201-_4_, approving the contents of the document, and do hereby certify that the

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Board of Directors, Trustees, or Managing Group) has assumed, and will continue

to assume, raspensibility for determining matters of policy, and have supervised, and will continue to supervise, the finances of the organization. We

further state that the information supplied is true, correct and complete to the best of our knowledge.

THOMAS yEAVm BOB BOERSCHEL
Name ¢% Name (Print)
Signature Signature
CHATIR, BOARD QOF DIRECTORS TREASURER, BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Title Title
09/17/2014 09/17/2014
Date Date
* NOTICE *

Documents required to be filed are public records. Please do not include social security numbers, driver’s
license numbers or bank account numbers on the documents filed with this Office as they are not required, but
could become part of the public records. A charitable organization is not required to file a list of its donors. If it
is included, it may become part of the public file.

AG: #3124563-v1

359813
05-01-13
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